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To the directors of Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

Tel ii : +852 2846 9888 

Fax ffJJ(: +852 2868 4432 

ey.com 

(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability) 

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. (the "Company") 
and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 4 to 253, which comprise the consolidated and 
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and 30 April 2025, 
and the consolidated statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the years ended consolidated 31 December 
2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and the four months ended 30 April 2025 (the "Relevant Periods"), and notes to 
the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and 30 April 2025 and of the 
Group's consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the Relevant 
Periods in accordance with the basis of preparation set out in notes 2.1 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") as issued by 
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other matter 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the financial information for the three 
months ended 30 April 2024 (the "Interim Comparative Information") is unaudited. 

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, 
which also include the Interim Comparative Information, that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for 
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either 
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Independent auditor's report(continued) 
To the directors of Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability) 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
for the Relevant Periods as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in 
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. 
lfwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 
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Independent auditor's report(continued) 
To the directors of Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited liability) 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements(continued) 
We communicate with the board of directors of the Company regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

Restriction on distribution and use 
These consolidated financial statements are prepared for the purpose of preparation of financial 
information for inclusion in the prospectus of the Company in connection with the listing of the shares of 
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and accordingly may not 
be suitable for another purpose. 

Our report is intended solely for the information and use by the directors of the Company and should not 
be distributed to or used by parties other than the Company. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Hong Kong 

20 October 2025 

A member finn of Ems! & Young Global Limited 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

REVENUE 5 80,838,530 74,018,936 78,383,379 24,844,770 29,426,034 

Cost of sales (62,542,239) (54,442,726) (57,480,390) (18,187,880) (21,441 ,914) 

Gross profit 18,296,291 19,576,210 20,902,989 6,656,890 7,984,120 

Other income and gains, net 5 2,845,206 2,137,022 2,322,172 860,444 917,093 
Selling and marketing 

expenses {4,930,139) (5,101,926) (5,464,214) (1,569,120) (1,912,116) 
Administrative expenses (3,056,223) (3,117,183) (3,487,700) (1 ,061 ,580) (1 ,037,346) 
Research and development 

costs (6,922,913) (5,864,595) (5,380,621) (1,746,604) (1,421 ,905) 
Impairment losses on financial 

instruments and contract 
assets, net (560,199) {1,173,917) (897,319) (264,872) (167,708) 

Loss on derecognition of 
financial assets at 
amortised cost (21,819) (363) 

Other expenses, net (188,041) (175,445) (300,422) (37,303) (73,612) 
Finance costs 7 (624,875) (1,013,550) (845,080) (337,737) (208,319) 

Share of profits and losses of: 
Joint ventures 9,726 51,597 45,159 19,342 18,600 
Associates 16,896 (1,659) 13,169 20,971 (50,890) 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 4,863,910 5,316,554 6,907,770 2,540,431 4,047,917 

Income tax expense 10 (431,086) (710,444) (815,232) (283,226) (572,288) 

PROFIT FOR THE 
YEAR/PERIOD 4,432,824 4,606,110 6,092,538 2,257,205 3,475,629 

Including: profit/(loss) after tax 
from business combination 
under common control 12,984 21 ,174 (2) (1) 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
(LOSS)/INCOME 

Other comprehensive 
(loss)/income that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods: 

Remeasurement of a defined 
benefit plan, net of tax (12,918) 2,089 (1,110) (1,109) 1,294 

Share of other comprehensive 
income/(loss) under equity 
method, net of tax (64,123) 25,204 (39,999) (77,451) 67,013 

Changes in fair value of equity 
investments at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income, net of tax (34,363) (225,355) (1,824) 44,194 

Net other comprehensive loss that 
will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss in subsequent periods (111 ,404) (198,062) (42,933) (34,366} 68,307 

Other comprehensive 
(loss)/income that may be 
reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods: 

Share of other comprehensive 
income/(loss) under equity 
method (10,059) 10,015 36,288 4,907 (14,026) 

Changes in fair value of bills 
receivables at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income, net of tax 8,927 164 (4,102) 1,934 3,773 

Exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations 364,947 171,137 (183,403 ) (109,407} 403,592 

Net other comprehensive 
income/(loss) that may be 
reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods 363,815 181,316 (151,217) (102,566} 393,339 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE 
YEAR/PERIOD, NET OF TAX 252,411 (16,746) (194,150) (145,674} 462,353 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR/PERIOD 4,685,235 4,589,364 5,898,388 2,111 ,531 3,937,982 

Profit attributable to: 
Owners of the parent 4,301 ,041 4,527,451 5,975,451 2,205,686 3,430,189 
Non-controlling interests 131 ,783 78,659 117,087 51 ,519 45,440 

4,432,824 4,606,110 6,092,538 2,257,205 3,475,629 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(continued) 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December A~ril 

Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

(Unaudited) 
Total comprehensive 

income attributable to: 
Owners of the parent 4,553,361 4,487,666 5,799,899 2,068,754 3,891,835 
Non-controlling interests 131 ,874 101,698 98,489 42,777 46,147 

4,685,235 4,589,364 5,898,388 2,111,531 3,937,982 

EARNING PER SHARE 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
ORDINARY EQUITY 
HOLDERS OF THE 
PARENT 12 

Basic (RMB) 0.5088 0.5347 0.7061 0.2606 0.4109 

Diluted (RMB) 0.5088 0.5347 0.7058 0.2606 0.4106 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

31 December 2022,2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OO0 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'O00 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 13 23,843,537 25,004,158 23,686,341 23,195,203 
Investment properties 14 152,323 139,416 218,063 237,528 
Right-of-use assets 15 2,873,324 3,353,218 3,271,596 3,555,327 
Goodwill 16 47,501 49,661 48,010 51,472 
Other intangible assets 17 2,487,030 2,547,369 2,310,253 2,369,633 
Investments in joint ventures 18 206,016 258,131 302,024 320,762 
Investments in associates 19 2,033,035 2,142,781 2,122,494 2,143,869 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 
income 20 1,332,642 970,897 608,455 608,455 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 21 340,288 310,913 285,051 277,337 

Loans and advances 22 5,107,261 3,038,115 1,285,536 964,080 
Trade receivables 23 4,445,647 2,850,246 2,913,625 3,485,458 
Receivables under finance lease 24 7,423,445 9,685,274 9,897,782 9,646,498 
Contract assets 25 75,159 59,322 52,511 56,774 
Deferred tax assets 26 2,499,338 3,070,315 3,576,592 3,623,704 
Other non-current assets 27 289,620 89,197 61,424 64,608 

Total non-current assets 53,156,166 53,569,013 50,639,757 50,600,708 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Inventories 28 19,738,362 19,767,762 19,947,981 20,507,477 
Trade and bills receivables 23 27,395,762 26,573,655 28,343,222 30,499,169 
Contract assets 25 58,548 67,102 99,206 110,753 
Prepayments, other receivables 

and other assets 29 10,839,670 11 ,213,796 11,839,513 11,137,448 
Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 
income 20 294,478 365,819 456,501 470,046 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 21 14,816,602 10,848,936 11,062,402 11,567,532 

Derivative financial instruments 30 374,301 334,063 375,720 225,481 
Loans and advances 22 6,049,659 3,741,246 2,016,412 1,609,622 
Receivables under finance lease 24 4,659,811 6,346,853 6,531,876 6,675,166 
Restricted deposits 31 962,954 704,117 689,488 649,235 
Time deposits with original 

maturity of more than three 
months 31 7,880,313 9,529,137 8,566,529 12,005,332 

Cash and cash equivalents 31 12,695,771 8,141 ,859 11,576,469 7,839,768 

Total current assets 105,766,231 97,634,345 101,505,319 103,297,029 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) 

31 December 2022,2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and bills payables 32 28,906,687 22,692,726 28,654,359 32,183,153 
Other payables and 

accruals 33 16,988,748 15,497,290 14,570,090 13,559,992 
Contract liabilities 34 1,896,711 2,177,672 2,520,831 2,564,473 
Derivative financial 

instruments 30 241,152 237,420 106,762 394,220 
Placements from banks 35 6,523,735 5,435,397 3,507,970 3,526,266 
Interest-bearing bank and 

other borrowings 36 12,348,070 7,470,111 13,354,749 8,643,326 
Lease liabilities 15 153,718 253,103 215,933 279,618 
Income tax payable 665,080 663,295 738,534 868,729 

Total current liabilities 67,723,901 54,427,014 63,669,228 62,019,777 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 38,042,330 43,207,331 37,836,091 41,277,252 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 91,198,496 96,776,344 88,475,848 91,877,960 

NON-CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

Interest-bearing bank and 
other borrowings 36 21 ,624,937 23,555,728 11,556,182 11,516,577 

Lease liabilities 15 308,068 550,576 541,634 792,099 
Deferred income 37 2,130,628 2,387,473 2,347,376 2,396,381 
Deferred tax liabilities 26 734,738 825,349 792,251 845,255 
Other non-current liabilities 38 317,359 295,185 236,806 225,773 

Total non-current liabilities 25,115,730 27,614,311 15,474,249 15,776,085 

Net assets 66,082,766 69,162,033 73,001,599 76,101,875 

EQUITY 
Equity attributable to 

owners of the parent 
Share capital 39 8,493,286 8,485,740 8,474,978 8,474,978 
Treasury shares (301,174) (215,654) (142,628) (1,099,764) 
Reserves 40 56,847,607 59,758,931 63,620,894 67,639,677 

65,039,719 68,029,017 71,953,244 75,014,891 

Non-controlling interests 1,043,047 1,133,016 1,048,355 1,086,984 

Total equity 66,082,766 69,162,033 73,001,599 76,101,875 

irector Director 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
Attributable to owners of the r:,arent 

Exchange Safety Statutory Non-
Share Treasury Capital Fair value fluctuation production surplus General Other Retained controlling Total 
capital shares reserve reserve reserve fund reserve risk reserve reserve profits Total interests equity 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(note 39) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) 

At 1 January 2022 8,492,588 (619,679) 5,207,110 464,921 (2,585,661) 3,659,111 59,244 309,091 48,750,001 63,736,726 1,404,224 65,140,950 

Profit for the year 4,301,041 4,301,041 131,783 4,432,824 
Other comprehensive income for the 

year: (25,391) 364,707 (86,996) 252,320 91 252,411 
Total comprehensive income for the year (25,391) 364,707 (86,996) 4,301,041 4,553,361 131,874 4,685,235 

Exercise of the share option 698 3,847 4,545 4,545 
Repurchase obligation of ordinary shares 

under share incentive scheme - (216,250) (216,250) (216,250) 
Granted of treasury shares under share 

incentive scheme - 534,755 147,448 682,203 682,203 
Cash dividends - (3,800,033) (3,800,033) - (3,800,033) 
Dividends declared by subsidiaries to 

non-controlling interests (445,727) (445,727) 
Capital injection from non-controlling 

interests 3,250 3,250 
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 1,002 1,002 (50,538) (49,536) 
Business combination under common 

control (1,176) (1,176) (208) (1,384) 
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the 

disposal of financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive 
income ("FVOCI") (6,036) 6,036 

Recognition of share-based payment 
expenses 58,945 58,945 172 59,117 

Cancellation of share incentive scheme 20,396 20,396 20,396 
Transfer from retained profits 105,859 (105,859) 
Safety production fund provided 80,940 80,940 80,940 
Safety production fund used (80,940) (80,940) (80,940) 

At 31 December 2022 8,493,286 (301,174) 5,437,572* 433,494* (2,220,954) * -* 3,764,970* 59,244* 222,095* 49,151,186*65,039,719 1,043,047 66,082,766 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2023 
Attributable to owners of the earent 

Exchange 
Share Treasury Fair value fluctuation Safety production Statutory General risk Retained Non-controlling 
capital shares Capital reserve reserve reserve fund surplus reserve reserve Other reserve profits Total interests Total equity 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(note 39) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) 

At 1 January 2023 8,493,286 (301 ,174) 5,437,572 433,494 (2,220,954) 3,764,970 59,244 222,095 49,151,186 65,039,719 1,043,047 66,082,766 

Profrt for the year 4,527,451 4,527,451 78,659 4,606,110 
Other comprehensive income for the 

year: (225,258) 148,186 37,287 (39,785) 23,039 (16,746) 
Total comprehensive income for the 

year (225,258 ) 148,186 37,287 4,527,451 4,487,666 101 ,698 4,589,364 

Repurchase of ordinary shares (612,790) (612,790) (612,790) 
Cancellation of treasury shares (7,546) 93,249 (85,703) 
Repurchase obligation of ordinary 

shares under share incentive 
scheme 1,722 1,722 1,722 

Granted of treasury shares under 
share incentive scheme 603,339 (21 ,840) 581,499 581 ,499 

Cash dividends (1,350,137) (1 ,350,137) (1 ,350,137) 
Dividends declared by subsidiaries 

before respective acquisttions 
under common control (38,674) (38,674) (38,674) 

Dividends declared by subsidiaries to 
non-controlling interests (1,696) (1 ,696) 

Capttal injection from non-controlling 
interests 2,712 2,712 

Acquisition of non-controlling 
interests (45,032) (45,032) (38,804) (83,836) 

Disposal of non-controlling interests (1 ,187) (1,187) 25,976 24,789 
Business combination under common 

control (78 ,887) (78,887) (78,887) 
Transfer of fair value reserve upon 

the disposal of financial assets at 
FVOCI 21,825 (21 ,825) 

Recognition of share-based payment 
expenses 21 ,663 21 ,663 83 21 ,746 

Cancellation of share incentive 
scheme 23,455 23,455 23,455 

Transfer from retained proftts 198,454 (198,454) 
Safety production fund provided 69,488 69,488 69,488 
Safety production fund used --- (69,488) (69,488) (69,488) 

At 31 December 2023 8,485,740 (215,654) 5,250,041 * 230,061 * (2 ,072,768)* -* 3,963,424* 59 244* 259,382* 52,069,547* 68,029,017 1,133,016 69,162,033 

continued/ ... 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2024 
Attributable to owners of the earent 

Exchange 
Share Treasury Fair value fluctuation Safety production Statutory General risk Other Retained Non-controlling 

capital shares Capital reserve reserve reserve fund surplus reserve reserve reserve profrts Total interests Total equity 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'000 RMB'OO0 RMB'OO0 RMB'OO0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'0OD RMB'OOO 
(note 39) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) 

At 1 January 2024 8,485,740 (215,654) 5,250,041 230,061 (2,072,768) 3,963.424 59,244 259,382 52,069,547 68,029,017 1,133,016 69,162,033 

Profit for the period 5,975.451 5,975,451 117,087 6,092,538 
Other comprehensive 

income for the year (5,445) (165,297) (4,810) (175,552) (18,598) (194,150) 
Total comprehensive 

income for the year (5,445) (165,297) (4,810) 5,975.451 5,799,899 98,489 5,898,388 

Repurchase of ordinary 
shares (657,184) (657,184) (657,184) 

Cancellation of treasury 
shares (10,762) 103,963 (93,201) 

Repurchase obligation of 
ordinary shares under 
share incentive 
scheme 2,199 2,199 2,199 

Granted of treasury 
shares under share 
incentive scheme 624,048 (70,155) 553,893 553,893 

Cash dividends (1,859,656) (1,859,656) (1,859,656) 
Dividends declared by 

subsidiaries to non-
controlling interests (204,720) (204,720) 

Capijal injection from non-
controlling interests 2,100 2,100 

Disposal of non-controlling 
interests (2,036) (2,036) 19,131 17,095 

Transfer of fair value 
reserve upon the 
disposal of financial 
assets at FVOCI (233,656) 233,656 

Recognition of share-
based payment 
expenses 69,807 69,807 339 70,146 

Cancellation of share 
incentive scheme 17,305 17,305 17,305 

Transfer from retained 
profits 444,890 (444,890) 

Safety production fund 
provided 57,571 57,571 57,571 

Safety production fund 
used (57,571) (57,571) (57,571) 

At 31 December 2024 8.474,978 (1421628) 5171,761" (9,040)" (2,238,065) • -. 4,408,314" 59,244" 254 572" 55,974,108" 71,953,244 1,048,355 73,001,599 

continued/ ... 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) 

Four months ended 30 April 2024(unaudited) 
Attributable to owners of the earent 

Exchange Safety Statutory Non-
Share Treasury Capital Fair value fluctuation production surplus General risk Retained controlling 
capital shares reserve reserve reserve fund reserve reserve Other reserve prof~s Total interests Total equtty 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(note 39) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) 

At 1 January 2024 8,485,740 (215,654) 5,250,041 230,061 (2,072,768) 3,963,424 59,244 259,382 52,069,547 68,029,017 1,133,016 69,162,033 

Profit for the 
period(unaudiled) 2,205,686 2,205,686 51 ,519 2,257,205 

Other comprehensive 
income for the 
period(unaudited) 46,125 (109,403) (73,654) (136,932) (8,742) (145,674) 

Total comprehensive 
income for the 
period(unaudtted) 46,125 (109,403) (73,654) 2,205,686 2,068,754 42,777 2,111,531 

Dividends declared by 
subsidiaries to non-
controlling 
interests(unaudited) (12,696) (12,696) 

Recognttion of share-
based payment 
expenses(unaudited 
) 14,182 14,182 31 14,213 

Cancellation of share 
incentive 
scheme(unaudtted) 17,305 17,305 17,305 

Safety production fund 
provided(unaudtted) 19,190 19,190 19,190 

Safety production fund 
used(unaudited) (19,190) (19,190) (19,190) 

At 30April 
2024(unaudited) 8,485,740 (215,654) 51281 ,528 276,186 (2,182,171) 

- _ ~63,424 59,244 185,728 -- 54,275,233 _l(),_129,258 _ 1,163,128 71 ,292,386 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) 

Four months ended 30 April 2025 
Attributable to owners of the earent 

Exchange Safety Statutory Non-
Share Treasury Capital Fair value fluctuation production surplus General risk Retained controlling 
capital shares reserve reserve reserve fund reserve reserve Other reserve profits Total interests Total equity 

RMB'000 RMB'OO0 RMB'OOO RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OO0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0OO 
(note 39) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) (note 40) 

At 1 January 2025 8,474,978 (142,628) 5,171,761" (9,040)" (2,238,065 )" -. 4,408,314" 59,244" 254,572" 55,974,108" 71,953,244 1,048,355 73,001,599 

Profit for the period 3,430,189 3,430,189 45,440 3,475,629 
Other comprehensive income for 

the period: - - - 274,589 403,594 (216,537) 461,646 707 462,353 
Total comprehensive income for 

the period 274,589 403,594 (216,537) 3,430,189 3,891,835 46,147 3,937,982 

(1 ,055,41 
Repurchase of ordinary shares 9) (1,055,419) (1,055,419) 
Repurchase obligation of ordinary 

shares under share incentive 
scheme 98,283 98,283 98,283 

Dividends declared by 
subsidiaries to non-controlling 
interests (2,410) (2,410) 

Acquisition of non-controlling 
interests 3,370 3,370 3,370 

Disposal of non-controlling 
interests (5,164) (5,164) 

Recognition of share-based 
payment expenses 19,950 19,950 56 20,006 

Cancellation of share incentive 
scheme 103,628 103,628 103,628 

Safety production fund provided 19,366 19,366 19,366 
Safety production fund used --- (19,366) (19,366) (19,366) 

(1 ,099,76 
At 30 April 2025 8,474,978 4) 5,298,709 • 265,549 • (1,834,471 )" . 4,408,314 • 59,244 • 38,035 • 59,404,297 • 75,014,891 1,086,984 76 101 ,875 

*These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB56,847,607,000, RMB59,758,931 ,000, RMB63,620,894,000 and RMB67,639,677,000 in the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and 30 April 2025, respectively. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax 4,863,910 5,316,554 6,907,770 2,540,431 4,047,917 
Adjustments for: 
Interest expenses 1,116,544 1,588,767 1,285,421 510,142 315,296 
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and 

associates (26,622) (49,938) (58,328) (40,313) 32,289 
Interest income and financial service income (1,507,778) (1,777,531) (1,619,807) (596,716) (509,075) 
(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of property, 

plant and equipment (11,964) 38,394 155,484 3,046 (4,046) 
(Gains)/losses on disposal of other intangible 

assets and leasehold land included in right-of-
use assets (24,644) 744 (93,452) 122 (177) 

(Losses)/gains on disposal of investments in joint 
ventures and associates (1,285) 6,697 

Fair value losses/(gains), net: 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 384,513 (34,478) 56,631 (29,616) 65,445 
Derivative financial instruments (134,250) 13,329 (166,189) (233,875) 438,178 
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (29,046) (11,772) (96,997) 
Net realised and unrealised (gains)/losses on 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
("FVPL") and amortised cost (677,868) 270,294 (464,730) (52,005) (295,837) 

Dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI (36,769) (38,199) (23,316) (4,265) (2,649) 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 2,087,044 2,500,201 2,822,995 974,105 910,305 
Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 260,109 327,412 359,559 132,224 125,784 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 222,934 309,971 397,585 71,757 132,861 
Depreciation of investment properties 14 12,400 12,737 11,990 4,117 6,145 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 13 5,211 1,254 
Impairment of other intangible assets 17 29 1,449 
Impairment of investment properties 14 40,727 
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 59,117 21,746 70,146 14,213 20,006 

6,561,585 8,494,928 9,588,192 3,293,367 5,282,442 

Increase in inventories (1,277,124) (45,996) (259,744) (914,306) (559,496) 
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and bills receivables (4,517,824) 2,325,594 (2,003,952) (1,904,090) (2,735,903) 
(lncrease)/decrease in receivables under finance 

lease (4,795,967) (3,948,871) (397,531) 1,769,500 107,993 
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets 20,191 7,283 (25,293) (11,971) (15,810) 
(lncrease)/decrease in prepayments, other 

receivables and other assets (1,118,951) 933,826 (364,282) (118,813) 827,777 
lncrease/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 1,243,591 (4,870,325) 6,664,903 3,220,130 3,021,513 
lncrease/(decrease) in other payables and accruals 2,689,783 (968,476) (410,013) (1,003,700) (681,703) 
Increase in contract liabilities 131,173 293,195 346,960 127,468 43,643 
Decrease in loans and advances 534,737 4,367,204 3,473,810 555,700 750,798 
Increase in other non-current liabilities (79,255) (41,443) (45,475) (17,658) (9,263) 
lncrease/(decrease) in deferred income 758,935 256,845 (40,097) 22,213 49,004 
Decrease in restricted deposits 74,339 15,950 75,700 131,500 42,500 
lncrease/(decrease) in placements from banks 3,951,597 (1,090,400) (1,931,200) 957,799 46,216 

Cash generated from operations 4,176,810 5,729,314 14,671,978 6,107,139 6,169,711 
Interest received 1,219,797 1,415,770 1,141,005 546,914 354,459 
Interest paid for financial services (362,424) (391,673) (271,896) (76,771) (93,694) 
Income taxes paid (937,048) (1,045,191) (726,809) (184,519) (244,713) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 4,097,135 5,708,220 14,814,278 6,392,763 6,185,763 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(continued) 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 AJ2ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of items of property, 
plant and equipment (4,838,232) (4,092,164) (2,632,866) (1,059,120) (591,914) 

Additions to right-of-use assets (358,036) (200,259) (61,315) 
Additions to other intangible 

assets (466,374) (232,798) (244,106) (73,258) (65,394) 
Proceeds from disposal of items 

of property, plant and 
equipment 125,023 314,818 114,240 74,594 123,735 

Proceeds from disposal of 
leasehold land included in 
right-of-use assets and other 
intangible assets 1,089 80,391 134,526 9,536 1,191 

Additions to investment properties (4,480) (26,271) 
Disposal of investment properties 790 1,887 4,597 1,982 
Purchase of interest in associates (90,000) (23,000) (23,000) 
Purchase of interests in joint 

ventures (2,308) 
Disposal of investment in 

associates 20,950 11,690 
Disposal of subsidiaries (2,695) 22,665 (7,562) 
Payment for acquisition of 

financial assets at FVOCI (2,670) (64,681) 
Proceeds from disposal of 

financial assets at FVOCI 13,731 112,126 380,465 40,231 
Dividends from financial assets at 

FVOCI 36,770 37,929 23,585 4,535 2,649 
Payment for acquisition of debt 

investments at amortised cost (1,184,911) (469,011) 
Proceeds from disposal of debt 

investments at amortised cost 2,334,794 489,838 
Interest received from debt 

investments at amortised cost 432,119 104,146 271,090 102,272 24,113 
Payment for acquisition of 

financial assets at FVPL (3,462,885) (2,909,278) (4,912,613) (1,584,383) (618,724) 
Proceeds from disposal of 

financial assets at FVPL 3,058,038 6,944,437 4,670,213 1,117,767 53,186 
Investment income from financial 

assets at FVPL 651,799 600,756 487,428 131,980 180,475 
Payment for acquisition of 

derivative financial instruments (3,310,684) (1,517,366) (2,484,079) (1,940,228) (1,005,759) 
Proceeds from disposal of 

derivative financial instruments 2,966,987 498,515 2,208,495 1,761,566 1,057,663 
Dividends from associates 7,480 22,216 26,722 165 3,060 
Dividends from joint ventures 80,044 2,318 
Interest received from restricted 

deposits and lime deposits 
with original maturity of more 
than three months 88,900 497,201 554,538 76,862 146,850 

Decrease/(increase) in lime 
deposits with original maturity 
of more than three months 832,388 (1,704,935) 850,185 (2,807,862) (3,449,421) 

(lncrease)/decrease in restricted 
deposits (41,460) 65,471 (61,070) 43,533 (2,247) 

Net cash flows used in investing 
activities (1,836,614) (2,693,824) (1,157,848) (4,124,810) (3,674,988) 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(continued) 

Years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the four months ended 30 April 2025 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from issue of shares 696,919 607,666 573,298 17,305 
New bank loans and other borrowings 58,425,924 25,904,569 28,229,878 9,988,555 5,522,561 
Repayment of bank loans and other 

borrowings (49,250,095) (30, 131 ,222) (34,938,832) (8,436,434) (10,476,673) 
Payment for repurchase of own shares (621 ,115) (759,761) (102,578) (953,213) 
Interest paid (749,003) (1 ,198,557) (1 ,035,075) (123,365) (242 ,568) 
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (3,800,033) (1,350,137) (1,859,656) 
Dividends paid to subsidiaries before 

respective acquisitions under common 
control (38,674) 

Dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-
controlling interests (174 ,777) (276,699) (66,170) (12,702) (2,447) 

Lease payments (168,007) (291 ,992) (384,158) (60,759) (106,320) 
Listing expenses paid (402) 
Payment for business combination under 

common control 240 (78,887) 
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (154,729) (93,417) 

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing 
activities 4,826,439 (7,529,791) (10,279,150) 1,270,022 (6,259,062) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,086,960 (4,515,395) 3,377,280 3,537,975 (3,748,287) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of year/period 5,694,253 12,695,771 8,141 ,859 8,141 ,859 11 ,576,469 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 
net (85 ,442) (38,517) 57,330 (19,724) 11,586 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR/PERIOD 12,695,771 8,141,859 11 ,576,469 11,660,110 7,839,768 

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and bank balances 12,499,609 7,838,573 11 ,127,158 11 ,559,204 7,737,053 
Placements with banks 196,162 303,286 449,311 100,906 102,715 

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in 
the statements of financial position and 
the statements of cash flows 12,695,771 8,141,859 11,576,469 11,660,110 7,839,768 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

31 December 2022,2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 341,942 58,244 40,857 39,583 
Investment properties 6,698 4,257 1,756 512 
Right-of-use assets 46,911 326 217 181 
Other intangible assets 82,210 158,242 196,015 196,871 
Investments in subsidiaries 53 22,428,536 23,577,030 23,239,090 23,919,333 
Investments in associates 19 823,909 911,797 900,628 916,896 
Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 20 1,207,022 909,935 548,771 548,771 
Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss 21 239,945 239,253 236,254 238,131 
Trade receivables 23 64,656 
Contract assets 42,920 35,545 28,973 16,527 
Deferred tax assets 26 78,645 238,288 208,488 226,752 
Other non-current assets 17,412 

Total non-current assets 25,316,150 26,132,917 25,401 ,049 26,168,213 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Inventories 28 648,769 778,451 707,219 586,443 
Trade and bills receivables 23 869,342 1,578,003 1,916,582 1,504,997 
Contract assets 22,925 36,441 37,888 50,502 
Prepayments, other receivables and 

29 
other assets 3,191,764 7,166,951 7,997,357 5,368,121 

Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 20 55,644 25,619 50,567 63,640 

Financial assets at fair value through 
21 

profit or loss 2,528,750 617,658 302,687 1,246,166 
Derivative financial instruments 145,752 20,029 86,835 31,744 
Restricted deposits 31 5,920,734 4,550,946 6,628,113 2,589,202 
Time deposits with original maturity 31 

of more than three months 3,604,480 6,147,375 243,962 2,242,235 
Cash and cash equivalents 31 3,494,455 707,789 3,990,624 1,195,471 

Total current assets 20,482,615 21,629,262 21,961,834 14,878,521 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade payables 32 926,964 1,884,365 2,130,936 1,785,826 
Other payables and accruals 33 12,970,225 15,263,104 12,765,951 10,088,365 
Contract liabilities 19,647 23,973 61,166 76,845 
Derivative financial instruments 3,554 29,726 220 77,151 
Interest-bearing bank and other 36 

borrowings 3,089,969 391 ,527 4,335,371 1,471,548 
Lease liabilities 106 111 116 118 
Tax payable 1,226 1,226 1,226 1,226 

Total current liabilities 17,011,691 17,594,032 19,294,986 13,501,079 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,470,924 4,035,230 2,666,848 1,377,442 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 28,787,074 30,168,147 28,067,897 27,545,655 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY(continued) 

31 December 2022,2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 36 8,643,000 9,683,046 5,081 ,500 5,246,500 
Lease liabilities 104 360 122 
Deferred income 53,501 5,855 4,505 4,194 
Other non-current liabilities 38 360,504 336,143 273,414 254,382 

Total non-current liabilities 9,057,109 10,025,404 5,359,541 5,505,076 

Net assets 19,729,965 20,142,743 22,708,356 22,040,579 

EQUITY 
Share capital 39 8,493,286 8,485,740 8,474,978 8,474,978 
Treasury shares 39 {301 ,174) (215,654) (142,628) (1 ,099,764) 
Reserves 40 11 ,537,853 11 ,872,657 14,376,006 14,665,365 

Total equity 19,729,965 20,142,743 22,708,356 22,040,579 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Company is a joint stock company with limited liability established in the People's Republic 
of China ("PRC"). The registered office of the Company is located at Changsha, Hunan 
Province, China. 

During the Relevant Periods, the Company's subsidiaries were involved in the following 
principal activities: the production, sale and maintenance of concrete machinery, excavating 
machinery, hoisting machinery, road machinery and piling machinery, and financial services. 

As at 30 April 2025, the Company had direct and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, the 
particulars of which are set out below: 

Place and date 
of Nominal value 

incorporation/ of issued 
registration and ordinary/ Percentage of equity 

place of registered attributable to the Principal 
Name operations share capital Com~an~ activities 

Direct Indirect 
Manufacturing 

SANY Heavy Machinery and sales of 
(Chongqing) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland excavating 

-= - lt:!IOl~)tHIH;-'ffJ China RMB100,000 100 0 machinery 

Beijing SANY Intelligent Manufacturing 
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland and sales of 

~t * .=: - 1& m:Htt~ ~trn-15 China RMB20,000 100 pile driver 

Manufacturing 
SANY Heavy Machinery Co., and sales of 

Ltd. PRC/Mainland excavating 
-= - lt ii~ ~tU;-ifJ China RMB3,450,470 87 13 machinery 

Manufacturing 
Shanghai SANY Heavy and sales of 

Machinery Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland medium 
J:.ili:/,.=-lt:!1!¥i1:fu'~~[0'fiJ China RMB800,000 100 excavators 

Shanghai Huaxing Digital Software 
Technology Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland technology 

J:. iii:/,¥ 1JOJt'f'.f4ttM[ 0 ierJ China RMB13,180 100 service 

Manufacturing 
and sales of 

SANY Automobile truck-mounted 
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland concrete pump 

.=:-A]!:[1Mm:~~[0'fiJ China RMB1 ,008,300 100 and truck mixer 

Zhejiang SANY Equipment Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland and sales of 

il/iIT.=-~m'~~[0ifl China RMB431,800 100 crawler crane 

SANY Automobile Hoisting Manufacturing 
Machinery Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland and sales of 

.=: - A ]I[ iE91[ ri1JixM[ 0 'fiJ China RMB163,400 100 truck crane 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued) 

As at 30 April 2025, the Company had direct and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, the 
particulars of which are set out below: (continued) 

Name 

Hunan SANY Medium 
Hoisting Machinery Co., 
Ltd. 

j;\Jl ]¥j .=: - 'P ru! iE9:I: ~1ltl!1f ~~ 0 
irJ 

SANY Auto Finance Co. Ltd. 
("Sany Auto Finance") 

.=:-A;lf[~~1l~~0ir.l 

SANY Financial Leasing Co., 
Ltd. ("SANY Financial 
Leasing") 

.=: - ii\HHil iHH~ 0ir.l 

SANY International 
Development Limited 

Putzmeister Holding GmbH. 

SANY Heavy Industry India 
Private Limited 

Place and date 
of 

incorporation/ 
registration and 

place of 
operations 

PRC/Mainland 
China 

PRC/Mainland 
China 

PRC/Mainland 
China 

Hong Kong 

Germany 

India 

Nominal value 
of issued 
ordinary/ 

registered 
share capital 

RMB100,000 

RMB2,683,551. 
4 

RMB1 ,006,837. 
3 

USD306,920 

EUR40,000 

INR3,644,840 

Percentage of equity 
attributable to the Comean}'. 

Direct Indirect 

100 

96 

95 

100 

99 

22 78 

Principal 
activities 

Manufacturing 
and sales of 

medium truck 
crane 

Financial 
service 

Finance lease 
service 

Sales of 
construction 

machinery 

Manufacturing 
and sales of 

concrete 
machinery 

Manufacturing 
and sales of 
construction 
machinery in 

India 

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, 
principally affected the results for the Relevant Periods or formed a substantial portion of the 
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the 
directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements are prepared for the purpose of preparation of financial information for 
inclusion in the prospectus of the Company in connection with the listing of the shares of the 
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. They have been 
prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, which comprise all standards and 
interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board. All lFRS Accounting 
Standards effective for the accounting period commencing from 1 January 2025, together with 
the relevant transitional provisions, have been early adopted by the Group throughout the 
Relevant Periods and the period covered by the Interim Comparative Information. 

The Group has previously prepared financial statements under Chinese Accounting Standards 
for Business Enterprises ("CASBE") as issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People's 
Republic of China. These financial statements are the first financial statements prepared by 
the Group in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. Accordingly, IFRS 1 (Revised) 
"First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards" has been applied in 
preparing these financial statements and the transition date is 1 January 2022. Details of the 
first-time adoption of IFRS Accounting Standards are disclosed in Note 2.2 below. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention , except for 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments designated at fair 
value through other comprehensive income which have been measured at fair value. They are 
presented in Renminbi ("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when 
otherwise indicated. 

2.2 FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRSs 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Group's opening statement offinancial 
position was prepared as at 1 January 2022, being the date of transition to IFRS Accounting 
Standards. 

Reconciliation of equity 
As at 1 January 2022 (date of transition to IFRS Accounting Standards) and 31 December 2024 
(the end of the latest period of the most recent annual financial statements under CASBE), there 
were no reclassifications or remeasurements to equity arising from the transition from CASBE 
to IFRS Accounting Standards. 

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income 
During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the latest period of the most recent annual financial 
statements under CASBE), there were no reclassifications or remeasurements to total 
comprehensive income arising from the transition from CASBE to IFRS Accounting Standards. 

Reconciliation of cash flows 
The transition of CASBE to IFRS Accounting Standards did not have any material adjustments 
to the cash flows. 

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, that have 
been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements. The Group intends to apply 
these revised and new IFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable, when they become effective. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 
IAS28 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and 
IFRS 7 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and 
IFRS 7 

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture1 

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 
Financial lnstruments2 

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity2 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

IFRS 18 
IFRS 19 
Annual improvements to IFRS 

Accounting Standards -
Volume 11 

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements3 
Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures3 
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and 

IAS 72 

1 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 

The Group is in the process of making a detailed assessment of the impact of these new and 
revised IFRS Accounting Standards upon initial application. So far, the Group considers that 
these new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, except for IFRS 18, may result in changes 
in certain accounting policies and no significant impact on the Group's financial performance 
and financial position is expected in the period of initial application. The application of IFRS 18 
is not expected to have a material impact on the financial position of the Group but is expected 
to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and 
statement of cash flows and disclosures in the future financial information . The Group will 
continue to assess the impact of IFRS 18 on the Group's financial information. 

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition 
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the 
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for 
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure 
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the 
acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are 
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and 
assets includes an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the 
ability to create outputs. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed 
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, 
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the 
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Business combinations(continued) 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the 
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair 
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is 
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the 
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair 
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or 
loss as a gain on bargain purchase. 

After initial recognition , goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual 
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit 
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. 

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in 
a subsequent period. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) 
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the 
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the 
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based 
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit 
retained . 

Business combination under common control 
A business combination involving entities under common control refers to a combination where 
all entities involved are ultimately controlled by the same party both before and after the 
transaction , and such control is not transitory. 

The acquirer shall recognise the acquired assets and liabilities including any goodwill previously 
recognised by the ultimate controlling party in its acquisition of the acquiree at their carrying 
amounts in the ultimate controlling party's consolidated financial statements as of the 
combination date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and 
the carrying amount of the consideration paid shall be adjusted against share premium. If share 
premium is insufficient, the balance shall be offset against retained earnings. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Investments in associates and joint ventures 

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant influence 
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is 
not control or joint control over those policies. 

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually 
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in the consolidated 
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of 
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and 
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been 
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises 
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates 
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates or 
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets 
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as 
part of the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the 
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference 
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence 
or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Fair value measurement 

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, certain debt and equity investments 
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for 
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market 
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by 
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data and other information are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Fair value measurement (continued) 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the 
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or 
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of 
the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication 
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised 
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount 
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any 
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Related parties 

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: 

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person 

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; 

or 

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or 
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the 

Group; 

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: 

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; 
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity ( or of a parent, subsidiary 

or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); 
(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party; 
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the 

third entity; 
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either 

the Group or an entity related to the Group; 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); 
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member 

of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and 
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management 

personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group. 

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant 
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. 

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it 
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major 
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant 
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group 
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them 
accordingly. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, 
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual 
rates used for this purpose are as follows: 

Buildings 
Machinery equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Leasing out equipment under operating leases 
Office and other equipment 
Leasehold improvements and renovation costs 
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2.43% to 6.67% 
6.47% to 25.00% 
9.70% to 12.50% 

16.17% to 25.00% 
6.47% to 50.00% 
5.00% to 33.33% 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued) 

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of 
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated 
separately . Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation methods are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end. 

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the 
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the relevant asset. 

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It 
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed 
and ready for use. 

Investment properties 

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. 
Investment properties include land use rights leased out, land use rights held for transfer upon 
capital appreciation, and buildings leased out. 

An investment property is measured initially at cost. If the economic benefits relating to an 
investment property will probably flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent 
costs incurred for the property are included in the cost of the investment property. Otherwise, 
subsequent costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

The Group uses the cost model for the subsequent measurement of investment properties, and 
adopts a depreciation or amortisation policy for the investment properties which is consistent 
with that for buildings and land use rights. 

It is reclassified at its carrying amount at the date of the transfer when an owner-occupied 
property or inventory is transferred to an investment property, or an investment property is 
transferred to owner-occupied properties. 

When an investment property is transferred to owner-occupied properties, it is reclassified as a 
fixed asset or an intangible asset at the date of the transfer. When an owner-occupied property 
is transferred out for earning rentals or for capital appreciation, the fixed asset or intangible 
asset is reclassified as an investment property at the date of the transfer. If it is transferred to 
an investment property measured by the cost model, its book value at the date of the transfer 
shall be used as the value of the investment property; if it is transferred to an investment 
property measured by the fair value model, its fair value at the date of the transfer shall be used 
as the value of the investment property. 

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its 
disposal. The net amount of proceeds from the sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an 
investment property net of its carrying amount and related taxes is recognised in profit or loss 
for the current period. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For 
this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its 
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets 
or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary 
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group 
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale. 

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties and financial assets) 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values 
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale 
are not depreciated or amortised. 

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible 
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life 
are reviewed at least at each financial year end. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually 
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of 
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite 
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment 
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis. Trademarks are deemed to be 
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible 
assets are as follows: 

Categories 
Putzmeister franchise 
Proprietary technology 
Software 
Others* 

Estimated useful lives 
10 years 
5 years 
5 years 

5 to 50 years 

*The others of intangible assets mainly included multiple technology platform developed by the 
company and the estimated useful life is determined by the company based on its historical 
experience. 

Research and development costs 
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred. 

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred only when 
the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it 
will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, 
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete 
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product 
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred. 
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2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Leases 

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset 
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Group as a lessee 

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to 
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying 
assets. 

(a) Right-of-use assets 

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of 
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated 
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the 
assets as follows: 

Buildings 
Machinery equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Office equipment 
Leasehold land 

1 to 10 years 
1to10years 

1 to 4 years 
1 to 4 years 

50 years 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost 
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful 
life of the asset. 

(b) Lease liabilities 

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The 
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense 
in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing 
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to 
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the 
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease 
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from a 
change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying 
asset. 
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2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Leases (continued) 

Group as a lessee (continued) 

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (that is 
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do 
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value 
assets to leases that are considered to be of low value. 

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Group as a lessor 

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a lease 
modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. 

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease 
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each 
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its 
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned. 

Investments and other financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With 
the exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing component 
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a 
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, 
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. 
Trade and bills receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which 
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined 
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition" below. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial 
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit 
or loss, irrespective of the business model. 
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2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Investments and other financial assets (continued) 

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial 
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will 
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial 
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the 
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets 
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a 
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. 
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified 
and measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, 
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest 
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments) 
For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, 
foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in profit or loss 
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The 
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon 
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is 
recycled to profit or loss. 

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity 
investments) 
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as 
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they 
meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held 
for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are 
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, 
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the 
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity 
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to 
impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial 
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which the Group had not 
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on 
the equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of 
payment has been established. 

31 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

Investments and other financial assets (continued) 

Subsequent measurement (continued) 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is 
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic 
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same 
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid 
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are 
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment 
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows. 

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not 
accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is 
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. 

Derecognition of financial assets 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated 
statement of financial position) when: 
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and 
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments 
not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, 
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows 
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 
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Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

General approach 
EGLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, EGLs are provided for credit losses 
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month EGL). 
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life 
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime EGL). 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument 
has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and 
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, 
including historical and forward-looking information. 

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 360 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Group. 

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows. 

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at 
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are classified 
within the following stages for measurement of EGLs except for trade and bills receivables and 
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below. 

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-
month EGLs 

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss 
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime EGLs 

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not 
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime EGLs 

Simplified approach 
For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing 
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a 
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating EGLs. 
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime EGLs at each reporting date. The Group has 
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 
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Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or payables. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals, 
derivative financial instruments, placements from banks, lease liabilities, and interest-bearing 
bank and other borrowings. 

Subsequent measurement 
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading . 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 
as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held 
for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit or 
loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and borrowings) 
After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-bearing borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the 
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate 
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment 
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee 
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance 
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in "Impairment of financial assets" ; and (ii) 
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 
recognised. 
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Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled, or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or 
loss. 

Derivative financial instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and 
interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such 
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives 
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is 
negative. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit 
or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit 
or loss. 

Inventories 

The Group's inventories include raw materials, semi-finished goods and finished goods. 

Inventories are initially carried at planned cost. The difference between the planned cost and 
the actual cost of raw materials is accounted for through the cost difference account. The cost 
difference belonging to inventories transferred out is carried forward periodically to adjust the 
planned cost to the actual cost. The cost of inventories consumed and transferred out is 
determined on the weighted average basis. Turnover materials include low value consumables 
and packing materials, wh ich are written off immediately. 

The Group adopts a perpetual inventory system. 

At the end of the reporting period, inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. The inventories are written down below cost to net realisable value and the write-down 
is recognised in profit or loss if the cost is higher than the net real isable value. When the 
circumstances that previously caused the inventories to be written down below cost no longer 
exist, in which case the net realisable value of inventories becomes higher than the carrying 
amount, the amount of the write-down is reversed . The reversal is limited to the amount of the 
original write-down, and is recognised in profit or loss. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant 
taxes. Except for spare parts and other inventories with low unit prices, the reserve for inventory 
price reduction shall be calculated according to a single inventory item. Spare parts and other 
inventories with low unit prices shall be assessed for asset impairment according to their actual 
conditions. 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and at 
banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that 
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, which are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management. 

Special reserve - safety production fund 

Provisions for the Group's obligations for safety operations are based on the Group's revenue 
arising from the sale of construction machinery and equipment per year in accordance with 
related PRC rules and regulations. The Group records a corresponding cost when such 
expenditure for safety operations is incurred. The remaining provisions for the Group's 
obligations for safety operations are recorded as a special reserve - safety production fund. 
The remaining provisions are not recorded in profit or loss while the Group decreases its 
retained profits when it recognises the special reserve - safety production fund . 

Provisions 

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result 
of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present 
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to 
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the 
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss. 

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of construction machinery and 
equipment during the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted 
by the Group are initially recognised based on sales volume and past experience of the level of 
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate. The warranty-related 
cost is revised annually. 

Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside 
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period , taking into consideration 
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. 

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of 
each reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes. 
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Income tax (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
• when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give 
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and 

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the 
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised, except: 
• when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from 

the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary 
differences; and 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to 
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority 
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current 
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or 
assets are expected to be settled or recovered. 
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Government grants 

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that 
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with . When the grant 
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods 
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and 
is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual 
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by 
way of a reduced depreciation charge. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the Group has fulfilled its 
performance obligations in the contracts, that is, when the customer obtains control of relevant 
goods or services. Control of relevant goods or services refers to the ability to direct the use of 
the goods or the provision of the services, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits 
from the goods or services. 

Sale of products 
A contract for the sale of products between the Group and the customer usually only includes 
the performance obl igation to transfer the products, with no continued management and 
effective control of the products associated with ownership. The Group generally recognises 
the revenue when the relevant products are delivered to customer and confirmed as accepted 
by the customer, on the basis of taking full consideration of the following factors: the present 
right to collect payment for the products, the transfer of the key risks and returns in the product 
ownership, the transfer of the legal ownership of the products, the transfer of the physical asset 
of the products, and the acceptance of the products by the customer. 

Variable consideration 
The Group determines the best estimate of variable consideration by using the expected value 
method or the most likely amount method. However, the transaction price including variable 
consideration is limited to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with 
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

Significant financing components 
When the contract contains a significant financing component, the Group determines the 
transaction price based on an amount that reflects the price that a customer would have paid 
for the goods or services in cash at the time of obtaining control of the goods or services, and 
amortises the difference between the transaction price and the consideration promised in the 
contract under the effective interest method within the contract period using the discount rate 
that discounts the nominal amount of the contract consideration to the current selling price of 
the goods or services. The Group does not consider the effects of a significant financing 
component in the contract if it is expected that the period between when the customer obtains 
control of the goods or services and when the customer pays for such goods or services will be 
one year or less. 
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Revenue recognition (continued) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 

Warranties 
The Group provides warranties in connection with the sale of construction machinery and 
equipment in accordance with the contract and the relevant laws and regulations, etc., which 
are assurance-type warranties that provides the customer with the assurance that the good 
complies with agreed-upon specifications. In assessing whether quality assurance is provided 
as a separate service other than providing guarantee to the customers that the goods sold meet 
the established quality standards, the Group considers factors such as whether the quality 
assurance is a statutory requirement, the term of quality assurance and nature of the Group's 
commitment to perform its obligations. 

Revenue from other sources 

Rental income 
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting 
period in which they are incurred. 

Financial services 
Interest income or interest expense for financial services is measured at the effective interest 
rate. The effective interest rate is the rate at which a financial instrument's expected future cash 
inflows or outflows are discounted to the net book value of the financial instrument or financial 
liability over its expected lifetime or less. The measurement of interest income takes into 
account the contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes all fees attributable to the 
effective interest rate component and all transaction costs, but does not include future loan 
losses. If the Group's estimates of future revenues or expenses change, the carrying value of 
financial assets or liabilities may also be adjusted accordingly. Since the adjusted book value 
is calculated at the original effective interest rate, the change is also included in interest income 
or interest expense. 

Contract assets 

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer before being unconditionally entitled 
to the consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is recognised for the earned 
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details 
of which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets. They are 
reclassified to trade and bills receivables when the right to the consideration becomes 
unconditional. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is 
earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are 
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of 
the related services to the customer). 

Share-based payments 

A share-based payment is classified as either an equity-settled share-based payment or a cash­
settled share-based payment. An equity-settled share-based payment is a transaction in which 
the Group receives services and uses shares or other equity instruments as consideration for 
settlement. 
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Share-based payments (continued) 

An equity-settled share-based payment in exchange for services received from employees is 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the employees. If such an equity­
settled share-based payment vests immediately, the related costs or expenses at an amount 
equal to the fair value on the grant date are recognised, with a corresponding increase in capital 
reserves; if such an equity-settled share-based payment does not vest until the completion of 
services for a vesting period, or until the achievement of a specified performance condition, the 
Group recognises the services received for the current period as related costs and expenses at 
the end of each reporting period during the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in 
capital reserves at an amount equal to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. 
Please refer to note 41 for the fair value of equity instruments. 

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service 
conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised . Where awards include a market or 
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market 
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service 
conditions are satisfied. 

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based award are modified, as a minimum an 
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award 
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair 
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at 
the date of modification. 

Where an equity-settled share-based award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the 
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised 
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either 
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled 
award, and is designated as a replacement on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new 
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the 
previous paragraph. 

Employee benefits 

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or compensation other than share-based 
payments given by the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or for 
termination of employment. Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post­
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term employee benefits. Benefits 
given by the Group to an employee's spouse, children and dependents, family members of 
deceased employees and other beneficiaries are also considered employee benefits. 

Short-term employee benefits 
The Company recognises, in the accounting period in which an employee provides service, 
short-term employee benefits actually incurred as liabilities, with a corresponding charge to 
profit or loss or the cost of a relevant asset. 

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) 
The employees of the Group participate in a pension scheme and unemployment insurance 
managed by the local government. The corresponding expenses shall be included in the cost 
of related assets or profit or loss. 
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Employee benefits (continued) 

Post-employment benefits (defined benefit plan) 
The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires contributions to be made to 
a separately administered fund. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under 
the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected accumulative benefit unit method. 

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and 
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the statement of financial 
position with a corresponding debit or credit to equity through other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of the date of the plan 
amendment and the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs or termination 
benefits. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under 
administrative expenses and financial expenses in profit or loss: service costs comprising 
current service costs, past service costs, and gains and losses on settlements; net interest 
comprising interest income on plan assets, interest costs on the defined benefit obligation and 
interest on the effect of the asset ceiling. 

Termination benefits 
The Group provides termination benefits to employees and recognises an employee benefits 
liability for termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss, at the earlier of 
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits resulting from an employment 
termination plan or a curtailment proposal and when the Group recognises costs involving the 
payment of termination benefits. 

Other long-term employee benefits 
Other long-term employee benefits provided to employees shall be recognised in accordance 
with the relevant provisions of post-employment benefits and used to measure net liabilities or 
net assets of other long-term employee benefits, but the changes are recognised in profit or 
loss for the period or related asset costs. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of 
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or 
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing 
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. 

Dividends 

The Company's cash dividends are recognised as liabilities upon approval by the shareholders' 
general meeting. Final dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements. 
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Foreign currencies 

The financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the Company's functional currency. 
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the 
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign 
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their 
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates 
of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary 
item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change 
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively) . 

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income 
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance 
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises 
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If 
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date 
for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration. 

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are 
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities 
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the 
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange 
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are 
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative 
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss. 

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas 
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. 
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are 
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. 

Share repurchase 

The payment and transaction costs incurred on the repurchase of the Group's own equity 
instruments are accounted for as a deduction from equity . Other than share-based payments, 
the issuance (including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of the Group's own equity 
instruments shall be treated as changes in equity. 
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The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the Financial statements. 

Operating leases - the Group as lessor 
The Group has entered into lease agreements on its investment property portfolio. Based on 
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the agreements, the Group has determined these 
leases to be operating leases, and it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of these properties. 

Business models 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Group's business 
model for managing financial assets. When determining the business model, the Group 
considers the methods used to evaluate and report financial asset performance to key 
management, the risks affecting the performance of financial assets and the risk management, 
and the manner in which the relevant management receives remuneration. When assessing 
whether the objective is to collect contractual cash flows, the Group needs to analyse and judge 
the reason, timing, frequency and value of the sale before the maturity date of the financial 
assets. 

Contractual cash flow characteristics 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's 
contractual cash flow characteristics, and the judgements on whether the contractual cash flows 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, including 
assessing the modification of the time value of money, determining whether there is any 
significant difference from the benchmark cash flow and evaluating whether the fair value of the 
prepayment features is insignificant for financial assets with prepayment features, etc. 

Estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the end of each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. 
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 

Estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Provision for expected credit losses on financial instruments and contract assets 
The Group uses the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment of financial 
instruments. The Group is required to perform significant judgement and estimation and take 
into account all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking information. 
When making such judgements and estimates, the Group infers the expected changes in the 
debtor's credit risk based on historical repayment data combined with economic policies, 
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and other factors. The different estimates may impact 
the impairment assessment, and the provision for impairment may also not be representative 
of the actual impairment loss in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's 
financial instruments and contract assets is disclosed in note 22, note 23, note 24, note 25 and 
note 29 to the Financial statements. 

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets (other than goodwill) 
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-current assets 
other than financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite 
useful lives are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an indication exists. 
Other non-current assets other than financial assets are tested for impairment when there are 
indications that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the 
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher 
of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash flows expected 
to be derived from it. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available 
data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or 
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the assets. When the 
calculations of the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset 
or asset group are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from 
the asset or asset group and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present 
value of those cash flows. 

Development expenditures 
Development expenditures are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy for research 
and development costs in note 2.3 to the Financial statements. Determining the amounts to be 
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash 
flows from the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. 

Deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. Further details are disclosed in note 26 to the Financial statements. 

44 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 

Estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Provisions 
Based on the terms of the contracts, existing knowledge and historical experience, the Group 
estimates and makes provision for product quality assurance, expected contract losses, 
liquidated damages of late delivery, etc. Where a contingent event has formed a current 
obligation and the performance of such a current obligation is likely to result in an outflow of 
economic benefits from the Group, the Group recognises the contingent event as an anticipated 
liability in accordance with the best estimate of the expenditure required to fulfil the relevant 
current obligation. The recognition and measurement of the estimated liabilities depend largely 
on the judgement of the management. In making the judgement, the Group shall assess the 
risk, uncertainty and time value of the currency associated with such contingencies. 

The Group provides after-sales quality maintenance commitment for the selling, repairing and 
renovating of goods to the customers, and recognises the estimated liabilities for the 
commitment. The Company's recent maintenance experience data has been taken into account 
in the estimated liabilities, and the risks and uncertainties related to the maintenance matters 
have been comprehensively considered. Any increase or decrease in this provision may affect 
profits and losses in the future. 

The Company provides mortgage and financing guarantees to financing institutions for 
customers with financing needs, and makes estimated liabilities based on the losses that may 
occur in the guarantee obligations. The estimated liabilities have taken into account data such 
as the proportion of the guarantee obligation actually performed and the proportion of actual 
losses incurred after performing the guarantee obligation, as well as factors such as risks, 
uncertainties and time value of money related to the guarantee obligation. Any increase or 
decrease in this provision may affect profits and losses in the future. 

Inventory provision determined on net realisable value 
According to the inventory accounting policy, the Group measures the inventory at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value, and makes inventory provision for the obsolete inventory, slow­
moving inventory and the inventory of which the cost is higher than their net realisable value. 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews whether individual inventory items are 
obsolete or stagnant and whether their net realisable value is lower than their cost. The 
impairment of inventory is based on the assessment of the inventory's merchantability and its 
net realisable value. Identification of inventory impairment requires management to make 
judgements and estimates based on solid evidence and factors such as the purpose of holding 
the inventory and the impact of events after the end of each reporting period. The difference 
between the actual result and the original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories 
and the accrual or reversal of inventory provision during the period in which the estimate is 
changed. 

Fair value of unlisted equity investments 
The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a market-based valuation 
technique as detailed in note 51 to the Financial statements. The valuation requires the Group 
to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, 
the Group makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group 
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note 20 
and note 21 to the Financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 

Estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Share-based payment 
The Company implemented restricted shares and employee stock ownership plan to exchange 
the services provided by employees. The equity instruments granted under the plan are 
measured at fair value on the grant date. If the instruments granted only vest after the respective 
employees complete a specific period of service or achieve a performance condition, an 
expense during the vesting period is amortised using the straight-line method based on the best 
estimate of the exercisable number of the instruments and capital reserves are increased by a 
corresponding amount. 

At the end of each reporting period during the vesting period, the Company determines whether 
the performance forecast satisfies the prescriptive conditions of the incentive plan according to 
the recent development. The best estimate of exercisable number of instruments is revised if 
recent evidence indicates that the estimated future performance of the Company does not meet 
the prescriptive conditions of the incentive plan. 

The Company's management's judgement is necessary in forecasting the performance to 
determine whether the vesting conditions are satisfied. 

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products 
and services and has six reportable operating segments as follows: 

(a) Concrete machinery segment: Research, development, production and sale of concrete 
pump trucks, concrete delivery pumps, batching plants, truck mixers, concrete truck­
mounted pumps and so on; 

(b) Excavating machinery segment: Research, development, production and sale of excavating 
machinery products such as large excavators, medium excavators, small excavators and 
so on; 

(c) Hoisting machinery segment: Research, development, production and sale of hoisting 
machinery products such as truck cranes , all-terrain cranes, crawler cranes, tower cranes 
and so on; 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 

(d) Piling machinery segment: Research, development, production and sale of piling machinery 
products such as rotary drilling rigs, hydraulic grabs, continuous wall grabs and so on; 

(e) Road machinery segment: Research, development, production and sale of pavement 
machinery products such as rollers, motor graders, pavers, milling machines, asphalt 
batching plants and so on; and 

(f) Financial service segment: Construction machinery product loans, finance lease, and 
interbank lending and borrowing among financial institutions. 

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment 
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment gross profit. 

The assets and liabilities of the operating segments will not be disclosed as they are not 
regularly reported to the Group's key operating decision-makers, and the assets and liabilities 
are governed by the Group. 

Year ended 31 
December Concrete Excavating Hoisting Piling Road Financial 
2022 machinery machinery machinery machinery machinery services Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Segment 
revenue 
(note 5) 

Sales to 
external 
customers 15,080,363 35,755,616 12,669,948 3,065,233 3,080,834 804,035 10,382,501 80,838,530 

Segment 
results 3,130,432 9,167,225 1,757,631 1,062,439 643,079 425,781 2,109,704 18,296,291 

Reconciliation: 
Selling and 

marketing 
expenses (4,930,139) 

Administrative 
expenses 
and 
research 
and 
development 
costs (9,979,136) 

Finance costs (624,875) 
Other gains or 

expenses 2,101 ,769 

Profit before tax 4,863,910 
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 

Year ended 31 
December Concrete Excavating Hoisting Piling Road Financial 
2023 machinery machinery machinery machinery machinery services Others Total 

RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'00O RMB'O00 

Segment 
revenue 
(note 5) 

Sales to 
external 
customers 15,314,574 27,635,692 12,999,205 2,085,179 2,485,494 797,211 12,701 ,581 74,018,936 

Segment 
results 3,317,262 8,527,198 2,990,011 680,306 706,114 405,538 2,949,781 19,576,210 

Reconciliation: 
Selling and 

marketing 
expenses (5,101 ,926) 

Administrative 
expenses 
and 
research 
and 
development 
costs (8,981,778) 

Finance costs (1,013,550) 
Other gains or 

expenses 837,598 

Profit before tax 5,316,554 

Year ended 31 
December Concrete Excavating Hoisting Piling Road Financial 
2024 machinery machinery machinery machinery machinery services Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Segment 
revenue 
(note 5) 

Sales to 
external 
customers 14,368,034 30,373,600 13,115,027 2,076,069 3,001 ,227 609,988 14,839,434 78,383,379 

Segment 
results 2,947,573 9,666,046 3,570,786 679,935 825,325 346,557 2,866,767 20,902,989 

Reconciliation: 
Selling and 

marketing 
expenses (5,464,214) 

Administrative 
expenses 
and 
research 
and 
development 
costs (8,868,321) 

Finance costs (845,080) 
Other gains or 

expenses 1,182,396 

Profit before tax 6,907,770 

48 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 

Four months 
ended 30 
April 2024 Concrete Excavating Hoisting Piling Road Financial 

(unaudited) machinery machinery machinery machinery machinery services Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Segment 
revenue 
(note 5) 

Sales to 
external 
customers 4,309,057 9,817,141 4,395,126 813,084 945,428 221,892 4,343,042 24,844,770 

Segment 
results 912,948 3,073,669 1,170,149 271,265 283,749 121,796 823,314 6,656,890 

Reconciliation: 
Selling and 

marketing 
expenses (1,569,120) 

Administrative 
expenses 
and 
research 
and 
development 
costs (2,808,184) 

Finance costs (337,737) 
Other gains or 

expenses 598,582 

Profit before tax 2,540,431 

Four months 
ended 30 Concrete Excavating Hoisting Piling Road Financial 
April 2025 machinery machinery machinery machinery machinery services Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Segment 
revenue 
(note 5) 

Sales to 
external 
customers 5,043,427 11,696,247 4,933,714 1,033,915 1,394,573 167,281 5,156,877 29,426,034 

Segment 
results 1,131,326 3,633,705 1,394,885 342,643 421,888 105,793 953,880 7,984,120 

Reconciliation: 
Selling and 

marketing 
expenses (1,912,116) 

Administrative 
expenses 
and 
research 
and 
development 
costs (2,459,251) 

Finance costs (208,319) 
Other gains or 

expenses 643,483 

Profit before tax 4,047,917 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 

Geographical information 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 ----

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Mainland China 44,049,835 30,454,900 29,521 ,685 
Outside Mainland 

China 36,788,695 43,564,036 48,861,694 

Total revenue 80,838,530 74,018,936 78,383,379 

Information about major customers 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

10,161 ,976 12,542,300 

14,682,794 16,883,734 

24,844,770 29,426,034 

No revenue from sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common control 
accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for each of the Relevant Periods and the 
period covered by the Interim Comparative Financial Information. 

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 

An analysis of revenue is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 --- -

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Revenue from 
contracts with 
customers 79,660,931 72,194,092 76,724,493 

Revenue from 
other sources 

Financial service 804,035 797,211 609,988 
Gross rental 
income 373,564 1,027,633 1,048,898 

Total 80,838,530 74,018,936 78,383,379 
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Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

24,317,550 28,949,457 

221,892 167,281 

305,328 309,296 

24,844,770 29,426,034 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET (continued) 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

(a) Disaggregated revenue information 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'00O RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Types of products 
or services 
Concrete 

machinery 15,080,363 15,314,574 14,368,034 4,309,057 5,043,427 
Excavating 

machinery 35,755,616 27,635,692 30,373,600 9,817,141 11,696,247 
Hoisting 

machinery 12,669,948 12,999,205 13,115,027 4,395,126 4,933,714 
Piling machinery 3,065,233 2,085,179 2,076,069 813,084 1,033,915 
Road machinery 3,080,834 2,485,494 3,001,227 945,428 1,394,573 
Others 10,008,937 11 ,673,948 13,790,536 4,037,714 4,847,581 

Total 79,660,931 72,194,092 76,724,493 24,317,550 28,949,457 

Geographical 
markets 
Mainland China 43,104,782 28,874,100 28,458,486 9,634,756 12,212,441 
Outside 

Mainland 
China 36,556,149 43,319,992 48,266,007 14,682,794 16,737,016 

Total 79,660,931 72,194,092 76,724,493 24,317,550 28,949,457 

Timing of revenue 
recognition 
Services 

transferred 
over time 157,750 252,965 169,498 49,746 48,647 

Goods 
transferred at 
a point in 
time 79,503,181 71 ,941,127 76,554,995 24,267,804 28,900,810 

Total 79,660,931 72,194,092 76,724,493 24,317,550 28 ,949,457 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET (continued) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) 

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised during the Relevant Periods that 
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of each reporting period. 

Revenue recognised 
that was included 
in contract 
liabilities at the 
beginning of the 
reporting period: 

Sale of products 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 --- ---

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

1,765,531 1,302,871 

(b) Performance obligations 

2024 
RMB'OOO 

1,750,126 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

1,980,542 

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised below: 

Sale of products 
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of products, and three main payment 
methods are available to customers: 
-full payment: Customers normally pay the majority of the purchase price before the product 
delivery, with the remain ing amount held as a warranty deposit. 
-credit/installment payment: payment terms are of 3 to 24 months. Shipments are generally 
dispatched once the customer has provided a down payment equal to a fixed percentage of the 
product's price. 
-financing payment: Shipments are generally dispatched once the customer has provided a 
down payment equal to a fixed percentage of the product's price. Customers have the option to 
finance their purchase through loan agreements or finance lease arrangements with financial 
institutions. 

Rendering services 
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered and payment is 
generally due based on the progress of service completion. 

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations 
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. 
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET (continued) 

An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Other income and 
gains, net 

Interest income 703,743 980,320 1,009,363 374,824 340,715 
Government grants* 
- Related to assets 75,480 190,700 197,226 61,340 68,413 
- Related to income 1,044,068 576,104 673,511 315,257 182,712 
Gains/(losses) on 

disposal of items 
of property, plant 
and equipment, 
net 11,964 (38,394) (155,484) (3,046) 4,046 

Gains/(losses) on 
disposal of 
leasehold land 
included in right-
of-use assets and 
other intangible 
assets, net 24,644 (744) 93,452 (122) 177 

Foreign exchange 
differences, net 267,512 538,662 (305,967) (229,634) 497,800 

Gains/(losses) on 
disposal of 
investments in 
joint ventures and 
associates, net 1,285 (6,697) 

Gains on disposal of 
subsidiaries 29,046 11 ,772 96,997 

Net realised and 
unrealised 
gains/(losses) on 
financial assets at 
FVPL and 
amortised cost 677,868 (270,294) 464,730 52,005 295,837 

Dividend income 
from financial 
assets at FVOCI 36,769 38,199 23,316 4,265 2,649 

Fair value 
(losses)/gains on 
financial assets at 
FVPL and 
derivatives 
financial 
instruments, net (250,263) 21,149 109,558 263,491 (503,623) 

Others 223,090 96,245 115,470 22,064 28,367 

Total other income 
and gains, net 2,845,206 2,137,022 2,322,172 860,444 917,093 

* Government grants received for which the related expenditure has not yet been undertaken are 
included in deferred income in the statements of financial position. There are no unfulfilled 
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. 

53 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Ai:1ril 
Notes 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Cost of inventories sold 53,042,820 45,673,947 47,704,606 14,551 ,198 17,944,840 
Cost of services provided 363,981 377,252 256,435 97,134 60,122 
Depreciation of property. plant 

and equipment 13 2,087,044 2,500,201 2,822 ,995 974,105 910,305 
Depreciation of right-of-use 

assets 15 222,934 309,971 397,585 71 ,757 132,861 
Amortisation of other intangible 

assets* 17 260,109 327,412 359,559 132,224 125,784 
Depreciation of investment 

properties 14 12,400 12,737 11 ,990 4,117 6,145 

Research and development costs 
Current year expenditure 7,210,897 6,101,128 5,488,155 1,789,411 1,463,835 
Less: Development 
expenditures (287,984) (236,533) (107,534) (42,807) (41 ,930) 
Net current year expenditure 6,922 ,913 5,864,595 5,380,621 1,746,604 1,421 ,905 

Lease payments not included in 
the measurement of lease 
liabilities 15(c) 89,693 129,068 89,617 26,875 33,337 

Auditor's remuneration 6,968 6,850 7,100 2,367 1,767 

Employee benefit expenses 
(excluding directors ' and 
supervisor' remuneration (note 
8)): 

Wages, salaries and other 
allowances 9,288,035 9,019,571 9,895,259 3,121,754 2,979,846 

Share-based payments 49,703 17,896 62,516 20,839 18,485 
Pension scheme contributions 

and social welfare** 539,749 552,600 531,407 179,068 171,635 
Total 9,877,487 9,590,067 10,489,182 3,321 ,661 3,169,966 

Foreign exchange differences, 
net 5 (267,512) (538,662) 305,967 229,634 (497,800) 

Impairment costs: 
Inventories 99,144 79,886 157,541 10,503 36,812 
Property, plant and equipment 13 5,211 1,254 
Investment properties 14 40,727 
Other intangible assets 17 29 1,449 
Other non-current assets 3,565 (395) 

Total 107,949 79,491 200,971 10,503 36,812 

Impairment of financial 
instruments and contract 
assets, net: 
Impairment of trade 
receivables, net 23 341,754 1,089,953 781,645 150,472 254,994 
Impairment of contract assets, 
net 25 (397) 2 385 277 241 

(lmpairment)/reserval of 
receivables under finance 
lease, net 24 222,919 142,286 41 ,665 40,875 (89,321) 
Reversal of impairment of loans 
and advances 22 (13,234) (153,794) (82,752) 26,736 (23,491) 
Impairment of financial assets 
included in prepayments, other 
receivables and other assets 29 9,649 114,995 203,557 62,436 31,848 
Impairment of guarantee 
contracts included in non-
current liabilities (492) (19,525) (47,181) (15,924) (6,563) 

Total 560,199 1,173,917 897,319 264,872 167,708 
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued) 

Fair value (gains)/losses, net: 
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Derivative financial instruments 

Losses on derecognition of 
financial assets at amortised 
cost 

Net realised and unrealised 
(gains)/losses on financial 
assets at FVPL and amortised 
cost 

Dividend income from equity 
investments at fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income 

Interest income 
(Gains)/losses on disposal of 

items of property, plant and 
equipment 

(Gains)/losses on disposal of 
other intangible assets and 
leasehold land included in right­
of-use assets 

(Gains)/losses on disposal of 
investments in joint ventures 
and associates 

Gains on disposal of investments 
in subsidiaries 

Donation expenses 

Notes 

5 

5 

5 

5 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

384,513 
(134,250) 

21 ,819 

(677,868) 

(36,769) 
(696,432) 

(11 ,964) 

{24,644) 

(1 ,285) 

(29,046) 
45,769 

(34,478) 
13,329 

270,294 

56,631 
(166,189) 

363 

(464,730) 

(38,199) (23,316) 
(980,288) (1 ,009,363) 

38,394 

744 

6,697 

(11 ,772) 
27,872 

155,484 

(93,452) 

(96,997) 
29,291 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

(29,616) 
(233,875) 

(52,005) 

(4,265) 
(374,824) 

3,046 

122 

16,523 

65,445 
438,178 

(295,837) 

(2,649) 
(340,715) 

(4,046) 

(177) 

11,211 

*The amortisation of other intangible assets for the year and period are included in 
"Administrative expenses" and "Research and development costs" in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss. 

**There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce 
the existing level of contributions. 
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7. FINANCE COSTS 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December A~ril 

2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

(Unaudited) 
Interest on bank 

loans and other 
borrowings 642,735 1,017,942 815,613 333,166 196,133 

Interest on lease 
liabilities 18,411 28,161 32,499 4,940 12,711 

Subtotal 661,146 1,046,103 848,112 338,106 208,844 

Less: Interest 
capitalised (36,271) (32,553) (3,032) (369) (525) 

Total 624,875 1,013,550 845,080 337,737 208,319 

8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION 

Directors' and supervisors' remuneration for the Relevant Periods and the period covered by 
the Interim Comparative Financial Information, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 
383(1 )(a) , (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies 
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December A~ril 

2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 

Fees 320 240 340 100 120 

Other 
emoluments: 
-Salaries, 

wages, 
bonuses and 
benefits in 
kind 
(including 
contributions 
to pension 
plans) 38,612 23,144 25,941 8,984 7,363 

-Share-based 
payment 
expenses 9,414 3,850 7,630 2,141 1,650 

Subtotal 48,026 26,994 33,571 11,125 9,013 

Total 48,346 27,234 33,911 11,225 9,133 
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 

(a) Independent non-executive directors 

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the Relevant Periods were as 
follows: 

Mr. Zhou Hua 
Mr. Wu Zhongxin 
Ms. Xi Qing 
Mr. Su Zimeng 
Ms. Tang Ya 
Mr. Ma Guangyuan 

Total 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 ----

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

120 
80 

40 
40 
40 

320 

120 
120 

240 

2024 
RMB'OOO 

120 
120 
100 

340 

Four months ended 30 
April 

2024 
RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 

40 
40 
20 

100 

2025 
RMB'OOO 

36 
42 
42 

120 

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during 
the Relevant Periods. 
(i) Mr. Su Zimeng resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 

25 April 2022. 
(ii) Ms. Tang Ya resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 

25 April 2022. 
(iii) Mr. Ma Guangyuan resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 

25 April 2022. 
(iv) Mr. Wu Zhongxin was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company 

in 25 April 2022. 
(v) Ms. Xi Qing was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in 

25 April 2022. 
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and supervisors 

Salaries, wages, 
bonuses and 

benefits in kind 
(including 

contributions to Share-based 
Fees eension elans} ea:tment exeenses Total remuneration 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 

Executive directors: 
Mr. Xiang Wenbo 1,157 1,799 2,956 
Mr. Yu Hongfu 10,473 2,560 13,033 
Mr. Yi Xiaogang 9,025 1,583 10,608 
Mr. Huang Jianlong 7,878 7,878 
Subtotal 28,533 5,942 34,475 

Non-executive directors: 
Mr. Liang Wengen 1,114 1,114 
Mr. Tang Xiuguo 1,499 1,499 
Subtotal 1,114 1,499 2,613 

Supervisors: 
Mr. Liu Daojun 8,629 1,973 10,602 
Mr. Li Daocheng 306 306 
Mr. Yao Chuanda 30 30 
Subtotal 8,965 1,973 10,938 

Total 38,612 9,414 48,026 

Salaries, wages, 
bonuses and 

benefits in kind 
(including 

contributions to Share-based 
Fees eension elans) ea:tment exeenses Total remuneration 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Year ended 31 December 
2023 

Executive directors: 
Mr. Xiang Wenbo 977 554 1,531 
Mr. Yu Hongfu 6,141 1,073 7,214 
Mr. Yi Xiaogang 6,874 654 7,528 
Mr. Huang Jianlong 5,284 19 5,303 
Subtotal 19,276 2,300 21,576 

Non-executive directors: 
Mr. Liang Wengen 1,097 1,097 
Mr. Tang Xiuguo 462 462 
Subtotal 1,097 462 1,559 

Supervisors: 
Mr. Liu Daojun 2,447 1,088 3,535 
Mr. Li Daocheng 294 294 
Mr. Yao Chuanda 30 30 
Subtotal 2,771 1,088 3,859 

Total 23,144 3,850 26,994 
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and supervisors (continued) 

Salaries, wages, 
bonuses and benefits 

in kind (including 
contributions to Share-based 

Fees eension elans) eayment exeenses Total remuneration 
RMB'00O RMB'O00 RMB'00O RMB'0O0 

Year ended 31 
December 2024 

Executive directors: 
Mr. Xiang Wenbo 929 1,661 2,590 
Mr. Yu Hongfu 7,077 2,095 9,172 
Mr. Yi Xiaogang 7,775 1,533 9,308 
Mr. Huang Jianlong 5,966 249 6,215 
Subtotal 21 ,747 5,538 27,285 

Non-executive 
directors: 

Mr. Liang Wengen 1,084 1,084 
Mr. Tang Xiuguo 1,384 1,384 
Subtotal 1,084 1,384 2,468 

Supervisors: 
Mr. Liu Daojun 2,792 708 3,500 
Mr. Li Daocheng 288 288 
Mr. Yao Chuanda 30 30 
Subtotal 3,110 708 3,818 

Total 25,941 7,630 33,571 

Salaries, wages, 
bonuses and benefits 

in kind (including 
contributions to Share-based 

Fees eension elans) eayment exeenses Total remuneration 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Four months ended 
30April 
2024(unaudited) 

Executive directors: 
Mr. Xiang Wenbo 329 554 883 
Mr. Yu Hongfu 3,469 663 4,132 
Mr. Yi Xiaogang 2,266 368 2,634 
Mr. Huang Jianlong 1,615 27 1,642 
Subtotal 7,679 1,612 9,291 

Non-executive 
directors: 

Mr. Liang Wengen 362 362 
Mr. Tang Xiuguo 504 504 
Subtotal 362 504 866 

Supervisors: 
Mr. Liu Daojun 836 25 861 
Mr. Li Daocheng 97 97 
Mr. Yao Chuanda 10 10 
Subtotal 943 25 968 

Total 8,984 2,141 11,125 
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8. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and supervisors (continued) 

Salaries, wages, 
bonuses and 

benefits in kind 
(including 

contributions to Share-based 
Fees eension ~lans) ea~ment ex~enses Total remuneration 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Four months ended 30 April 
2025 

Executive directors: 
Mr. Xiang Wenbo 320 415 735 
Mr. Yu Hongfu 1,972 452 2,424 
Mr. Yi Xiaogang 2,263 325 2,588 
Mr. Huang Jianlong 1,606 57 1,663 
Subtotal 6,161 1,249 7,410 

Non-executive directors: 
Mr. Liang Wengen 273 273 
Mr. Tang Xiuguo 346 346 
Subtotal 273 346 619 

Supervisors: 
Mr. Liu Daojun 822 55 877 
Mr. Li Daocheng 97 97 
Mr. Yao Chuanda 10 10 
Subtotal 929 55 984 

Total 7,363 1,650 9,013 

Mr. Liang Wengen served as an executive director before 20 January 2022 and a non-executive 
director since 20 January 2022. 

There was no arrangement under which a director or a supervisor waived or agreed to waive 
any remuneration during the Relevant Periods. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 

The five highest paid employees of the Group included three, nil and nil directors of the 
Company during the Relevant Periods details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two, five and five highest paid employees 
who are not directors of the Company are as follows: 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December April 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Salaries, wages, bonuses and 
benefits in kind (including 
contributions to pension 
plans) 25,683 61,542 66,829 16,015 8,305 

Share-based payment 
expenses 2,147 700 3,132 364 229 

Total 27,830 62,242 69,961 16,379 8,534 

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following 
bands is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

HK$3,000,000 and above 2 5 

10. INCOME TAX 

Four months ended 30 
April 

2024 2025 - - - -
(Unaudited) 

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the 
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled and/or operate. 

Hong Kong 
The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. 

Mainland China 
Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China C q:i~.A§!::;!=Ho 
~:&~Pfr f{HJUE:) and the respective regulations (the "EIT Law"), the subsidiaries which 
operate in Mainland China are subject to EIT at a rate of 25% on the taxable income, except for 
those which are subject to tax concessions as set out below: 
-Entities that qualify as high-technology enterprises under the tax law are entitled to a 
preferential income tax rate of 15%. 

Germany 
The subsidiaries which operate in Germany are subject to profits tax at a rate of 15%. 

Other overseas areas 
The Company's other overseas subsidiaries are subject to income tax at rates ranging from 9% 
to 35%. 
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 

The income tax expense of the Group for the Relevant Periods is analysed as follows: 

Current income tax 
Deferred income tax 

Total 

Year ended 31 December 
___ 20_2~2 2023 2024 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

1,142,623 
(711,537) 

431,086 

1,127,552 
(417,108) 

710,444 

1,377,511 
(562,279) 

815,232 

Four months ended 30 April 
___ 2--'0'---2_4 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

473,554 557,428 
(190,328) _ _ 1_4_,_,8_6_0 

283,226 572,288 

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory tax rate for the 
countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the tax 
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Profit before tax 4,863,910 5,316,554 6,907,770 2,540,431 4,047,917 

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 
25% 1,215,978 1,329,139 1,726,943 635,108 1,011,979 

Effect of different tax rates (262,010) (333,851) (715,062) (307,441) (383,892) 
Adjustments in respect of 

current tax of previous 
periods 98,806 73,398 (15,465) (21,832) 22,289 

Profits and losses attributable 
to joint ventures and 
associates (5,622) (14,620) (19,606) (10,876) 3,573 

Income not subject to tax (56,759) (39,564) (104,283) (16,234) (8,881) 
Expenses not deductible for 

tax 67,680 78,413 44,809 13,749 11,446 
Tax losses utilised from 

previous period (36,573) (78,499) (1,102) (444) (57,034) 
Tax losses and temporary 

differences not recognised 152,864 213,588 371,735 134,120 108,516 
Super-deduction of research 

and development expenses (743,278) (517,560) (472,737) (142,924) (135,708) 

Tax charge at the Group's 
effective tax rate 431 ,086 710,444 815,232 283,226 572,288 

Pillar Two income taxes 
The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules. The Group has applied the 
mandatory exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and 
liabilities arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and will account for the Pillar Two income taxes 
as current tax when incurred. Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted 
but not yet in effect as at 31 December 2024 and 30 April 2025 in certain jurisdictions in which 
the Group operates. 

However, the enactment or substantial enactment of Pillar Two legislation in additional 
jurisdictions in which the Group operates does not have a material impact to the Group's overall 
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes. 
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11. DIVIDENDS 

Final dividends in 
respect of the 
previous year, 
declared or paid 
during the 
year/period (tax 
inclusive) 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

3,800,033 1,350,137 1,859,656 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

The final dividends of RMB4.50, RMB1 .6 and RMB2.20 per 10 shares (tax inclusive) in respect 
of the years ended 31 December 2022, 2023, and 2024 were approved by the annual general 
meeting of the Company. 

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 
PARENT 

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit attributable to 
owners of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the Relevant Periods. 

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts presented for the years 
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share scheme 
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented. 

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31 December 
2024 and the four months ended 30 April 2025 is based on the profit for the year/period 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary 
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year/period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed 
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 
PARENT (continued) 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share 
computation: 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

Earnings: 
Profit for the year/period 

attributable to owners of the 
parent, used in the basic and 
diluted earnings per share 

----

calculation (RMB'000) 4,301,041 4,527,451 

Number of shares: 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year/period used 
in the basic earnings per 
share calculation (in 
thousand shares) 8,452,624 8,464,028 

Effect of dilution - weighted 
average number of ordinary 
shares: 

Share scheme (in thousand 
shares) 

Total 8,452,624 8,464,028 

(Unaudited) 

5,975,451 2,205,686 3,430,189 

8,459,104 8,463,651 8,472,172 

3,730 4,374 

8,462,834 8,463,651 8,476,546 

The weighted average number of shares was after taking into account the effect of treasury 
shares held. 
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Leasehold 
Leasing out improvements 

Machinery Transportation equipment under Office and other and renovation Construction in 
31 December 2022 Buildings equipment equipment operating leases equipment costs progress Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2022 
Cost 12,580,035 11,811,207 313,775 232,020 1,896,529 40,307 7,463,459 34,337,332 
Accumulated depreciation (4,751,461) (7,228,457) (212,951) (73,385) (1,084,163) (6,796) (13,357,213) 
Impairment (12,319) (30,984) (1,413) (282) (45,880) (90,878) 

Net carrying amount 7,816,255 4,551,766 99,411 158,635 812,084 33,511 7,417,579 20,889,241 

At 1 January 2022, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 7,816,255 4,551,766 99,411 158,635 812,084 33,511 7,417,579 20,889,241 

Additions 81,525 682,424 31,517 217,473 193,795 54,446 4,007,884 5,269,064 
Disposals (62,173) (143,566) (5,709) (2,882) (11 ,094) (225,424) 
Disposal of subsidiaries (43,128) (4,431) (260) 34 (47,785) 
Depreciation provided 

during the year (583,376) (1,034,158) (19,448) (70,699) (364,614) (14,749) (2,087,044) 
Impairment (5,211) (5,211) 
Transfer to investment 

properties (15,771) (15,771) 
Internal transfer 2,281,455 4,894,899 34,394 214,045 (7,424,793) 
Exchange realignment 57,188 4,620 640 1,665 2_,_146 208 66,467 

----

At 31 December 2022, net 
of accumulated 
depreciation 9,531,975 8,946,3~ 140,545 304,192 846,396 73 208 4,000,878 23,84~537 

At 31 December 2022 
Cost 14,903,462 16,611,961 350,882 398,1 91 2,149,765 76,551 4,046,758 38,537,570 
Accumulated depreciation (5,341,843) (7,632,797) (208,988) (93,999) (1,303,049) (3,343) (14,584,019) 
Impairment (29,644) (32,821) (1,349) (320) (45,880) (110,014) 

Net carrying amount 9,531,975 8,946,343 140,54_5 _]_04, 192 846,396 _ 73,208 4,000,878 23,84~537 
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 

Leasehold 
Leasing out improvements 

Machinery Transportation equipment under Office and other and renovation Construction in 
31 December 2023 Buildings equipment equipment operating leases equipment costs progress Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2023, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 9,531,975 8,946,343 140,545 304,192 846,396 73,208 4,000,878 23,843,537 

Additions 295,133 457,539 78,793 528,464 156,898 141,030 2,128,165 3,786,022 
Disposals (56,253) (100,867) (40,743) (12 ,982) (210,845) 
Disposal of subsidiaries (1,188) (917) (2,105) 
Depreciation provided 

during the year (725,954) (1,173,924) (15,834) (136,182) (418,050) (30,257) (2,500,201) 
Internal transfer 2,079,883 2,340,357 13,526 331,981 (4,765,747) 
Exchange realignment 61,009 15,791 2,791 (800) 5,322 3,637 87,750 

At 31 December 2023, net 
of accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 11 ,185,793 10,484,051 219,821 654,931 908,648 183,981 1,366,933 25,004,158 

At 31 December 2023 
Cost 17,311,470 18,827,752 416,419 872,224 2,566,975 217,581 1,412,813 41 ,625,234 
Accumulated depreciation (6,098,362) (8,317,925) (195,457) (217,293) (1 ,658,219) (33,600) (16,520,856) 
Impairment (27,315) (25,776) (1 ,141) (108) (45,880) (100,220) 

Net carrying amount 11,185,793 10,484,051 219,821 654,931 908,648 183,981 1,366,933 25,004,158 

66 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 

Leasehold 
Leasing out improvements 

Transportation equipment under Office and other and renovation Construction in 
31 December 2024 Buildings Machinery equipment equipment operating leases equipment costs progress Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2024, 
net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 11 ,185,793 10,484,051 219,821 654,931 908,648 183,981 1,366,933 25,004,158 

Additions 162,795 457,837 60,595 347,681 176,258 44,215 949,010 2,198,391 
Disposals (131,966) (45,868) (10,611) (186,325) (4,004) (378,774) 
Disposal of 

subsidiaries (103,995) (367) (878) (105,240) 
Depreciation 

provided during 
the year (792,789) (1,329,743) (41,617) (180,260) (427,427) (51,159) (2 ,822,995) 

Impairment (1,254) (1 ,254) 
Transfers 322,049 647,747 4,777 59,574 (1 ,174,926) (140,779) 
Exchange 

realignment (43,237) (8,917) (2 ,610) (5,491) (5,850) (1,061) (67,166) 

At 31 December 
2024, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 10,702,645 10,101,112 229,988 629,282 706,321 177,037 1,139,956 23,686,341 

At 31 December 
2024 

Cost 17,344,702 19,616,113 455,148 880,620 2,756,155 261 ,796 1,185,836 42,500,370 
Accumulated 

depreciation (6,622,309) (9,489,225) (224,209) (250,084) (2,049,726) (84,759) (18,720,312) 
Impairment (19,748) (25,776) (951) (1 ,254) (108) (45,880) (93,717) 

Net carrying amount 10,702,645 10,101 ,112 229,988 629,282 706,321 _177,037 1,139,956 23,613§,341 
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 

Leasehold 
Leasing out improvements 

Machinery Transportation equipment under Office and other and renovation Construction in 
30 April 2025 Buildings equipment equipment operating leases equipment costs progress Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2025, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 10,702,645 10,101 ,112 229,988 629,282 706,321 177,037 1,139,956 23,686,341 

Additions 64,371 103,739 18,440 22,532 34,341 6,324 168,100 417,847 
Disposals (2,302) (50,141) (2,308) (33,343) (2,914) (91,008) 
Depreciation provided 

during the period (266,407) (454,248) (12,656) (48,028) (115,514) (13,452) (910,305) 
Internal transfer 38,693 177,552 3,951 16,334 (236,530) 
Exchange realignment 62,574 15 694 943 4,542 5,414 489 2,672 92,328 

At 30 April 2025, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation 10,599,574 9,893,708 238,358 574,985 643,982 170,398 1,074,198 23,195,203 

At 30 April 2025 
Cost 17,581,420 19,839,534 473,731 802,004 2,803,480 268,120 1,120,078 42,888,367 
Accumulated depreciation (6,962,036) (9,922,388) (234,422) (225,765) (2,159,390) (97,722) (19,601,723) 
Impairment (19,810) (23,438) (951) (1 ,254) (108) (45,880) (91,441) 

Net carrying amount 10,599,574 9,893,708 238,358 574,985 643,982 170,398 1,074,198 23,195,203 

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the Group with a total net carrying amount of approximately RMB1 ,333,332,000, RMB 981,073,000 , 
RMB301,955,000 and RMB248,949,000, respectively , at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and 30 April 2025, have not yet been issued by the relevant 
authorities. 

As at 31 December 2022 and 2024, based on the recoverable amount of nil and RMB4,658,000, respectively, under the fair value less cost of disposal 
calculation, the impairment loss amounting to RMB5,211,000 and RMB1 ,254,000, respectively, was recognised on the relevant equipment. 
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

31 December 2022 Buildings Leasehold land Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2022, net of 
accumulated 
depreciation and 
impairment 106,913 37,980 144,893 

Additions 4,480 4,480 
Disposals (790) (790) 
Depreciation provided during 

the year (11,364) (1,036) (12,400) 
Transferred from owner-

occupied property 4,095 11,676 15,771 
Exchange realignment 111 258 369 

At 31 December 2022, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 103,445 48,878 152,323 

At 31 December 2022 
Cost 255,665 64,192 319,857 
Accumulated depreciation (150,511) (15,314) (165,825) 
Impairment (1,709) (1,709) 

Net carrying amount 103,445 48,878 152,323 

31 December 2023 Buildings Leasehold land Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2023, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 103,445 48,878 152,323 

Disposals (1,887) (1,887) 
Depreciation provided during 

the year (11 ,503) (1,234) (12,737) 
Exchange realignment 385 1,332 1,717 

At 31 December 2023, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 90,440 48,976 139,416 

At 31 December 2023 
Cost 253,172 65,524 318,696 
Accumulated depreciation (161,023) (16,548) (177,571) 
Impairment (1,709) (1,709) 

Net carrying amount 90,440 48,976 139,416 
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 

31 December 2024 Buildings Leasehold land Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

At 1 January 2024, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 90,440 48,976 139,416 

Disposals (4 ,597) (4,597) 
Depreciation provided during 

the year (10,958) (1,032) (11 ,990) 
Impairment (40,727) (40,727) 
Transfers 140,780 (1 ,353) 139,427 
Exchange realignment (1,133) (2,333) (3,466) 

At 31 December 2024, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 173,805 44,258 218,063 

At 31 December 2024 
Cost 405,423 61,327 466,750 
Accumulated depreciation (182,466) (17,069) (199,535) 
Impairment (49,152) (49,152) 

Net carrying amount 173,805 44,258 218,063 

30 April 2025 Buildings Leasehold land Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

At 1 January 2025, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 173,805 44,258 218,063 

Additions 26,271 26,271 
Disposals (1,982) (1,982) 
Depreciation provided during 

the period (5,809) (336) (6,145) 
Impairment 
Transfers 
Exchange realignment 462 859 1,321 

At 30 April 2025, net of 
accumulated depreciation 
and impairment 192,747 44,781 237,528 

At 30 April 2025 
Cost 428,815 62,186 491 ,001 
Accumulated depreciation (187,365) (17,405) (204,770) 
Impairment (48,703) (48,703) 

Net carrying amount 192,747 44,781 237,528 
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 

As at the end of each of the Relevant Periods, the fair values of investment properties , which 
are categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, are not materially different from their 
original cost. 

As at 31 December 2024, based on the recoverable amount of RMB59,862,000, under the fair 
value less cost of disposal calculation using the market approach, the impairment loss 
amounting to RMB40,727,000 was recognised on the relevant investment property. 

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings included in investment properties of the 
Group with a total net carrying amou int of approximately RMB8,922,000, RMB8,351 ,000, 
RMB7,779,000, and RMB7,589,000respectively, at 31 December 2022, 2023, 2024 and 30 
April 2025, have not yet been issued by the relevant authorities. 

15. LEASES 

The Groui;1 as a lessee 
The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land, properties, plant and 
equipment used in its operations. Leases of leasehold land generally have lease terms of 50 
years, while leases of properties, plant and equipment generally have lease terms between 1 
and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased 
assets outside the Group. 

(a) Right-of-use assets 
The carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the movements during the Relevant 
Periods are as follows: 

Year ended 31 
December Machinery Transportation Office Leasehold 
2022 Buildings equipment equipment equipment land Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 1 
January 
2022 154,641 8,564 915 17,815 2,139,812 2,321,747 

Additions 363,574 1,132 65,685 358,036 788,427 
Disposals {6,057) (5) (33) (10,747) (16,842) 
Depreciation 

provided 
during the 
year (142,293) {2,286) (979) (20,073) (57,303) (222,934) 

Exchange 
realignment 2,413 {32) {4) 901 {352) 2,926 

As at 31 
December 
2022 372,278 6,246 1,059 64,295 2,429,446 2,873,324 
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15. LEASES (continued) 

The Group as a lessee (continued) 

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) 

Year ended 31 
December Machinery Transportation Office Leasehold 
2023 Buildings equipment equipment equipment land Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00O 

As at 1 
January 
2023 372,278 6,246 1,059 64,295 2,429,446 2,873,324 

Additions 549,243 12,989 9,911 23,274 250,087 845,504 
Disposals (999) (372) (45,627) (46,998) 
Depreciation 

provided 
during the 
year (216,014) (8,546) (2,806) (21 ,766) (60,839) (309,971) 

Exchange 
realignment {9,534) {11) 594 310 {8,641) 

As at 31 
December 
2023 694,974 10,689 8,153 66,025 2,573,377 3,353,218 

Year ended 31 
December Machinery Transportation Office Leasehold 
2024 Buildings equipment equipment equipment land Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 1 
January 
2024 694,974 10,689 8,153 66,025 2,573,377 3,353,218 

Additions 224,540 9,870 26,049 43,658 66,756 370,873 
Transfer from 

investment 
properties 1,353 1,353 

Disposals (16,681) (1 ,924) (7,561) (6,045) (29,208) (61,419) 
Depreciation 

provided 
during the 
year (282,269) (11,537) (13,755) (25,488) (64,536) (397,585) 

Exchange 
realignment 785 5,744 {8) {1 ,316) {49) 5,156 

As at 31 
December 
2024 621 ,349 12,842 12,878 76,834 2,547,693 3,271,596 
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15. LEASES (continued) 

The Group as a lessee (continued) 

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) 

Four months 
ended 30 Machinery Transportatio Office Leasehold 
April 2025 Buildings equipment n equipment equipment land Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 1 
January 
2025 621,349 12,842 12,878 76,834 2,547,693 3,271,596 

Additions 406,211 9,292 415,503 
Transfer from 

investme 
nt 
properties 

Disposals (6,510) (180) (6,690) 
Depreciation 

provided 
during the 
period (94,230) (3,241) (4,147) (10,136) (21,107) (132,861) 

Exchange 
realign me 
nt 5,041 571 (177) 2,326 18 7,779 

As at 30 April 
2025 931,861 10,172 8,554 78,136 2,526,604 3,555,327 
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15. Leases (continued) 

The Group as a lessee (continued) 

(b) Lease liabilities 

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the Relevant Periods are 
as follows: 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Carrying amount at beginning 
of year/period 181,714 461,786 803,679 757,567 

New leases 430,391 595,417 304,117 415,503 
Accretion of interest 

recognised during the 
year/period (note 7) 18,411 28,161 32,499 12,711 

Payments (168,007) (291,992) (384,158) (106,320) 
Exchange realignment (723) 10,307 1,430 (7,744} 

Carrying amount at end of 
year/period 461,786 803,679 757,567 1,071 ,717 

Analysed into: 
Current portion 153,718 253,103 215,933 279,618 
Non-current portion 308,068 550,576 541,634 792,099 

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows: 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Interest on lease liabilities 18,411 28,161 32,499 5,775 12,711 
Depreciation of right-of-

use assets 222,934 309,971 397,585 93,232 132,861 
Expense relating to short-

term leases 87,496 128,867 89,550 26,842 33,223 
Expense relating to 

leases of low-value 
assets 1,260 201 67 33 114 

Variable lease payments 
not included in the 
measurement of lease 
liabilities 937 

Total amount recognised 
in profit or loss 331,038 467,200 519,701 125,882 178,909 

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 42(c) to the Financial statements. 
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15. Leases (continued) 

The Group as a lessor 
The Group leases its buildings and equipment under operating lease arrangements. Details of 
rental income recognised are included in note 5. 

16. 

At the end of each of the Relevant Periods, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the 
Group in future periods under operating and finance leases with its tenants are as follows: 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OO0 RMB'OOO 

Within one year 4,684,819 6,994,099 7,111,868 405,418 
After one year 8,421,333 10,658,616 11,216,913 10,870,004 

Total 13,106,152 17,652,715 18,328,781 11 ,275,422 

GOODWILL 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'000 

Carrying amount at beginning of 
year/period 46,495 47,501 49,661 48,010 

Exchange realignment 1,006 2,160 {1,651) 3,462 

Carrying amount at end of 
year/period 47,501 49,661 48,010 51,472 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Intermix GmbH 36,747 38,907 37,256 40,718 
Xianyang Tairuida Trading Co., 

Ltd. 
/g)(;~~H9HrM ~ rcij ~~~~0-EJ 5,551 5,551 5,551 5,551 
Shenyang Sanyyuan 

Construction Machinery Co., 
Ltd 

51 ~~ = ~5mliftW.Hi ~~~0-EJ 2,866 2,866 2,866 2,866 
North China Baosiwei (Tianjin) 

Construction Machinery Co., 
Ltd . 

¥ jtJI,~,~ (:;}(5$) Ifi~~~ 

~~0-EJ 2,337 2,337 2,337 2,337 

Total 47,501 49,661 48,010 51,472 

75 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

16. GOODWILL (continued) 

Impairment testing of goodwill 
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash-generating 
units for impairment testing: 
-EMEACGU 
- Xianyang Tairuida Trading Co., Ltd. CGU 
- Shenyang Sanyyuan Construction Machinery Co., Ltd CGU 
- North China Baosiwei (Tianjin) Construction Machinery Co., Ltd CGU 

The recoverable amount of the EMEA CGU has been determined based on a value in use 
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a 5-year period 
approved by senior management. 

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the EMEA CGU at the end of each of 
the Relevant Periods. The following are the key assumptions on which management has based 
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill: 

Compound growth rate of 
revenue over the forecast 
period 

Pre-tax discount rate 
Terminal growth rate 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 - ---

7%-17% 
13.5% 

1% 

3%-9% 
15.2% 

1% 

2024 

5%-13% 
12.7% 

1% 

As at 30 April 
2025 

5%-13% 
11.0% 

1% 

Compound growth rate of revenue - The basis is determined with reference to the average 
revenue achieved in the years before the budget year, increased for management's expectation 
of the future market. 

Pre-tax discount rate - The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks relating 
to the relevant unit. 

Terminal growth rate - The basis is determined with reference to the long-term Consumer Price 
Index of China and the nature of the business. 

The values assigned to the key assumptions on compound growth rate of revenue, discount 
rate and terminal growth rate are consistent with external information sources. 
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 

Sensitivity analysis for the EMEA CGU valuation 

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for the EMEA cash-generating unit, a reasonably 
possible change in the key assumptions of the cash flow projections would cause its carrying 
amount exceed its recoverable amount. The headroom was RMB 37,885,000, RMB 
48,901,000, RMB 759,000 and RMB 5,642,000 as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and 
30 April 2025, respectively. If the budgeted sales decreased by 21%, 46%, 2.1% and 3%, or 
the pre-tax discount rate increased by 3.5%, 6.6%, 0.2% and 0.4%, or the terminal growth rate 
decreased by 3.8%, 23.8%, 0.12% and 0.42%, a further impairment on goodwill would be 
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 and the four months 
ended 30 April 2025, respectively. 

These sensitivities analysis are based on changing the relevant assumption while holding other 
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the 
assumptions may be correlated. 

Considering there was still sufficient headroom based on the assessment, the management 
believe there was no impairment for the goodwill as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods. 

Based on the results of the abovementioned assessments as conducted by management and 
the independent external valuer, the directors of the Company conclude that no impairment loss 
on the aforementioned goodwill is requ ired to be recognised as at the end of each of the 
Relevant Periods. 
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

31 December Development Putzmeiste Proprietary 
2022 expenditures r franchise Software technology Trademarks Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2022: 

Cost 506,964 139,615 582,603 2,234,619 991 ,401 79,797 4,534,999 
Accumulated 

amortisation (136,124) (375,587) (1,666,621) (11,701) (17,627) (2,207,660) 
Impairment (2,194) (76,862) (79,056) 

Net carrying 
amount 506,964 3,491 204,822 491 ,136 979,700 62,170 2,248,283 

At 1 January 
2022, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 506,964 3,491 204,822 491 ,136 979,700 62,170 2,248,283 

Additions 287,984 144,986 17,529 19 13,336 463,854 
Disposals (100) (100) 
Disposal of 

subsidiaries (14) (14) 
Amortisation 

provided 
during the 
year (3,589) (95,895) (149,970) (370) (10,285) (260,109) 

Impairment 
during the 
year (29) (29) 

Transfer (316,707: 158,486 158,001 220 
Exchange 

realignment 556 98 (834) 6,292 27,562 1,471 35,145 

At 31 December 
2022, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 478,797 411,451 522,959 1,006,911 66,912 2,487,030 

At 31 December 
2022: 

Cost 478,797 143,544 882,459 2,443,293 1,019,338 95,606 5,063,037 
Accumulated 

amortisation (143,544) (468,762) (1 ,841,342) (12,427) (28,694) (2,494,769) 
Impairment (2 ,246) (78,992) (81,238) 

Net carrying 
amount 478,797 411,451 522,959 1,006,911 66,912 2,487,030 
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 

31 December Development Putzmeiste Proprietary 
2023 expenditures r franchise Software technology Trademarks Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2023, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 478,797 411,451 522,959 1,006,911 66,912 2,487,030 

Additions 236,533 117,994 24,191 223 492 379,433 
Disposals (20,144) (15,365) (35,509) 
Disposal of 

subsidiaries (33 ,121) (33,121) 
Amortisation 

provided 
during the 
year (147,128) (169,641) (423) (10,220) (327,412) 

Transfer (430,110: 167,251 262,859 
Exchange 

realignment 3,347 1,814 10,044 59,178 2,565 76,948 

At 31 December 
2023, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 288,567 498,117 635,047 1,065,889 59,749 2,547,369 

At 31 December 
2023: 

Cost 288,567 151,981 1,112,350 2,764,990 1,079,464 100,444 5,497,796 
Accumulated 

amortisation (151,981) (611 ,855) (2,046,438) (13,575) (40,695) (2,864,544) 
Impairment (2,378) (83,505) (85,883) 

Net carrying 
amount 288,567 498,117 635,047 1,065,889 59,749 2,547,369 
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 

31 December Development Putzmeiste Proprietary 
2024 expenditures r franchise Software technology Trademarks Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2024: 

Cost 288,567 151,981 1,112,350 2,764,990 1,079,464 100,444 5,497,796 
Accumulated 

amortisation (151,981) (611,855) (2,046,438) (13,575) (40,695) (2,864,544) 
Impairment (2,378) (83,505) (85,883) 

Net carrying 
amount 288,567 498,117 635,047 1,065,889 59,749 2,547,369 

At 1 January 
2024, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 288,567 498,117 635,047 1,065,889 59,749 2,547,369 

Additions 107,534 86,178 20,253 345 36 214,346 
Disposals (7,767) (2,236) (10,003) 
Disposal of 

subsidiaries (300) (20,449) (20,749) 
Amortisation 

provided 
during the 
year (178,270) (170,290) (456) (10,543) (359,559) 

Impairment 
during the 
year (1,449) (1,449) 

Transfer (148,484) 121,896 26,588 
Exchange 

realignment (4,948) (327) (7,103) (45,228) (2,096) (59,702) 

At 31 December 
2024, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 242,669 519,527 480,361 1,020,550 47,146 2,310,253 

At 31 December 
2024: 

Cost 242,669 145,532 1,236,081 2,530,523 1,034,016 96,555 5,285,376 
Accumulated 

amortisation (145,532) (714,277) (1,964,617) (13,466) (49,409) (2,887,301) 
Impairment (2 ,277) (85,545) (87,822) 

Net carrying 
amount 242,669 519,527 480,361 1,020,550 47,146 2,310,253 
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 

Development Putzmeiste Proprietary 
30 April 2025 expenditures r franchise Software technology Trademarks Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2025: 

Cost 242,669 145,532 1,236,081 2,530,523 1,034,016 96,555 5,285,376 
Accumulated 

amortisation (145,532) (714,277) (1,964,617) (13,466) (49,409) (2,887,301) 
Impairment (2,277) (85,545) (87,822) 

Net carrying 
amount 242,669 519,527 480,361 1,020,550 47,146 2,310,253 

At 1 January 
2025, net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 242,669 519,527 480,361 1,020,550 47,146 2,310,253 

Additions 41,930 16,827 1,994 373 61,124 
Disposals (1 ,288) (36) (1,324) 
Disposal of 

subsidiaries 
Amortisation 

provided 
during the 
year/period (61,948) (59,675) (176) (3,985) (125,784) 

Impairment 
during the 
year/period 

Transfer (36,209) 9,089 27,120 
Exchange 

realignment 14,274 629 12,329 94 ,823 3,309 125,364 

At 30 April 2025, 
net of 
accumulated 
amortisation 
and 
impairment 262,664 482,836 462,093 1,115,570 46,470 2,369,633 

At 30 April 2025: 
159,055,05 164,490,84 

Cost 262,664 0 1,268,436 2,671,035 1,130,435 103,224 4 
Accumulated (159,055,0 (2 ,115,653 (162,025,4 

amortisation 50) (783,111) ) (14,865) (56,754) 33) 
Impairment (2,489) (93,289) (95,778) 

Net carrying 
amount 262,664 482,836 462,093 1,115,570 46,470 2,369,633 

Certain intangible assets are pledged, details of which are disclosed in note 44 to the Financial 
statements. 
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18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 - ---- ------

RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Share of net assets 206,016 ___ 2_5_8...:-, 1=3-1 = ==3=0_2_,0_2_4 320,762 

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's joint ventures 
that are not individually material: 

Share of the joint 
ventures' profit 
for the 
year/period 

Share of the joint 
ventures' total 
comprehensive 
income 

Aggregate carrying 
amount of the 
Group's 
investments in 
the joint 
ventures 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 - -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

9,726 51 ,597 

9,726 51,597 

206,016 258,131 

As at 30 April 
2024 2025 - -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

45,159 18,600 

45,159 18,600 

302,024 320,762 

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not recognise its share of profit of 
RMB3,223,000 of PALFINGER SANY CRANE CIS as the share of profit of the joint venture 
has been offset by the previous excess losses in the joint venture. 
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOC IA TES 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 A12ril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Share of net assets 2,033,035 2,142,781 2,122.494 2,143,869 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Yuandong Construction Investment 
Group CO.,Ltd of Beijing 

~tJ¥, !Jixmi!:!RmW:t5!:~~ 111Mlt0i'rJ 117,994 119,778 121 ,999 122,365 
Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., Ltd. 
;illi¥i.:::#llilHr!Nffi-1f~lt0i'rJ 545,742 586,012 606,756 547,389 
Huaxu (Guangzhou) Industrial 

Investment Fund Management 
Partnership Enterprise (Limited 
Partnership) 

•w CJ;i1+! l it~t5!:ftlbi~!J.il-'n 
11>:~ ( 1r~ltil-n) 760,974 772,228 768,873 854,009 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co. , Ltd. 
;ill1¥im litix111J 1JlHlt 0i'i'J 334,366 315,626 270,513 267,192 
Tangshan Chite Mechanical 

Equipment Co. , Ltd. 
Jj LlJ -~1!!¥.i'tJUixW:ffiIMlt 0 i'rJ 4,784 4,750 4,776 4,081 
Lianyungang Anxin Machinery Sales 

Co., Ltd . 
iU\¼il!,~,i:,,tJi! tJoci~~1f~lt 0i'rJ 8,844 7,477 
Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 

Machinery Co., Ltd . 
fttflMHn.t1¥ti!iiiJFf"i ~lt0irJ 61,035 58,555 57,280 56,177 
Wuxi Sany Venture Capital 

Partnership Enterprise (Limited 
Partnership) 

~~.=::- i1J~t5!:itil-nft~ c1r~lt-&i-
'n) 116,017 201 ,806 194,440 193,570 

Hunan Guozhong Zhilian 
Engineering Machinery Research 
Institute Co., Ltd 

;illi¥i-•WaI•ti!NM~~1f~0 
ii"] 1,536 1,632 1,778 1,732 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang Technology 
Co., Ltd 

.;illl¥i.:C:-fiUrJl4ttlHlt 0i'rJ 81 ,743 74,917 72,914 73,185 
Xiangjiang Technology (Xinjiang) 

Co., Ltd 
#llilU4tt ( #Ji~ l 1f~lt0 irl 23,165 24,169 

Total 2,033,035 2,142,781 2,122,494 2,143,869 
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 

The Group (continued) 

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's associates that 
are not individually material: 

Share of the 
associates' 
profit/(loss) for 

As at 31 December 
___ 2_0_2_2 2023 2024 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

the year/period 16,896 (1 ,659) 13,169 
Share of the 

associates' total 
comprehensive 
(loss)/income (80,424) 41 ,962 (3,875) 

Aggregate carrying 
amount of the 
Group's 
investments in 
the associates 2,033,035 2,142,781 2,122,494 

As at 30 April 
2024 

RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

20,971 

(79,480) 

2,086,137 

2025 
RMB'OOO 

(50,890) 

24,435 

2,143,869 

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has discontinued the recognition of its 
share of losses of Lianyungang Anxin Machinery Sales Co., Ltd. }llf~;:l~,C,,~~i.ilJ~~~~-0-oJ 
as the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group's interest in the associate and the 
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised 
share of losses of this associate for the year ended 31 December 2024 and for the four months 
ended 30 April 2025 was RMB16,739,000 and RMB 16,109,000, respectively. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Share of net assets 823,909 911,797 900,628 916,896 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Yuandong Construction 
Investment Group 
CO., Ltd of Beijing 

~t}¥,:IJiX~iUUt~tl!:~mfll 
lHi0l'iJ 117,994 119,778 121 ,999 122,365 

Huaxu (Guangzhou) 
Industrial Investment 
Fund Management 
Partnership Enterprise 
(Limited Partnership) 

¥-W c lf,f1+1) i¥~tl!:~~~ 
~:FJ!li\-lll${t~ , lH~i\-
ln ) 591,069 593,289 586,948 603,746 

Wuxi Sany Venture Capital 
Partnership Enterprise 
(Limited Partnership) 

~~-==--~iJ~tl!:J't i\-lll${t~ 
CM~i\-lll$ ) 113,310 197,098 189,903 189,053 

Hunan Guozhong Zhilian 
Engineering Machinery 
Research Institute Co ., 
Ltd 

i;tiJ i¥i ~ :t: 11' '11 If!HJ 1itxliJf % 
~JHH~0l'iJ 1,536 1,632 1,778 1,732 

Total 823,909 911,797 900,628 916,896 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
Current portion 
Bills receivables, at fair value 294,478 365,819 456,501 470,046 

Non-current portion 
Listed equity investments, at 

fair value 
BANK of Changsha Co., Ltd. 
ft:5Yj&fi' filt:15H~f f,~0 oJ 336,316 313,961 
CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK 

FINANCIAL LEASING CO., 
LTD 

~i&:&ij!Rf.§.:'.iU~15l%f,~0 oJ 64,658 

Unlisted equity investments, at 
fair value 

SVOLT Energy Technology 
Company Ltd. 

~~gs51N&~f,~0 oJ 275,634 108,479 159,072 159,072 
Shenzhen Trinity Technology 

Co., Ltd. 
j,?jU]l!m= - Ntt~~~0o.l 135,451 135,451 135,451 135,451 
Suzhou Lvkong Transmission 

Technology Co., Ltd. 
!Hi'l~l~f~i/JN&lfilfB~~~0 oJ 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 
Aerospace Kaitian 

Environmental Tech. Co., 
Ltd. 

f,JJi::k~:kffff5i/J4&g~fB~f,~~oJ 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 
Shanghai Kangfu Nuclear 

Power Machinery Co., Ltd. 
_t;ilJJ~!fi'ftgsf!titi~~~ ~ EJ 6,017 6,017 6,017 6,017 
Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. 
tMflHHW&vltr~f,~0 oJ 363,237 202,620 104,824 104,824 
Zhejiang Chengfeng 

Engineering Machinery Co., 
Ltd. 

;tfrff~~::ni~ffl~f>~ 0 o1 2,294 2,294 2,294 2,294 
Others 61,035 114,075 112,797 112,797 

Subtotal 1,332,642 970,897 608,455 608,455 

Total 1,627,120 1,336,716 1,064,956 1,078,501 

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through other 
comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
Current portion 
Bills receivables, at fair 

value 55,644 25,619 50,567 63,640 

Non-current portion 
Listed equity investments, at 

fair value 
BANK of Changsha Co., Ltd . 
ft:iyj~fi'llli:{5H§'H~ 0 oJ 336,316 313,961 

Unlisted equity investments, 
at fair value 

SVOL T Energy Technology 
Company Ltd. 

~~fIB;J]lN~ff ~~0 oJ 275,634 108,479 159,072 159,072 
Shenzhen Trinity 

Technology Co., Ltd. 
;~:t]l[m = - N~fi~~0o1 135,451 135,451 135,451 135,451 
Suzhou Lvkong 

Transmission 
Technology Co., Ltd. 

~Hl~l~~I/JN~[{l{Bfi~~ 
0o] 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 

Aerospace Kaitian 
Environmental Tech. 
Co., Ltd . 

~n:;;RWJL;;R!f-fjf;N~llli:1B~~~ 
0o1 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 

Rootcloud Technology Co., 
Ltd. 

t:Mf[t§Jgµ ttf,fLr~~IH} oJ 363,237 202,620 104,824 104,824 
Others 8,384 61,424 61,424 61,424 

Subtotal 1,207,022 909,935 548,771 548,771 

Total 1,262,666 935,554 599,338 612,411 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
Current portion 
Listed equity 

investments, at fair 
value 75,647 62,353 

Debt investments, at 
fair value 14,740,955 10,786,583 11,062,402 11,567,532 

Subtotal 14,816,602 10,848,936 11,062,402 11,567,532 

Non-current portion 
Fund and non-listed 

equity investments, 
at fair value 340,288 310,913 285,051 277,337 

Total 15,156,890 11,159,849 11,347,453 11,844,869 

The Company 
As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
Current portion 
Debt investments, at 

fair value 2,528,750 617,658 302,687 1,246,166 

Subtotal 2,528,750 617,658 302,687 1,246,166 

Non-current portion 
Fund and non-listed 

equity investments, 239,945 239,253 236,254 
at fair value 238,131 

Total 2,768,695 856,911 538,941 1,484,297 

Certain investments are pledged, details of which are disclosed in note 44 to the financial 
statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

22. LOANS AND ADVANCES 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 

2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Loans and advances 11,632,338 7,100,985 3,540,820 2,789,083 

Less: Loss allowance {475,418) {321,624) {238,872) {215,381} 

11 ,156,920 6,779,361 3,301,948 2,573,702 

Analysed into: 

Current portion 6,049,659 3,741,246 2,016,412 1,609,622 
Non-current portion 5,107,261 3,038,115 1,285,536 964,080 

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of loans and advances are as follows: 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

At the beginning of the 
year 322,562 115,995 50,095 488,652 

Transfer during the 
year (22,105) 18,789 3,316 

(Reversal)/provision of 
impairment losses 
during the year {18,620) {26,042) 31,428 {13,234) 

At the end of the year 281,837 108,742 84,839 475,418 

Year ended 31 December 2023 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

At the beginning of the 
year 281,837 108,742 84,839 475,418 

Transfer during the 
year 37,967 (86,470) 48,503 

Reversal of impairment 
losses during the 
year {128,540) {10,293) {14,961) {153,794) 

At the end of the year 191,264 11,979 118,381 321,624 

89 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

22. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2024 
12-months 

ECLs 

At the beginning of the 
year 

Transfer during the 
year 

(Reversal)/provision of 
impairment losses 
during the year 

At the end of the year 

Stage 1 
RMB'000 

191,264 

(14,504) 

(86,841) 

89,919 

Four months ended 30 April 2025 
12-months 

ECLs 

At the beginning of the 
period 

Transfer during the 
period 

(Reversal)/provision of 
impairment losses 
during the period 

At the end of the 
period 

Stage 1 
RMB'000 

89,919 

(16,752) 

(17,579) 

55,588 

Lifetime ECLs 
___ s_~_g~e_2 S~ge3 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

11,979 

10,584 

(12,079) 

10,484 

Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 2 

RMB'000 

10,484 

16,540 

(4,522) 

22,502 

118,381 

3,920 

16,168 

138,469 

Stage 3 
RMB'000 

138,469 

212 

(1,390) 

137,291 

Total 
RMB'000 

321,624 

(82,752) 

238,872 

Total 
RMB'000 

238,872 

(23,491) 

215,381 

Certain loans and advances are pledged, details of which are disclosed in note 44 to the 
Financial statements. 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
year/period 488,652 475,418 321,624 238,872 
Impairment losses, net (13,234) (153,794) (82,752) (23,491) 

At the end of the 
year/period 475,418 321,624 238,872 215,381 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Trade receivables 34,005,099 32,873,445 35,143,568 37,920,461 
Bills receivables, at 

amortised cost 588,860 306,049 397,632 446,794 
Impairment (2,752,550) {3,755,593) (4,284,353) {4,382,628) 

Net carrying amount 31,841,409 29,423,901 31,256,847 33,984,627 

Analysed into: 
Current portion 27,395,762 26,573,655 28,343,222 30,499,169 
Non-current portion 4,445,647 2,850,246 2,913,625 3,485,458 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Trade receivables 865,223 1,547,828 1,923,634 1,596,791 
Bills receivables 23,281 55,200 28,521 23,630 
Impairment (19,162) (25,025) (35,573) (50,768) 

Net carrying amount 869,342 1,578,003 1,916,582 1,569,653 

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. The credit terms for our PRC 
customers under instalment and credit payment typically range from three to 24 months, 
whereas overseas customers are granted terms of three to twelve months. The Group seeks to 
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to 
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and credit 
limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a month. Trade receivables are non-interest­
bearing. 

The amounts due from related parties included in trade receivables are disclosed in note 49 to 
the Financial statements. 

Certain bills receivables are pledged, details of which are disclosed in note 44 to the Financial 
statements. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of each of the Relevant 
Periods (based on the invoice date) is as follows: 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Within one year 30,072,307 28,718,602 30,055,683 29,104,741 
After one year but 

within two years 1,627,865 1,329,627 2,065,787 5,421,322 
After two years but 

within three years 777,798 790,517 753,353 1,024,496 
After three years but 

within four years 387,101 488,762 622,035 662,865 
After four years but 

within five years 335,571 373,009 446,088 488,904 
After five years 1,393,317 1,478,977 1,598,254 1,664,927 

Total 34,593,959 33,179,494 35,541,200 38,367,255 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Within one year 849,791 1,565,242 1,879,571 1,470,875 
After one year but 

within two years 15,837 15,338 47,029 121,555 
After two years but 

within three years 10,826 5,293 10,934 13,418 
After three years but 

within four years 10,858 8,846 2,979 3,223 
After four years but 

within five years 359 7,156 4,487 1,331 
After five years 833 1,153 7,155 10,019 

Total 888,504 1,603,028 1,952,155 1,620,421 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills receivables are as 
follows: 

The Group 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Simplified 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 aeeroach Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
109,094 year 2,432,279 2,541,373 

Impairment losses, net 39,344 302,410 341,754 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible (46,868) (89,790) (136,658) 
Exchange realignment 6,081 6,081 

At the end of the year 101,570 2,650,980 2,752,550 

Year ended 31 December 2023 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Simplified 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 aeeroach Total 
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
101 ,570 year 2,650,980 2,752,550 

Impairment losses, net (18,885) 1,108,838 1,089,953 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible (123,385) (123,385) 
Exchange realignment 36,475 36,475 

At the end of the year 82,685 3,672,908 3,755,593 

Year ended 31 December 2024 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Simplified 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 aeeroach Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
82,685 3,672,908 3,755,593 year 

Impairment losses, net 23,905 757,740 781 ,645 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible (224,644) (224,644) 
Exchange realignment (28,241) (28,241) 

At the end of the year 106,590 4,177,763 4,284,353 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills receivables are as 
follows: (continued) 

The Group(continued) 

Four months ended 30 April 2025 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 

At the beginning of 
the period 

Impairment losses, 
net 

Amount written off 
as uncollectible 

Exchange 
realignment 

At the end of the 
period 

The Company 

At the beginning of the 
year/period 

Impairment losses, net 
Exchange realignment 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible 

At the end of the 
year/period 

Stage 1 
RMB'000 

106,590 

15,861 

(22,817) 

99,634 

Stage 2 
RMB'O00 

Stage 3 
RMB'000 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 - ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

14,177 
4,984 

1 

19,162 

19,162 
5,865 

(2) 

25,025 

Simplified 
approach 
RMB'000 

4,177,763 

239,133 

(84,883) 

(49,019) 

4,282,994 

2024 
RMB'000 

25,025 
10,540 

16 

(8) 

35,573 

Total 
RMB'000 

4,284,353 

254,994 

(107,700) 

(49,019) 

4,382,628 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

35,573 
15,209 

(14) 

50,768 

For bills receivables, the Group considered the non-settlement of these bills by the issuing 
banks on maturity is not probable. Therefore, during the Relevant Periods, the Group estimated 
the expected loss rate for bills receivables is minimal. 

For trade receivables, the Group determines the ECLs using a provision matrix, estimated 
based on the financial quality of the debtors and historical credit loss experience based on the 
days past due of the trade receivables, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and 
estimates of future economic conditions. The following table details the risk profile of trade 
receivables: 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The Group 

As at 31 December 2022 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 2,017,888 38.63% 779,416 

Provision for bad debts by 
portfolio of credit risk 
characteristics 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 28,253,100 1.80% 507,782 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 1,583,354 10.00% 158,335 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 726,360 20.00% 145,272 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 325,386 35.00% 113,885 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 204,606 75.00% 153,455 
Overdue over 5 years 894,405 100.00% 894,405 

Total 34,005,099 8.09% 2,752,550 

As at 31 December 2023 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 3,881 ,228 48.23% 1,871,799 

Provision for bad debts by 
portfolio of credit risk 
characteristics 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 25,915,805 1.84% 476,712 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 891,600 10.00% 89,160 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 657,113 20.00% 131,423 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 421,390 35.00% 147,486 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 269,184 75.00% 201,888 
Overdue over 5 years 837,125 100.00% 837,125 

Total 32,873,445 11.42% 3,755,593 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The Group (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 4,105,234 50.95% 2,091,631 

Provision for bad debts by 
portfolio of credit risk 
characteristics 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 27,393,193 2.27% 620,978 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 1,375,855 10.00% 137,586 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 550,570 20.00% 110,114 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 483,022 35.00% 169,058 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 322,832 75.00% 242,124 
Overdue over 5 years 912,862 100.00% 912,862 

Total 35,143,568 12.19% 4,284,353 

As at 30 April 2025 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 3,960,772 44.89% 1,777,794 

Provision for bad debts by 
portfolio of credit risk 
characteristics 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 26,624,090 2.17% 577,617 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 4,878,213 10.00% 487,821 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 588,531 20.00% 117,706 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 561,494 35.00% 196,523 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 328,775 75.00% 246,581 
Overdue over 5 years 978,586 100.00% 978,586 

Total 37,920,461 11.56% 4,382,628 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December 2022 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 444,572 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 381,938 2.75% 10,511 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 15,837 10.00% 1,584 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 10,826 20.00% 2,165 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 10,858 35.00% 3,800 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 359 75.00% 269 
Overdue over 5 years 833 100.00% 833 

Total 865,223 2.21% 19,162 

As at 31 December 2023 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 822,501 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 689,437 1.92% 13,258 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 14,466 10.00% 1,447 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 5,183 20.00% 1,037 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 7,966 35.00% 2,788 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 7,122 75.00% 5,342 
Overdue over 5 years 1,153 100.00% 1,153 

Total 1 547 828 1.62% 25,025 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 

The Company (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 986,704 0.30% 3,000 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 866,498 1.97% 17,032 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 46,397 10.00% 4,640 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 10,043 20.00% 2,009 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 4,979 35.00% 1,743 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 7,458 75.00% 5,594 
Overdue over 5 years 1,555 100.00% 1,555 

Total 1,923,634 1.85% 35,573 

As at 30 April 2025 

Gross carrying Expected credit Expected credit 
amount loss rate losses 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Provision for bad debts on 
individual basis 542,456 2.76% 14,996 

Undue or overdue within 1 
year 909,394 1.07% 9,752 

Overdue 1 to 2 years 118,531 10.00% 11,853 
Overdue 2 to 3 years 12,468 20.00% 2,494 
Overdue 3 to 4 years 3,220 35.00% 1,127 
Overdue 4 to 5 years 703 75.00% 527 
Overdue over 5 years 10,019 100.00% 10,019 

Total 1,596,791 3.18% 50,768 

There was no significant change in the ECL rates for the time band during the Relevant Periods, 
mainly because no significant changes in the historical default rates of trade receivables, 
economic conditions and performance, solvency and behaviour of the debtors were noted, 
based on which the ECL rates are determined. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

24. RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OO0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Gross investments 13,452,754 17,955,387 18,576,435 18,371,103 
Unearned finance 

income (1,022,509) {1,430,970) (1,614,418) (1 ,605,898} 

12,430,245 16,524,417 16,962,017 16,765,205 

Less: Loss allowance {346,989) {492,290) {532,359) (443,541} 

12,083,256 16,032,127 16,429,658 16,321,664 

Analysed into: 
Current portion 4,659,811 6,346,853 6,531,876 6,675,166 
Non-current portion 7,423,445 9,685,274 9,897,782 9,646,498 

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables under finance lease are as 
follows: 

Year ended 31 December 2022 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
year 114,587 114,587 

Transfer during the 
year (5,283) 5,283 

Provision of 
impairment losses 
during the year 159,563 63,356 222,919 

Exchange realignment 9,483 9,483 

At the end of the year 278,350 68,639 346,989 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

24. RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2023 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00O 

At the beginning of the 
year 278,350 68,639 346,989 

Transfer during the 
year 25,809 (29,438) 3,629 

Provision of 
impairment losses 
during the year 127,991 10,480 3,815 142,286 

Exchange realignment 3,015 3,015 

At the end of the year 435,165 49,681 7,444 492,290 

Year ended 31 December 2024 
12-months 

ECLs Lifetime ECLs 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
year 435,165 49,681 7,444 492,290 

Transfer during the 
year (9,505) 8,128 1,377 

Provision/(reversal) of 
impairment losses 
during the year 46,556 (28,016) 23,125 41,665 

Amount written off as 
u ncollecti ble 

Exchange realignment (1,596) (1,596) 

At the end of the year 470,620 29,793 31,946 532,359 

100 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
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24. RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE (continued) 

Four months ended 30 April 2025 
12-months 

ECLs 

At the beginning of the 
period 

Transfer during the 
period 

Provision/(reversal) of 
impairment losses 
during the period 

Amount written off as 
uncollectible 

Exchange realignment 

At the end of the period 

Stage 1 
RMB'000 

470,620 

(44,430) 

(92,391) 

503 

334,302 

Lifetime ECLs 
___ S_~_g_e_2 S~ge3 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

29,793 

41,023 

(1,973) 

68,843 

31,946 

3,407 

5,043 

40,396 

Total 
RMB'000 

532,359 

(89,321) 

503 

443,541 

The Group provides equipment finance lease services to customers purchasing machinery 
products of the Group or other vendors through its leasing subsidiaries. Under the finance lease 
arrangement, the collectability of the minimum lease payments is reasonably predictable, there 
is no significant uncertainty surrounding the amount of un-reimbursable cost yet to be incurred 
by the Group under the lease arrangement. 

Certain receivables under finance lease are pledged, details of which are disclosed in note 44 
to the Financial statements. 
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25. CONTRACT ASSETS 

Contract assets 
arising from: 

Sale of products 
Impairment 
Net carrying 

amount 

Analysed into: 
Current portion 
Non-current 

portion 

As at 1 
January ____ A_s_a_t 3_1_D_ec_e_m_b_e_r ___ _ 

2022 2022 2023 2024 ----------
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

152,409 135,631 128,350 154,028 170,079 
-~(~2,_32_1)_~(~1,_92_4)_~(~1,_92_6)_~(~2,_31_1) __ ~(2~,5_52~) 

150,088 133,707 126,424 151,717 167,527 

78,717 58,548 67,102 99,206 

71,371 ~~7=5 __ , 1_5=9 - =5_9 __ ,3=2=2 -=5_2 .... ,5=1=1 

110,753 

56,774 

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the sale of products as the 
receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of installation of the products. 
Upon completion of installation or construction and acceptance by the customer, the amounts 
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract 
assets in 2024 was the result of the increase in the ongoing sale of products. 

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are as follows: 
As at 31 December As at 30 April 

2022 2023 2024 2025 --- - - -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of 
the year/period 2,321 1,924 1,926 2,311 

Impairment losses, 
net (397) 2 385 241 

At the end of the 
year/period 1,924 1,926 2,311 2,552 

102 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

25. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure 
expected credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses 
of the contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and 
the trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets 
are based on days past due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer segments 
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, 
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the 
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable 
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and 
forecasts of future economic conditions. 

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's contract assets 
using a provision matrix: 

As at 31 December As at 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Expected credit loss 
rate 1.42% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 

Gross carrying 
amount 
(RMB'000) 135,631 128,350 154,028 170,079 

Expected credit 
losses 
(RMB'000) 1,924 1,926 2,311 2,552 
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26. DEFERRED TAX 

The movements in deferred tax assets of the Group during the Relevant Periods are as follows: 

Deferred tax assets 

The Group 

Changes in Depreciatio Deductible 
Provision fair value of n of Amortisation temporary 

for derivative property, of other differences 
impairment financial plant and intangible Deferred of 

of assets instruments equipment assets income Tax losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2022 601 ,185 31,632 11 ,366 33,378 153,963 438,521 1,076,905 1,886,769 130,619 4,364,338 
Deferred tax 

( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the year 112,475 (30,743) 2,267 5,376 137,250 561 ,785 148,236 43,914 42,933 1,023,493 

Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income during the 
year (1 ,669) (1 ,669) 

Disposal of 
subsidiaries (353) (47) (400) 

Exchange 
realignment (2,225) (2,225) 

At 31 December 2022 713,660 889 13,633 38,754 291 ,213 997,Z_28 1,225,_Q94 1,930,683 171 ,883 _ __§,383,537 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

26. DEFERRED TAX(continued) 

The movements in deferred tax assets of the Group during the Relevant Periods are as follows(continued): 

Deferred tax assets(continued) 

The Group(continued) 

Provision Changes in Depreciatio Deductible 
for fair value of n of Amortisation temporary 

impairment derivative property, of other differences 
of assets financial plant and intangible Deferred of 

instruments equipment assets income Tax losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2023 713,660 889 13,633 38,754 291,213 997,728 1,225,094 1,930,683 171,883 5,383,537 
Deferred tax 166,764 

( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the year 8,813 916 27,458 (690) 509,268 (145,501) (528,551) 47,706 86,183 

Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income during the 
year (183) (183) 

Disposal of 
subsidiaries (12,746) (1,991) (14,737) 

At 31 December 2023 880,424 9,702 14,549 66,212 290,523 1,494,250 1,077,602 1,402,132 __11__9,406 5,454,800 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Group(continued) 

Changes in Depreciatio Deductible 
Provision fair value of n of Amortisation temporary 

for derivative property, of other differences 
impairment financial plant and intangible Deferred of 

of assets instruments equipment assets income Tax losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2024 880,424 9,702 14,549 66,212 290,523 1,494,250 1,077,602 1,402,132 219,406 5,454,800 

Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the year 109,701 (629) (6,317) (319) (27,689) 273,977 (45,331) (352,866) (7,679) (57,152) 

Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income and 
retained profits 
during the year (77,885) 978 (76,907) 

Disposal of 
subsidiaries (142) (29,190) (4,248) (241) (76) (33,897) 

Exchange 
realignment 506 (151) 329 (4,355) (3,671) 

At 31 December 2024 990,48~ 9,073 8,232 65,893 262,834 1,661 ,001 1,028,352 1,049,025 ___108 ,274 _____§_,28~ 173 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Group(continued) 

Changes in Depreciatio Deductible 
Provision fair value of n of Amortisatio temporary 

for derivative property, n of other differences 
impairment financial plant and intangible Deferred of 

of assets instruments equipment assets income Tax losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2025 990,489 9,073 8,232 65,893 262,834 1,661,001 1,028,352 1,049,025 208,274 5,283,173 
Deferred tax 

( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the period 21,683 20,352 (4,504) 1,622 8,342 (24,679) 36,294 (70,152) (4,311) (15,353) 

Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income during the 
period (1,007) {1,007) 

Exchange realignment (873) 99 4,194 1,126 10,320 _____M,866 

At 30 April 2025 1,011,299 29,524 3,728 67,515 271,176 1,640,516 1,065,772 978,873 213,276 5,281,679 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Company 

Changes in Depreciatio Deductible 
Provision fair value of n of Amortisatio temporary 

for derivative property, n of other differences 
impairment financial plant and intangible Deferred of 

of assets instruments equipment assets income Tax losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2022 601,186 31,632 11,366 33,378 153,963 438,521 1,076,905 1,886,769 69,552 4,303,272 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credite 
d to profit or loss 
during the year (582,574) (30,743) (11,366) (33,378) (140,588) (253,868) (928,268) (1,804,762) (68,919) (3,854,466) 
Deferred tax 
(charged)/credite 
d to other 
comprehensive 
income during 
the year (518) (518) 
Disposal of 
subsidiaries (473) (473) 
Exchange 
realignment (1,752) (1,752) 

At 31 December 
2022 18,612 889 13,375 _1_82,428 148,637 8~L007 115 44fi,063 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Company (continued) 
Changes Deductibl 

in fair e 
value of Depreciati Amortisati temporary 

Provision derivative on of on of difference 
for financial property, other s of 

impairmen instrument plant and intangible Deferred Tax inventorie 
t of assets s equipment assets income losses Accruals s Others Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 
2023 18,612 889 - - 13,375 182,428 148,637 82,007 115 446,063 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credit 
ed to profit or 
loss during the 
year 7,766 6,543 - 115 (11,911) 14,998 26,167 7,234 175 51,087 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credit 
ed to other 
comprehensive 
income during 
the year - - - - - - - - (23) (23) 

At31 
December 
2023 26,378 __ _L_43~ - 115 1.464 197,426 174,804 89,241 267 ~127 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Company (continued) 

Deductible 
Provision Changes in fair Amortisation temporary 

for value of of other differences 
impairment derivativefinancial intangible Deferred Tax of 

of assets instruments assets income losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2024 26,378 - - 7,432 - - 115 - - 1,464 - - 197,426 - - 174,804 - - 89,241 - - 267 - - 497,127 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the year 2,432 (7,377) (31) (338) (25,593) 11 ,169 (89,241) (58) (109,037) 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income and 
retained profits 
during the year - - - - - - - (6) (6) 
Disposal of 
subsidiaries - - - - {78,180) - - - {78,180) 

At 31 December 
2024 28L81Q 55 84 1J26 ~3,65~ 185,973 - 203 309,904 

- - -
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax assets (continued) 

The Company (continued) 

Changes in Deductible 
Provision fair value of Amortisation temporary 

for derivative of other differences 
impairment financial intangible Deferred Tax of 

of assets instruments assets income losses Accruals inventories Others Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2025 28,810 - - 55 - - 84 - - 1,126 - - 93,653 - 185,973 - - - - - 203 - - 309,904 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to profit or loss 
during the period 2,456 19,233 10 (77) {3,525) (20,136) 910 (30) (1,159) 
Deferred tax 
( charged)/credited 
to other 
comprehensive 
income during the 
period - - - - - - - 19 19 

At 30 April 2025 31,266 19,288 94 1,049 90,128 165,837 910 192 308,764 
----
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities 

The Group 

Changes in fair 
value of financial 

assets at FVPL 
Amortisation of Depreciation of and derivative 
other intangible property, plant financial 

assets and equipment instruments Trade receivables Others Total 
RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2022 65,580 296,608 431,030 2,101,490 448,426 3,343,134 
Deferred tax 

charged/(credited) to profit 
or loss during the year 4,391 204,810 157,691 (110,042) 55,106 311,956 

Deferred tax credited to other 
comprehensive income 
during the year (36,153) - (36,153) 

At 31 December 2022 69,971 501,418 552,568 1,991,448 503,532 3,618,937 

At 1 January 2023 69,971 501,418 552,568 1,991,448 503,532 3,618,937 
Deferred tax 

charged/(credited) to profit 
or loss during the year 3,172 359,483 (2,059) (712,495) 20,974 (330,925) 

Deferred tax credited to other 
comprehensive income 
during the year {78,178) {78,178) 

At 31 December 2023 73jj~ 
-

860,901 472,331 1,278,953 524,506 3,209,834 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) 

The Group (continued) 

Changes in fair 
value of financial 

assets at FVPL 
Amortisation of Depreciation of and derivative 
other intangible property, plant financial 

assets and equipment instruments Trade receivables Others Total 
RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2024 73,143 860,901 472,331 1,278,953 524,506 3,209,834 
Deferred tax 

charged/(credited) to profit 
or loss during the year 7,173 (136,728) 7,355 (459,373) (37,858) (619,431) 

Deferred tax credited to other 
comprehensive income 
during the year (91 ,826) (91 ,826) 

Disposal of subsidiaries (451) (71) (522) 
Exchange realignment 777 777 

At 31 December 2024 80,316 724,173 387,860 819,129 487,354 2,498,832 

At 1 January 2025 80,316 724,173 387,860 819,129 487,354 2,498,832 
Deferred tax 

charged/(credited) to profit 
or loss during the period 13,124 (457) 5,885 (92,375) 73,330 (493) 

Deferred tax credited to other 
comprehensive income 
during the period - 4,407 4,407 

Exchange realignment {30) 514 484 

At 30 April 2025 _ 93,440 ii3,716 398,122 726,754 561 , 19_§ 2,503,230 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) 

The Company 

At 1 January 2022 
Deferred tax 
charged/(credited) to 
profit or loss during the 
year 
Deferred tax credited to 
other comprehensive 
income during the year 

At 31 December 2022 

At 1 January 2023 
Deferred tax 
charged/(credited) to 
profit or loss during the 
year 
Deferred tax credited to 
other comprehensive 
income during the year 

At 31 December 2023 

Amortisation 
of other 

intangible 
assets 

RMB'000 

65,580 

(65,580) 

Depreciation of 
property, plant and 

equipment 
RMB'000 

296,608 

(296,608) 

Changes in fair value 
of financial assets at 
FVPL and derivative 
financial instruments 

RMB'000 

431,030 

(160,132) 

(17,616) 

253,282 

253,282 

(32,207) 

(84,922) 

136,153 
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Trade 
receivables 

RMB'000 

2,101 ,490 

{2,012,919) 

88,571 

88,571 

8,469 

97,040 

Others 
RMB'000 

387,360 

(361 ,795) 

25,565 

25,565 

81 

25,646 

Total 
RMB'0O0 

3,282,068 

{2,897,034) 

(17,616) 

367,418 

367,418 

(23,657) 

(84,922) 

258,839 
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) 

The Company (continued) 

At 1 January 2024 
Deferred tax 
charged/(credited) to 
profit or loss during the 
year 
Deferred tax credited to 
other comprehensive 
income during the year 

At 31 December 2024 

At 1 January 2025 
Deferred tax 
charged/(credited) to 
profit or loss during the 
period 
Deferred tax credited to 
other comprehensive 

Amortisation 
of other 

intangible 
assets 

RMB'000 

income during the period _-_ _ _ _ 

At 30 April 2025 

Depreciation of 
property, plant and 

equipment 
RMB'000 

Changes in fair value 
of financial assets at 
FVPL and derivative 
financial instruments 

RMB'000 

136,153 

8,967 

(69,323) 

75,797 

75,797- -

(23,788) 

4,407 

56,416 
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Trade 
receivables 

RMB'000 

97,040 

(97,040) 

(14) 

(14) 

Others 
RMB'000 

25,646 

(27) 

25,619 

25,619 - -

(9) 

25,610 

Total 
RMB'000 

258,839 

(88,100 ) 

(69,323) 

101,416 

101,416 

(23,811) 

4,407 

82,012 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 

27. 

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the 
consolidated statements of financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax 
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: 

Net deferred tax 
assets recognised 
in the consolidated 
statements of 
financial position 

Net deferred tax 
liabilities recognised 
in the consolidated 
statements of 
financial position 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

2,499,338 3,070,315 

734,738 825,349 

2024 
RMB'000 

3,576,592 

792,251 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

3,623,704 

845,255 

As at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025, deferred tax assets have not been 
recognised in respect of tax losses of RMB2,953,798,000, RMB2,957,318,000,and 
RMB3,637,582,000 and RMB3,363,555,000 respectively, which will expire in one to ten years 
for offsetting against future taxable profits. 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses and deductible 
temporary differences as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some 
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax 
losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'0OO RMB'000 

Prepayments for 
purchase of land 
use right and 
equipment 180,131 70,250 52,542 51 ,328 

Others 109,489 22,907 12,842 17,240 
Impairment {3,960) (3,960) (3,960) 

Total 289,620 89,197 61 ,424 64,608 
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28. INVENTORIES 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 

Raw materials 4,791 ,265 4,184,971 3,883,479 3,832,911 
Work in progress 2,381,731 1,930,155 1,981,985 2,031,965 
Finished goods 13,023,768 14,146,525 14,640,170 15,217,397 

20,196,764 20,261,651 20,505,634 21 ,082,273 
Less: Provision for 

impairment loss (458,402) (493,889) (557,653) (574,796) 

Total 19,738,362 19,767,762 19,947,981 20,507,477 

The Company 
As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Raw materials 3,538 11,039 20 44 
Work in progress 6,201 12,386 79 62 
Finished goods 644,056 781,351 724,063 596,314 

653,795 804,776 724,162 596,420 
Less: Provision for 

impairment loss (5,026) (26,325) (16,943) (9,977) 

Total 648,769 778,451 707,219 586,443 

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Debt investments, at 
amortised cost 3,669,607 4,921,040 5,359,465 4,910,870 

Prepayments for suppliers 1,041,546 751,872 970,721 1,207,702 
Deposits and other receivables 3,395,273 3,658,313 3,764,265 3,950,331 
VAT recoverable 2,472,921 1,779,167 2,084,077 1,383,919 
Prepayment of taxes 782,144 744,411 475,302 523,539 
Deferred listing expenses 7,053 
Others 15,242 6,408 7,194 7,678 

11,376,733 11,861,211 12,661,024 11,991,092 
Impairment allowance (537,063) (647,415) (821,511) (853,644) 

Total 10,839,670 11,213,796 11,839,513 11,137,448 
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29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (continued) 

The Company 

Debt investments, at 
amortised cost 

Prepayments for 
suppliers 

Deposits and other 
receivables 

VAT recoverable 
Deferred listing 

expenses 
Others 

Impairment allowance 

Total 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 -----

RMB'O00 RMB'O00 

1,653,690 4,881,576 

52,810 54,837 

1,187,103 2,214,232 
346,666 68,610 

1 12 
3,240,270 7,219,267 

(48,506) (52,316) 

3,191,764 7,166,951 

2024 
RMB'000 

5,339,837 

49,844 

2,631,008 
32,655 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

4,863,480 

150,853 

378,035 
26,281 

7,053 

8,053,344 5,425,702 
__ _,(_55__,_, 9_8_7) __ _c(,__57_,_,_58_1) 

7,997,357 5,368,121 

An impairment analysis was performed at the end of each of the Relevant Periods. The Group 
has applied the general approach to provide for expected credit losses for non-trade other 
receivables under IFRS 9. The Group considered the historical loss rate and adjusted it for 
forward-looking macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit loss rate . 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'O0O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
year/period 532,151 537,063 647,415 821,511 

Impairment losses, net 9,649 114,995 203,557 31,848 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible (4,091) (29,107) (27) 
Exchange realignment (4,737) (552) (354) 312 

At the end of the 
year/period 537,063 647,415 821,511 853,644 
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29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At the beginning of the 
year/period 48,240 48,506 52,316 

Impairment losses, net 11,696 4,906 4,171 
Amount written off as 

uncollectible (11,455) (1 ,098) (502) 
Exchange realignment 25 2 2 

At the end of the 
year/period 48,506 52,316 55,987 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

55,987 
1,594 

57,581 

The amounts due from related parties included in other receivables are disclosed in note 49 to 
the Financial statements. 

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Derivative financial 
assets 

Forward currency 
contracts 

Others 

Total 

Derivative financial 
liabilities 

Forward currency 
contracts 

Others 

Total 

2022 
RMB'000 

311 ,833 
62,468 

374,301 

241,152 

241,152 

As at 31 December 
---=20"-=2=-=-3 2024 

RMB'000 RMB'0O0 

333,830 
233 

334,063 

237,286 
134 

237,420 

119 

375,720 

375,720 

100,394 
6,368 

106,762 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

225,481 

225,481 

374,824 
19,396 

394,220 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Cash and bank 
balances 21,342,876 18,071,827 20,383,175 20,391,620 

Placements with 
banks 196,162 303,286 449,311 102,715 

Subtotal 21,539,038 18,375,113 20,832,486 20,494,335 

Less: 
Restricted deposits (962,954) (704,117) (689,488) (649,235) 
Time deposits with 
original maturity of 
more than three 
months (7,880,313) (9,529,137) (8,566,529) (12,005,332) 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 12,695,771 8,141 ,859 11,576,469 7,839,768 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Cash and bank 
balances 13,019,669 11,406,110 10,862,699 6,026,908 

Less: 
Restricted deposits (5,920,734) (4,550,946) (6,628,113) (2,589,202) 
Time deposits with 
original maturity of 
more than three 
months (3,604,480) (6,147,375) (243,962) (2,242,235) 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 3,494,455 707,789 3,990,624 1,195,471 

At 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025, the cash and bank balances of the 
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB12,503,118,000, RMB11,291,819,000, 
RMB10,880,575,000 and RMB 6,491,459,000, respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible 
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations 
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the 
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct 
foreign exchange business. 

Certain bank deposits are pledged for the issuance of bankers' acceptance, details of which 
are disclosed in note 44 to the Financial statements. 

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank 
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of 
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair values. 

120 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
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32. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 

The Group 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Trade payables 19,717,317 17,617,741 
Bills payables 9,189,370 5,074,985 

Total 28,906,687 22,692,726 

2024 
RMB'OOO 

21,264,967 
7,389,392 

28,654,359 

As at 30 Aeril 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

24,182,587 
8,000,566 

32,183,153 

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods 
is as follows: 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Within 1 year 28,801,871 22,506,872 28,396,361 31 ,896,177 
Over 1 year 104,816 185,854 257,998 286,976 

Total 28,906,687 22,692,726 28,654,359 32,183,153 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Trade payables 926,964 1,884,365 2,130,936 1,785,826 

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods 
is as follows: 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Within 1 year 926,662 1,875,917 2,120,342 1,775,705 
Over 1 year 302 8,448 10,594 10,121 

Total 926,964 1,884,365 2,130,936 1,785,826 

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing. 

As at the end of each of the Relevant Periods, the carrying amounts of trade and bills payables 
approximated their fair values. 

The amounts due to related parties included in trade payables are disclosed in note 49 to the 
Financial statements. 
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'0OO RMB'OOO 

Dividends payables 350,315 113,986 213,862 213,825 
Payables for construction 

costs 401 ,929 467,795 454,115 388,909 
Payables for purchases of 

equipment 1,345,899 1,291 ,437 1,102,258 1,044,969 
Payables for asset-backed 

securities and factoring 
transfer payments 2,246,948 1,823,086 1,532,317 1,323,308 

Payables to individuals 339,442 337,622 179,302 181,966 
Employee benefits payables 3,166,739 3,017,925 3,139,635 2,562,833 
Output VAT to be transferred 1,594,280 1,200,776 1,013,466 929,660 
Provisions and accruals 4,704,044 4,449,940 4,341 ,943 4,258,116 
Other tax payables 527,728 399,211 485,098 427,747 
Other payables 2,311,424 2,395,512 2,108,094 2,228,659 

Total 16,988,748 15,497,290 14,570,090 13,559,992 

The Company 
As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'0OO 

Dividends payables 1,015 1,012 1,012 1,012 
Payables for construction 5,165 

costs 1,661 7,888 8,880 
Payables for purchases of 

equipment 2,045 45,598 38,054 1,971 
Payables for asset-backed 

securities and factoring 
transfer payments 924,166 334,998 144,941 216,630 

Payables to individuals 222,012 215,912 12,549 12,706 
Employee benefits payables 273,385 251,772 519,964 463,151 
Output VAT to be transferred 4,279 30,842 7,952 9,990 
Provisions and accruals 55,090 49,006 110,529 90,380 
Other tax payables 14,770 12,982 55,849 20,781 
Other payables 11,471,802 14,313,094 11,869,936 9,262,864 

Total 12,970,225 15,263,104 12,765,951 10,088,365 

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand or within one year. 

The amounts due to related parties included in other payables are disclosed in note 49 to the 
Financial statements. 

The dividend payable of RMB213.8 million will be settled prior to the Listing 
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITES 

35. 

The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities: 

As at 1 
JanuarY As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 

2022 2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'0OO RMB'0O0 RMB'0OO RMB'000 

Short-term 
advances 
received from 
customers 

Sale of products 1,765,531 1,896,711 2,177,672 2,520,831 2,564,473 

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as established in the 
contracts. A portion of payments is usually received in advance of the performance under the 
contracts. The contract liabilities comprise the prepayments received from customers, to whom 
the products have not yet been transferred. The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 
December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025 is mainly due to the increase in advances 
received from customers in relation to the sale of products. 

The amounts due to related parties included in contract liabilities are disclosed in note 49 to the 
Financial statements. 

PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Analysed by type of 
counterparties 

Banks 6,501,599 5,411,200 3,480,000 3,500,220 

Accrued interest 22,136 24,197 27,970 26,046 

Total 6,523,735 5,435,397 3,507,970 3,526,266 

123 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

36. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 

The Group 

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2024 As at 30 April 2025 
Effective interest Effective interest Effective interest Effective interest 

rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'00O rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 
Current 
Current portion of 

long-term bank 
loans-unsecured 1.30-4.00 2023 1,930,348 1.30-3.55 2024 1,404,331 2.05-3.95 2025 3,738,637 1.95-3.25 2026 2,321,406 

Current portion of 
long-term bank 
loans-secured 2.40-6.99 2024 158,934 2.40-6.99 2026 230,539 

Bank loans-
unsecured 0.80-7.50 2023 4,198,569 0.80-6.71 2024 2,226,370 0.10-5.72 2025 3,442,289 0.83-2.50 2026 2,394,688 

Bank loans-secured 3.00 2023 341,479 3.00 2024 1,889,254 2.10-3.00 2025 2,511 ,067 2.10-3.00 2026 2,511 ,239 
Other borrowing-

secured 1.20-3.80 2023 4,171 ,249 0.65-3.65 2024 1,791,222 0.65-2.7 2025 2,077,806 0.65-2.7 2026 996,795 
Short term bonds 1.70-2.44 2023 1,706,425 1.93-1 .98 2025 1,584,950 1.93-1.98 2026 ~659 

Subtotal 12,348,070 7,470,111 13,354,749 8,643,326 

Non-current 
Bank loans-secured 2.40-6.99 2025-2033 255,205 2.05-3.95 2026-2033 274,847 2.05-3.95 2027-2033 273,221 
Bank loans-

unsecured 1.42-6.05 2024-2033 21 ,624,937 2.40-6.99 2025-2033 23,300,523 2.05-3.95 2026-2033 11 ,281 ,335 1.95-3.25 2027-2033 11,243,356 

Subtotal 21,624,937 23,555,728 11 ,556,182 ~577 

Total 33,973,007 _ _ 31,025,839 24,910,931 20,159,903 
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36. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Analysed into: 
Bank loans repayable: 

Within one year or on 
demand 6,470,396 5,678,889 9,691,993 7,457,872 

In the one to second 
year, inclusive 1,813,287 9,451,735 4,385,206 4,191,182 

In the second to third 
years, inclusive 11,713,955 6,360,761 4,020,518 3,646,476 

In the third to fourth 
years, inclusive 364,187 278,150 454,046 437,016 

In the fourth to fifth 
years, inclusive 5,816,482 4,390,263 691,326 695,446 

Over five years 1,917,026 3,074,819 2,005,086 2,546,457 

Subtotal 28,095,333 29,234,617 21,248,175 18,974,449 

Other borrowings 
repayable: 

Within one year or on 
demand 5,877,674 1,791 ,222 3,662,756 1,185,454 

Total 33,973,007 31 ,025,839 24,910,931 20,159,903 

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: 

As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

USO 9,477,684 5,587,352 838,467 
THB 807,078 1,000,950 1,313,880 1,234,931 
EUR 604,677 760,595 836,747 26,275 
JPY 492,213 300,049 477,424 
INR 431,623 24,309 524,799 
MYR 63,088 97,654 101,163 
SGD 36,743 39,979 92,068 106,170 
AUD 524 23,209 

Total 11,913,106 7,811,412 3,182,325 2,392,808 

Except for the borrowings listed above, all borrowings are denominated in RMB. 

The Group considers there is no indication that it will have difficulties in complying with the loan 
covenant. 
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36. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2024 As at 30 April 2025 
Effective interest Effective interest Effective interest Effective interest 

rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 rate(%) Maturity RMB'000 
Current 
Current portion of 

long-term bank 
loans-unsecured 2.40-3.50 2023 653,443 2.52-3.55 2024 190,566 2.05-3.95 2025 2,125,062 1-95-2.20 2026 1,271,548 

Current portion of 
long-term bank 
loans-secured 

Bank loans-
unsecured 3.10-4.99 2023 728,921 3.00-4.99 2024 200,961 2.50-3.00 2025 1,199,998 2.50 2026 200,000 

Bank loans- secured 
Other borrowing-

secured 1.20-3.80 2023 1,180 0.65-2.7 2025 8,361 
Short term bonds 1.70-2.44 2023 1,706,425 1.93-1 .98 2025 1,001,950 

Subtotal 3,089 ,969 391 ,527 4,335,371 ______!.iI!,548 

Non-current 
Bank loans-secured 
Bank loans-

unsecured 2.40-3.50 2024-2026 8,643 ,000 2.52-3.55 2025-2026 9,683,046 2.05-3.95 2026-2027 5,081 ,500 1.95-2.8 2027-2028 5,246,500 

Subtotal 8~ 9,683,046 5,081 ,500 5,246,500 

Total 11 ,732,969 10,074,573 9,416,871 6,718,048 
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36. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 

The Company 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Analysed into: 
Bank loans repayable: 

Within one year or on 
demand 1,382,364 391,527 3,325,060 

In the one to second 
year, inclusive 600,000 5,917,955 2,021,000 

In the second to third 
years, inclusive 7,893,000 3,765,091 3,060,500 

In the third to fourth 
years, inclusive 150,000 

In the fourth to fifth 
years, inclusive 

Over five years 

Subtotal 10,025,364 10,074,573 8,406,560 

Other borrowings 
repayable: 

Within one year or on 
demand 1,707,605 1,010,311 

Total 11,732,969 10,074,573 9,416,871 

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 

USO 626,814 

Total 626,814 

Except for the borrowings listed above, all borrowings are denominated in RMB. 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

1,471 ,548 

2,549,000 

2,697,500 

6,718,048 

6,718,048 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

The Group considers there is no indication that it will have difficulties in complying with the loan 
covenant. 
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37. 

38. 

DEFERRED INCOME 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 

RMB'0O0 RMB'000 
Government grants and 

subsidies 
At beginning of year/period 1,371,693 2,130,628 
Grants received 834,415 447,545 
Charged to profit or loss 

(note 5) (75,480) (190,700) 
Transferred out with the 

disposal of property, 
plant and equipment 

At end of year/period 2,130,628 2,387,473 

2024 
RMB'000 

2,387,473 
191,453 

(197,226) 

(34,324) 

2,347,376 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'O00 

2,347,376 
117,418 

(68,413) 

2,396,381 

The balances mainly represented the government grants received to build industrial parks and 
are released to profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal 
annual instalments. 

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

The Group 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Mortgage and finance lease 
guarantee obligations 196,825 177,300 130,119 123,557 

Net liabilities of defined 
benefit plan (note) 37,096 37,798 33,617 34,440 

Other long-term employee 
benefits 50,719 31,717 29,365 29,065 

Others 32,719 48,370 43,705 38,711 

Total 317,359 295,185 236,806 225,773 

The Company 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Mortgage and finance lease 
guarantee obligations 360,504 336,143 266,902 247,870 

Others 6,512 6,512 

Total 360,504 336,143 273,414 254,382 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

Note: 

The employees of Putzmeister Holding GmbH, a subsidiary of the Group, set up a defined 
benefit plan (hereinafter referred to as "Benefit Plan") based on annual revenue units according 
to the needs and requirements of the German labor market. According to the Benefit Plan, 
employees who meet the requirements of the Benefit Plan can participate in the Benefit Plan 
by reducing their monthly paid-in income. Before the employee retires, the Benefit Plan injects 
funds into the nominal account in the Benefit Plan according to a certain percentage each year; 
when the employee retires, the amount accumulated in the nominal account will be fully 
converted into retirement pension or fully converted into retirement pension with spousal 
benefits. As at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025, the weighted average 
length of the Benefit Plan was 2.7 years, 2.5 years, 5.7 years and 3.5 years, respectively; the 
average service life of the Benefit Plan was 25.1 years, 26.1 years, 26.5 years and 26.Syears, 
respectively. 

The Benefit Plan requires a fee to be paid into an independently managed fund. The Benefit 
Plan is in the legal form of a fund and is administered by an independent trustee whose assets 
are held separately from those of the Group. The trustee is responsible for determining the 
Benefit Plan's investment strategy. The trustee reviews the funding level of the plan. The review 
includes asset-liability matching strategies and investment risk management strategies, as well 
as the use of annuities and life swaps to manage risk. The trustee decides the amount to be 
paid based on the results of the annual review. 

Benefit Plan is calculated annually by a qualified independent actuary using the expected unit 
benefit method. As the calculation process involves uncertain factors, as at the end of each of 
the Relevant Periods, the net liabilities of the Benefit Plan are calculated based on the 
management's best judgment on uncertain factors based on future development expectations, 
market environment and industry standards. 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods were 
as follows: 

As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

Discount rate 3.70% 3.80% 3.00% 3.40% 
Pension growth rate 0.00%-1 .75% 0.00%-1.75% 0.00%-3.00% 0.00% 
Expected rate of 

return on planned 
assets NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Expected rate of 
return on 
unplanned assets NIA NIA NIA NIA 

As at 31 December 2022, the actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets 
were RMB35,647,000, and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 49.00% of the 
benefits that had accrued to qualified employees. The deficiency of RMB37,096,000 is expected 
to be cleared over the remaining service period of 25.1 years. 

As at 31 December 2023, the actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets 
were RMB37,071,000, and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 49.51 % of the 
benefits that had accrued to qualified employees. The deficiency of RMB37,798,000 is expected 
to be cleared over the remaining service period of 26.1 years. 

As at 31 December 2024, the actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets 
were RMB34, 196,000, and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 50.43% of the 
benefits that had accrued to qualified employees. The deficiency of RMB33,617,000 is expected 
to be cleared over the remaining service period of 26.5 years. 

As at 30 April 2025, the actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets were 
RMB37,062,000, and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 51.83% of the 
benefits that had accrued to qualified employees. The deficiency of RMB34,440,000 is expected 
to be cleared over the remaining service period of 26.8 years. 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

The quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions used are as follows: 

As at 31 December 2022 
Increase Increase/( Increase/ 

lncrease/(d /(decrea decrease) (decreas 
ecrease) in se) in in defined e) in 

defined current benefit current 
lncre benefit service Deere obligation service 

ase obligations cost ase s cost 
% % 

Discount rate 0.50 (2,126) (5) 0.50 2,329 6 
Pension growth 

rate 0.50 2,130 0.50 (1,981) 

As at 31 December 2023 
Increase Increase/( Increase/ 

lncrease/(d /(decrea decrease) (decreas 
ecrease) in se) in in defined e) in 

defined current benefit current 
lncre benefit service Deere obligation service 

ase obligations cost ase s cost 
% % 

Discount rate 0.50 (2,061) (5) 0.50 2,280 5 
Pension growth 

rate 0.50 2,809 0.50 (1,947) 

As at 31 December 2024 
Increase Increase/( Increase/ 

lncrease/(d /(decrea decrease) (decreas 
ecrease) in se) in in defined e) in 

defined current benefit current 
lncre benefit service Deere obligation service 

ase obligations cost ase s cost 
% % 

Discount rate 0.50 (2 ,267) (5) 0.50 2,543 5 
Pension growth 

rate 0.50 2,267 0.50 (2,068) 

As at 30 April 2025 
lncrease/(de Increase/( lncrease/(d Increase/( 

crease) in decrease) ecrease) in decrease) 
defined in current defined in current 

lncrea benefit service Decrea benefit service 
se obligations cost se obligations cost 
% % 

Discount rate 0.50 (2,038) (3) 0.50 2,541 4 
Pension growth 

rate 0.50 2,268 0.50 (1,947) 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the 
impact on defined benefit plan obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions 
occurring at the end of each of the Relevant Periods. The sensitivity analysis is based on a 
change in a significant assumption, with all other assumptions remained constant. The 
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit plan 
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another. 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets 
are as follows: 

As at 31 December 2022 

Present value of Fair value of Net defined benefit 
defined benefit plan assets plan liability/(asset) 

plan obligations 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 

Opening balance 96,291 39,626 56,665 
Charged to profit or loss 919 537 382 

Current service cost 208 211 (3) 
Net interest 711 326 385 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income (14,475) 2,253 (16,728) 

Actuarial gains or losses (14,475) 2,253 (16,728) 
Other changes (9,992) (6,769) (3,223) 

Employer input 71 71 
Benefits paid (10,063) (6,840) (3,223) 

Closing balance 72,743 35,647 37,096 

As at 31 December 2023 
Present value of Fair value of Net defined benefit 

defined benefit plan assets plan liability/(asset) 
plan obligations 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Opening balance 72,743 35,647 37,096 
Charged to profit or loss 2,553 1,578 975 

Current service cost 150 210 (60) 
Net interest 2,403 1,368 1,035 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 5,010 2,047 2,963 

Actuarial gains or losses 5,010 2,047 2,963 
Other changes (5,437) (2,201) (3,236) 

Employer input 81 81 
Benefits paid (5,518) (2,282) (3,236) 

Closing balance 74,869 37,071 37,798 

As at 31 December 2024 
Present value of Fair value of Net defined benefit 

defined benefit plan assets plan liability/(asset) 
plan obligations 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Opening balance 74,869 37,071 37,798 
Charged to profit or loss 2,390 1,499 891 

Current service cost 141 177 (36) 
Net interest 2,249 1,322 927 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income (3,236) (1,661) (1,575) 

Actuarial gains or losses (3,236) (1,661) (1 ,575) 
Other changes (6,210) (2,713) (3,497) 

Employer input 55 55 
Benefits paid (6,265) (2,768) (3,49'7) 

Closing balance 67,813 34,196 33,617 
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38. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

39. 

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets 
are as follows: (continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 
Present value of 

defined benefit plan Fair value of plan Net defined benefit 
obligations assets plan liability/(asset) 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Opening balance 67,813 34,196 33,617 
Charged to profit or 

loss 663 365 298 
Current service cost 47 47 
Net interest 616 365 251 
Recognised in other 

comprehensive 
income 5,121 3,286 1,835 

Actuarial gains or 
losses 5,121 3,286 1,835 

Other changes (2,095) (785) (1,310) 
Employer input 82 (82) 
Benefits paid {2,095} {867} {1 ,228} 
Closing balance 71 ,502 37,062 34,440 

SHARE CAPITAL/TREASURY SHARES 

Share Capital 

The Group 
As at 31 December As at 30 AQril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'0O0 RMB'OOO 

Issued and fully paid: 
Ordinary shares of 

RMB1 .00 each 8,493.286 8,485,740 8,474,978 8,474,978 

The Company 
As at 31 December As at 30 Aeril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'OOO RMB'O00 RMB'0OO RMB'OOO 

Issued and fully paid: 
Ordinary shares of 

RMB1 .00 each 8,493,286 8,485,740 8,474,978 8,474,978 
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39. SHARE CAPITAL/TREASURY SHARES (continued) 

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows: 

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 
2022 

Exercise of the share option 

At 31 December 2022 

Cancellation of shares 

At 31 December 2023 

Cancellation of shares 

At 31 December 2024 

Cancellation of shares 

As at 30 April 2025 

Treasury shares 

Number of 
shares in issue 

in thousand shares 

8,492,588 

698 

8,493,286 

(7,546) 

8,485,740 

(10,762) 

8,474,978 

8,474,978 

A summary of movements in the Company's treasury shares is as follows: 

At the beginning of the 
year 

Granted of treasury 
shares under share 
incentive scheme 

Repurchase of shares 
Cancellation of 

treasury shares 

At the end of the year 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

619,679 

(534,755) 
216,250 

301,174 

135 

301,174 

(603,339) 
(94,971) 

612,790 

215,654 

2024 
RMB'000 

215,654 

(624,048) 
654,985 

(103,963) 

142,628 

Share capital 
RMB'OOO 

8,492,588 

698 

8,493,286 

(7,546) 

8,485,740 

(10,762) 

8,474,978 

8,474,978 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

142,628 

957,136 

1,099,764 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

40. RESERVES 

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the Relevant Periods are 
presented in the consolidated statements of changes in equity. 

(a) Capital reserve 

The capital reserve of the Group includes the share premium contributed by the shareholders 
of the Company. 

(b) Statutory surplus reserve 

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of association of the subsidiaries 
established in the PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as 
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the 
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in 
the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the subsidiaries, the statutory 
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses or to be converted to increase paid-in 
capital, provided that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered 
capital of the respective entities. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other than those for 
which it is created and is not distributable as cash dividends. 

(c) Exchange fluctuation reserve 

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the 
translation of foreign operations of which the functional currencies are not RMB. The reserve is 
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.3. 

(d) Special reserve - safety production fund 

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration 
of Work Safety, the Group is required to set aside an amount for maintenance, production and 
other similar funds. The funds can be used for maintenance of production and improvements of 
safety and are not available for distribution to shareholders. 
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40. RESERVES (continued) 

(e) General risk reserve 

Pursuant to the relevant notices issued by regulatory bodies, one subsidiary in the financial 
services segment in Mainland China is required to set aside a general risk reserve. In principle, 
the balance of general risk reserve shall be no less than 1.5% of the ending balance of risk 
assets. 

(f) Fair value reserve 

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of of financial 
assets measured at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that were held at the end of the Relevant Periods. 

(g) Other reserve 

Other reserve comprises the remeasurement of a defined benefit plan and share of other 
comprehensive income/(loss) under equity method. 
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40. RESERVES (continued) 

(h) Reserves movement of the Company 

Year ended 31 December 2022 

Fair value Exchange Statutory surplus 
Capital reserve reserve fluctuation reserve reserve Other reserve Retained profits Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OOO 

At 1 January 2022 6,068,013 534,185 1,149 3,159,572 70,415 4,264,956 14,098,290 

Profit for the year 1,058,595 1,058,595 
Other comprehensive income for the year: {36,204) (4,921) (8,678) (49,803) 
Total comprehensive income for the year (36,204) (4,921) (8,678) 1,058,595 1,008,792 

Exercise of the share option 3,847 3,847 
Granted of treasury shares under share 

incentive scheme 147,448 147,448 
Cash dividends (3,800,033) (3,800,033) 
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the disposal 

of financial assets at FVOCI (1,418) 1,418 
Recognition of share-based payment expenses 59,113 59,113 
Cancellation of share incentive scheme 20,396 20,396 
Transfer from retained profits 105,859 (105,859) 

At 31 December 2022 6 ,298,817 496,563 _ (3,772) 3,265,431 61 ,737 1,419,077 _ _ 1_1,537,853 
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40. TREASURY SHARES/RESERVES (continued) 

(i) Reserves movement of the Company (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2023 

Fair value Exchange Statutory surplus 
Capital reserve reserve fluctuation reserve reserve Other reserve Retained profits Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2023 6,298,817 496,563 (3,772) 3,265,431 61,737 1,419,077 11,537,853 

Profit for the year 1,984,537 1,984,537 
Other comprehensive income for the year: {231 ,978) {1,050) 4,972 {228,056) 
Total comprehensive income for the year (231,978) (1,050) 4,972 1,984,537 1,756,481 

Granted of treasury shares under share 
incentive scheme (21,840) (21,840) 

Cash dividends (1,350,137) (1,350,137) 
Business combination under common control (9,198) (9,198) 
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the disposal 

of financial assets at FVOCI (27,691) 27,691 
Recognition of share-based payment expenses 21,747 21 ,747 
Cancellation of share incentive scheme (62,249) (62,249) 
Transfer from retained profits 198,454 (198,454) 

At 31 December 2023 6,227,277 236,8!M !4,8221 3,463,885 -- 66,70~ 1,882,714 11 ,872,657 
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40. TREASURY SHARES/RESERVES (continued) 

(i) Reserves movement of the Company (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 2024 

Fair value Exchange Statutory surplus 
Capital reserve reserve fluctuation reserve reserve Other reserve Retained profits Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2024 6,227,277 236,894 (4,822) 3,463,885 66,709 1,882,714 11 ,872,657 

Profit for the period 4,448,899 4,448,899 
Other comprehensive income for the year (921) (1 ,1 77) (7,891) (9,989) 
Total comprehensive income for the year (921) (1,177) (7,891) 4,448,899 4,438,910 

Cancellation of treasury shares (93,201) (93,201) 
Granted of treasury shares under share 

incentive scheme (70,155) (70,155) 
Cash dividends (1 ,859,656) (1 ,859,656) 
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the disposal 

of financial assets at FVOCI (234,541) 234,541 
Recognition of share-based payment expenses 70,147 70,147 
Cancellation of share incentive scheme 17,304 17,304 
Transfer from retained profits 444,890 (444,890) 

At 31 December 2024 6,151,372 _1,432 is,999l 3,908,775 58,8~ _ 4,261 ,608 _ _H,376,006 
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40. TREASURY SHARES/RESERVES (continued) 

(i) Reserves movement of the Company (continued) 

Four months ended 30 April 2025 
Fair value Exchange Statutory surplus 

Capital reserve reserve fluctuation reserve reserve Other reserve Retained profits Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

At 1 January 2025 6,151,372 1,432 (5,999) 3,908,775 58,818 4,261,608 14,376,006 

Profit for the period 152,511 152,511 
Other comprehensive income for the period (57) 48 13,222 13,213 
Total comprehensive income for the period (57) 48 13,222 152,511 165,724 

Recognition of share-based payment expenses 20,007 20,007 
Cancellation of share incentive scheme 103,628 103,628 --

Al 30 April 2025 6,275,007 1,375 (5,951l - - 3,908,775 72,040 4 414,119 14,665,365 
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 

On 7 November 2016, the Proposal of Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. on Granting Share options 
and Restricted Share Incentive Plan (Draft) and its Summary of 2016 (the "Incentive Plan") was 
approved by the Company's second extraordinary general meeting of shareholders in 2016. 
The participants of the Incentive Plan were the directors, senior management (excluding 
independent directors and supervisors), key staff and key management personnel of the 
Company and its subsidiaries who have a direct impact on or have made outstanding 
contributions to the Company's business results and ongoing development as a whole. 
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 

The Incentive Plans include share options plan and restricted share plan. The details are as 
follows: 
Share options incentive plan: 
The Company has granted a total of 308.2773 million stock options to the incentive targets. 
Among them, the 261.3253 million stock options granted in 2016, upon meeting the exercise 
conditions, have the right to purchase 1 share of the Company's stock at a price of RMB5.64 
within the validity period, and the 46.9520 million reserved stock options granted in 2017, upon 
meeting the exercise conditions, have the right to purchase 1 share of the Company's stock at 
a price of RMB7.95 within the validity period. The validity period of the stock options shall not 
exceed 5 years. The stock options shall become exercisable 16 months after the grant date and 
shall be effective in three batches on the three exercise effective dates at the ratios of 50%, 
25%, and 25%, that is, each exercise effective date shall be the first trading day after the 
expiration of 16 months, 28 months, and 40 months from the grant date, respectively. The main 
exercise condition is that the net profit growth rate for each year from 2017 to 2019 shall not be 
less than 10% compared with the previous year. If the exercise conditions of the stock options 
are met, the incentive targets shall exercise the stock options held by them year by year 
according to the ratios specified in the plan. If the Company's performance does not meet the 
performance assessment target conditions in the first and second exercise periods, the 
corresponding stock options can be deferred to the next year and exercised when the 
performance assessment target conditions are met in the next year. If the conditions are not 
met in the next year, the stock options shall not be exercised and shall be cancelled by the 
Company. In the third exercise period, if the Company's performance assessment does not 
meet the performance assessment target conditions, the stock options shall be cancelled by 
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2022, 698,188 share options were 
exercised and 17,500 share options were lapsed and there were no outstanding share options 
as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods. 

Restricted Stock Incentive Plan: The Company has issued a total of 57.897676 million shares 
of restricted stock to the equity incentive targets who meet the grant conditions through the 
method of targeted issuance of restricted tradable shares. Among them, 47.077813 million 
shares were granted in 2016 at an issue price of RMB2.82 per share, and 10.819863 million 
shares were granted in 2017 at an issue price of RMB3.98 per share. The validity period of the 
restricted stock shall not exceed 5 years. The restricted stock shall be locked immediately after 
the grant. The lock-up period for all the restricted stock granted to the incentive targets is 16 
months. After the lock-up period, the restricted stock shall be unlocked in two batches at the 
ratio of 50% each on the two unlocking dates, that is, each unlocking period shall be the first 
trading day after the expiration of 16 months and 28 months from the grant date, respectively. 
The main unlocking condition is that the net profit growth rate for each year from 2017 to 2018 
shall not be less than 10% compared with the previous year. If the unlocking conditions of the 
restricted stock are met, the equity held by the incentive targets shall be unlocked year by year 
according to the ratios specified in the plan. If the Company's performance does not meet the 
performance assessment target conditions in the first unlocking period, the corresponding 
restricted stock can be deferred to the next year and unlocked when the performance 
assessment target conditions are met in the next year. If the conditions are not met in the next 
year, the restricted stock shall not be unlocked and shall be repurchased and cancelled by the 
Company. In the second unlocking period, if the Company's performance assessment does not 
meet the performance assessment target conditions, the restricted stock shall be repurchased 
and cancelled by the Company. 
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 

On 29 July 2022, the Company convened its third extraordinary general meeting of 2022, during 
which the Proposal on the Company's 2022 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan (Draft) and Its 
Summary (the "2022 Incentive Plan") was reviewed and approved. The incentive plan covers 
directors, senior management, and core technical (business) personnel of the Company and its 
subsidiaries (excluding independent directors and supervisors) . 

Under the plan, the Company granted a total of 22,386,250 restricted shares at a grant price of 
RMB9.66 per share to eligible participants. The restricted shares are subject to a maximum 
term of 45 months and are immediately locked upon grant. All restricted shares are subject to 
a 20-month lock-up period, after which they will be released in two equal tranches (50% each) 
on the first trading day following the 20th month and 32nd month from the grant date. The key 
unlocking conditions are as follows: 

First unlocking tranche (20th month): The Company must achieve either of the following for the 
2023 fiscal year: 
(i) 10% or higher year-on-year revenue growth compared to 2022; or 
(ii) 10% or higher year-on-year net profit growth compared to 2022. 

Second unlocking tranche (32nd month): The Company must achieve either of the following for 
the 2024 fiscal year: 
(i) 20% or higher year-on-year revenue growth compared to 2022; or 
(ii) 20% or higher year-on-year net profit growth compared to 2022. 

If the unlocking conditions are met, the restricted shares will be released proportionally as 
stipulated. If the Company fails to satisfy the performance targets, all corresponding restricted 
shares eligible for release in the relevant fiscal year shall not be unlocked and will instead be 
repurchased and cancelled by the Company. 

The difference between the employees' subscription price and the fair value of the restricted 
shares on the grant date constitutes a share-based payment expense. 

On 14 December 2020, "Proposal on Measures for the Management of the 2020 Employee 
Stock Ownership Plan" (hereinafter referred to as "2020 Employee Stock Ownership Plan") was 
approved by the Company's second extraordinary general meeting of shareholders in 2020. 
The Company held its first Extraordinary General Meeting of 2021 on 18 June 2021 to consider 
and approve the "Proposal on Measures for the Management of the 2021 Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan" (hereinafter referred to as "2021 ESOP"). At the 2021 Annual General Meeting 
of Shareholders held on 13 May 2022, the Company deliberated and approved the Motion 
Concerning the "2022 Employee Stock Ownership Plan (Draft) and Summary" (hereinafter 
referred to as the "2022 ESOP"). The Company held its Extraordinary General Meeting on 30 
June 2023 to consider and approve the "Proposal on Measures for the Management of the 2023 
Employee Stock Ownership Plan" (hereinafter referred to as "2023 ESOP"). The Company held 
its Extraordinary General Meeting on 19 April 2024 to consider and approve the "Proposal on 
Measures for the Management of the 2023 Employee Stock Ownership Plan" (hereinafter 
referred to as "2024 ESOP"). 

The participants of the Employee Stock Ownership Plan include directors, supervisors, senior 
management, intermediate management, key position personnel and core business (technical) 
personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
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The details of Employee Stock Ownership Plan are as follows: 

For 2020 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Company recognises 14 December 2020 as the 
grant date and would repurchase 8,289,375 shares in special securities account to the account 
of 2020 Employee Stock Ownership Plan on 25 December 2020 at the price of 
RMB 16.94/share. Duration of such Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 72 months, and the lock­
up period of underlying stocks acquired in Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 12 months, which 
shall be vested to the Holders in five natural years. Thereafter, 20% of the stocks will be 
unlocked each year. From the date when the last underlying stock mentioned in the Company 
notice is transferred to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, trading is forbidden during the lock-up 
period mentioned above. 

For 2021 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Company recognises 18 June 2021 as the grant 
date and would repurchase 7,408,100 shares in special securities account to the account of 
2021 Employee Stock Ownership Plan on 30 June 2021 at the price of RMB35.73/share. 
Duration of such Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 72 months, and the lock-up period of 
underlying stocks acquired in Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 12 months, which shall be 
vested to the Holders in five natural years. Thereafter, 20% of the stocks will be unlocked each 
year. From the date when the last underlying stock mentioned in the Company notice is 
transferred to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, trading is forbidden during the lock-up period 
mentioned above. 

For 2022 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Company determined 13 May 2022 as the grant 
date, and transferred 19,702,000 shares in the special securities account for repurchase to the 
2022 Employee Stock Ownership Plan account on 28 July 2022 at a grant price of RMB23.65 
per share. The duration of the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 72 months, and the lockup 
period for the underlying stocks acquired by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 12 months. 
The stock rights and interests of salaried employees are attributed to the holders in five natural 
years, with an annual attribution of 20%; the stock rights and interests of employees under the 
share-based salary system are attributed to the holders in two natural years, with an annual 
attribution of 50%. Starting from the date on which the company announces the transfer of the 
last underlying stock to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, no trading shall be conducted 
during the aforementioned lockup period. 

For 2023 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Company determined 30 June 2023 as the grant 
date, and transferred 36,050,000 shares in the special securities account for repurchase to the 
2023 Employee Stock Ownership Plan account on 2 August 2023 at a grant price of RMB16.13 
per share. The duration of the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 72 months, and the lockup 
period for the underlying stocks acquired by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 12 months. 
The stock rights and interests of salaried employees are attributed to the holders in five natural 
years, with an annual attribution of 20%; the stock rights and interests of employees under the 
share-based salary system are attributed to the holders in two natural years, with an annual 
attribution of 50%. Starting from the date on which the company announces the transfer of the 
last underlying stock to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, no trading shall be conducted 
during the aforementioned lockup period. 
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 

For 2024 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Company determined 19 April 2024 as the grant 
date, and transferred 41, 120,431 shares in the special securities account for repurchase to the 
2024 Employee Stock Ownership Plan account on 31 July 2024 at a grant price of RMB13.47 
per share. The duration of the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 72 months, and the lockup 
period for the underlying stocks acquired by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan is 12 months. 
The stock rights and interests of salaried employees are attributed to the holders in five natural 
years, with an annual attribution of 20%; The stock rights and interests of employees under the 
share-based salary system are attributed to the holders in two natural years, with an annual 
attribution of 50%. Starting from the date on which the company announces the transfer of the 
last underlying stock to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, no trading shall be conducted 
during the aforementioned lockup period. 

The following restricted shares were outstanding under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
and Restricted Stock Incentive Plan during the Relevant Periods: 

Outstanding 
as at 
beginning 
of the 
year/period 

Granted 
Exercised 
Lapsed 

Outstanding 
as at end 
of the 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 -------------

RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 

4,973,775 25,702,225 48,470,975 
22,386,250 36,050,600 41,120,431 
(1,536,299) (1,572,376) (14,673,751 ) 

___ (~1_21~,5_0_1) __ ~(1_1~,7_09~,_47_4) __ ~<~5~,2_90~,9_2_7) 

year/period 25,702,225 48,470,975 69,626,728 ~~~-~==-==-~~=-===-==-~~~==-~-==-

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

69,626,728 

(10,174,200) 
(1 ,018,925) 

58,433,603 

The Company determines the fair value of the restricted shares based on the closing price of 
the restricted shares on the grant date. 

Basis for determining the number of exercisable equity instruments: On each balance sheet 
date during the waiting period, the best estimate is made based on the latest changes in the 
number of exercisable employees, expected performance completion, and other follow-up 
information, and the estimated number of exercisable equity instruments is revised. On the 
vesting date, the final estimated number of exercisable equity instruments is consistent with the 
actual number of exercisable equity instruments. 

As at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 2025, the accumulated amount of equity­
settled share-based payments included in capital reserve are RMB626,529,000, 
RMB650,958,000, RMB720,765,000 and RMB740,740,000, respectively. 

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of RMB59, 117,000, RMB21 ,746,000 , 
RMB70, 146,000 and RMB20,006,000, respectively, during the years ended 31 December 2022, 
2023,2024 and the four months ended 30 April 2025. 
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(a) Major non-cash transactions 

During the years ended 31 December 2022, 2023,2024 and the four months ended 30 April 
2025, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of 
RMB430,391,000, RMB595,417,000, and RMB304,117,000 and RMB415,503,000, 
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for properties. 

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

Interest-bearing 
bank and other 

borrowings Lease liabilities Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

At 1 January 2022 17,596,276 181,714 17,777,990 
Changes from financing cash flows 8,426,826 (168,007) 8,258,819 
New leases 430,391 430,391 
Interest accretion 642,735 18,411 661 ,146 
Foreign exchange movement 7,307,170 (723) 7,306,447 

At 31 December 2022 33,973,007 461,786 34,434,793 

At 1 January 2023 33,973,007 461 ,786 34,434,793 
Changes from financing cash flows (5,425,210) (291,992) (5,717,202) 
New leases 595,417 595,417 
Interest accretion 1,017,942 28,161 1,046,103 
Foreign exchange movement 1,460,100 10,307 1,470,407 

At 31 December 2023 31,025,839 803,679 31,829,518 

At 1 January 2024 31,025,839 803,679 31 ,829,518 
Changes from financing cash flows (7,744,029) (384,158) (8, 128, 187) 
New leases 304,117 304,117 
Interest accretion 815,613 32,499 848,112 
Foreign exchange movement 813,508 1,430 814,938 

At 31 December 2024 24,910,931 757,567 25,668,498 

At 1 January 2025 24,910,931 757,567 25,668,498 
Changes from financing cash flows (5,196,680) (106,320) (5,303,000) 
New leases 415,503 415,503 
Interest accretion 196,133 12,711 208,844 
Foreign exchange movement 249,519 (7,744) 241,775 

At 30 April 2025 20,159,903 1,071,717 21 ,231 ,620 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

(c) Total cash outflow for leases 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 ----- ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Within operating 
activities (89,693) (129,067) (90,137) (26,875) (33,337) 

Within financing 
activities (168,007) (291,992) (384,158) (60,759) (106,320) 

Total (257,700) (421,059) !474,295) !87,634) p39,657) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

The business combinations under common control that occurred during the Relevant Periods 
are presented below: 

The consolidated entity 

Sany Lithium Energy Co., ltd. 
= - tH t ff ll&0f:fj 
Sany Hongxiang Battery Co., ltd. 
=-H~•il!!.1f~i0i5'1 
Changsha Sany Lithium Energy Enterprise Management 

Partnership (Limited Partnership) 

~ ~ ~---~•-•*• (ff~ *•> 
Changsha Sany Xinneng Enterprise Management 

Partnership (Limited Partnership) 

~~~-•n~•••*• <ff~*•> 
Sany Kinetic Energy for Electricity New Energy 

Technology Development (Ezhou) Co., Ltd. 
~-~ n•• • n nNttB& l ~ ffl >1f~ 0 i5'1 
Sany Kinetic Energy for Electricity New Energy 

Technology Development (Zibo) Co., Ltd. 
~-~n•••n&NttBa cmM>1f~0~ 
Changde Taisheng Electric Power Development Co., Ltd. 
~~m-~m1:•nmiBff~110i5'1 
Loudi Taisheng New Energy Co., Ltd. 
:t: ~ m ~ml: M fibmiff ~110 i5'J 
Loudi Zhongsheng New Energy Co., Ltd. 
•~m- q:i ~ ifJrfigfiff ~i 0 i'f.J 
Shaoyang Zhongsheng New Energy Co., Ltd. 
B~~q:i ~ifJr figfiif~~ ff0i5'1 
Changsha Zhongsheng New Energy Co. , Ltd. 
~ rJ; q:i m!:Mfigfi1f~~0i'f.J 
Yiyang Zhongsheng New Energy Co., Ltd. 
M !ll; ffi" q:i ~ Mfig& l H~ 0 i'fJ 
Changshu Sansheng New Energy Co., Ltd. 
~ ~~~ ~-fjgfiif~~ 0f:fj 
Anren Dayuan New Energy Development Co., Ltd 
:'t< f=:t:&Mfit& ifliB1H~0f:fj 
Sany Solar Energy Co., Ltd. 
=-::.t~fig1f~i0i'f.J 
Huzhou Taisheng New Energy Co, Ltd. 
WJHl ~ ~ fJr fit fi1f~i0i'f.J 
Shanghai Kaihuan New Energy Technology Co., Ltd 
-1.~Rll.¾) /f)r fig&t4tt1f~ 0 i'f.J 
Hunan Yimao Industrial Control Technology Co., Ltd. 
Wlm ~ '.ift I ~Ntt1f~~0i'f.J 

149 

The proportion of 
equity interests 

Consolidated date 
obtained in a business 

combination 

65.11% 31 December 2022 

70.00% 31 December 2022 

99.90% 31 December 2022 

99.90% 31 December 2022 

100.00% 31 December 2022 

100.00% 31 December 2022 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2023 

100.00% 31 December 2024 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

44. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Details of the Group's restricted assets at the end of each of the Relevant Periods are as follows: 

As at 30 
Notes As at 31 December Aeril 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Restricted deposits 962,954 704,117 689,488 649,235 
Financial assets at 

fair value 
through profit or 
loss ii 4,885,192 2,307,789 2,134,213 6,264,587 

Bills receivables iii 439,021 122,608 234,993 156,082 
Receivables under 

finance lease iv 202,607 1,140,302 1,779,492 1,875,431 
Loans and 

advances V 565,898 413,234 
Other intangible 

assets vi 36,000 

Total 6,525,774 4,274,816 5,404,084 9,358,569 

i. Certain bank deposits were pledged as securities for the issuance of bankers' acceptance, 
mortgaged borrowings and statutory deposit reserves placement with central bank as at 31 
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025 respectively . 

ii. Certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were pledged for repurchase of 
national debts as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, respectively. 

iii. Certain bills receivables were pledged to obtain loans as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 
2024 ,and 30 April 2025, respectively. 

iv. Certain receivables under finance lease were pledged for trade receivables factoring as at 
31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, respectively. 

v. Certain loans and advances were pledged to obtain loans as at 31 December 2024,and 30 
April 2025, respectively. 

vi. Certain other intangible assets were pledged to obtain loans as at 31 December 2022. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
Mortgage loan 

guarantee 
obligations 3,956,117 2,189,644 589,036 381,515 

Finance lease 
guarantee 
obligations 20,990,208 16,762,808 13,311,285 12,800,267 

Total 24,946,325 18,952,452 13,900,321 13,181,782 

(a) Certain end customers of the Group have utilised purchased construction machinery as 
collateral to entrust our partnered distributors (hereinafter "Distributors") or Hunan Zhongfa 
Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. (hereinafter "Hunan Zhongfa") in obtaining mortgage loans 
from financial institutions. The mortgage contracts stipulate that individual buyers may 
obtain loans equivalent to 70% to 80% of the machinery purchase price, with loan terms 
typically ranging from 2 to 4 years. Pursuant to agreements between the Group and the 
mortgage lending institutions, in the event of buyer's default on loan repayments, both 
Hunan Zhongfa (or Distributors) and the Group are jointly liable for guaranteeing the 
remaining mortgage loans to the financial institutions. As of 31 December 2022, 2023, and 
2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the outstanding guarantee obligations assumed by the Group 
amounted to RMB3.96 billion, RMB2.19 billion, and RMB0.59 billion and RMB0.38 billion, 
respectively. 

(b) Certain end customers of the Group acquire the Group's machinery products through 
finance lease arrangements. Users enter into sales agreements with dealers collaborating 
with the Group or directly with the Group. Under these arrangements, the Group is obligated 
to repurchase outstanding finance lease balances if the lessee fails to make lease 
payments under agreed terms during the repayment period. As of 31 December 2022, 
2023, and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the outstanding repurchase guarantee obligations 
amounted to RMB 20.99 billion, RMB 16.76 billion, and RMB 13.31 billion, and RMB12.80 
billion, respectively. Of these amounts, obligations related to finance lease agreements with 
Kangfu International (hereinafter "Kangfu") and Hunan Zhonghong Financial Leasing 
(hereinafter "Hunan Zhonghong") totalled RMB3.86 billion, RMB2.60 billion, RMB0.41 
billion, and RMB0.31 billion for the Relevant Periods. 

The Group issues asset-backed securities (ABS) and assumes liquidity shortfall payment 
obligations to cover the deficit between distributable funds of each ABS special plan tranche 
and the fixed returns and principal payable to priority ABS holders. As of 31 December 2022, 
2023 and 2024 and April 30 2025, the outstanding balances of such obligations were RMB 12. 73 
billion, RMB7.50 billion, RMB7.95 billion and RMB6.86 billion, respectively. Management 
assesses the likelihood of triggering these liquidity support obligations as low. 

46. COMMITMENTS 

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end of each of the Relevant 
Periods: 

Construction in 
progress 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 -----

RMB'000 RMB'000 

2,166,623 814,392 
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2024 
RMB'000 

1,587,381 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

1,179,924 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 

Net assets disposed of: 
Current assets 
Non-current assets 
Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Non-controlling 

interests 
Transferred from other 

comprehensive 
income 

Subtotal 

Revaluation of remaining 
interest 

Gain on disposal of 
subsidiaries 

Total consideration 

Satisfied by: Cash 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 ----

RMB'000 RMB'00O RMB'0O0 

41,853 
57,966 

(11 ,648) 
(67) 

(4,086) 

84,018 

(81,849) 

29,046 

31,215 

31,215 

150,487 
51 ,436 

(215,504) 

3,395 

(228) 
(10,414) 

(1,358) 

11,772 

171,487 
189,905 

(475,236) 
(308) 

17,146 

9 
(96,997) 

96,997 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 -----

RMB'O00 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of 
subsidiaries are as follows: 

Cash consideration 
Cash and bank balances 

disposed of 

Net (outflow)/inflow of 
cash and cash 
equivalents in respect 
of the disposal of 
subsidiaries 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 _20_2_4 __ 

RMB'000 RMB'00O RMB'000 

31,215 

(2,695) (8,550) -~<~7,_56_2,) 

(2,695) 22,665 (7,562) 
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Four months ended 30 April 
___ 20""---2_4 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

48. PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are set out below: 

Percentage of equity 
interest held by 
non-controlling 
interests: 

Loudi Zhongxing 
Hydraulic 
Components Co., 
Ltd . 

("Loudi Zhongxing") 
• ®rn cf:iJU~~ftt: 
:~rn:{0EJ 

Loudi Zhongyuan New 
Materials Co., Ltd. 

("Loudi Zhongyuan") 
• ® $ cf:1 5ml~Jrtf #4 
~ ~~0EJ 

SANY Auto Finance 
SANY Financial 

Leasing 

Profit/(loss) for the 
year/period 
allocated to non­
controlling interests: 

Loudi Zhongxing 
LoudiZhongyuan 
SANY Auto Finance 
SANY Financial 

Leasing 

Accumulated balances 
of non-controlling 
interests at the 
reporting date: 

Loudi Zhongxing 
LoudiZhongyuan 
SANY Auto Finance 
SANY Financial 

Leasing 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 -----

25.00 

25.16 
4.23 

5.14 

25.00 

25.16 
4.23 

5.14 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 ----

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

34,092 
3,210 

11,460 

27,483 
(5,844) 
14,243 

46,832 
(7,125) 
11,593 

2024 

25.00 

25.16 
4.23 

5.14 

As at 30 April 
2025 

25.00 

25.16 
4.23 

5.14 

Four months ended 30 
April 

2024 2025 ----
RMB'000 RMB'000 

(Unaudited) 

20,133 
562 
356 

23,175 
1,970 
2,843 

5,213 9,548 10,039 4,013 
~~==-'-= 

3,545 

156,024 
128,013 
147,219 

59,255 

183,522 
122,189 
161,466 

68,802 
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130,111 
115,089 
151,942 

203,674 
122,754 
149,171 

78,845 ~~7=2='-,8_1=5 

153,632 
117,069 
154,786 

82,391 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

48. PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 
(continued) 

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries. 
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: 

As at 31 December 2022 
SANY 

Loudi Loudi SANY Auto Financial 
Zhongxing Zhongyuan Finance Leasing 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Revenue 1,670,050 595,835 804,035 256,520 
Profit for the year 136,368 12,761 205,750 101,428 
Total comprehensive 
income for the year 136,405 12,766 205,750 101,428 

Current assets 1,628,771 170,775 8,132,730 1,392,686 
Non-current assets 1,721 ,636 465,987 8,108,358 2,132,934 
Current liabilities 1,868,868 115,592 12,764,016 2,372,648 
Non-current liabilities 857,445 12,321 

Net cash flows (used 
in)/from operating 
activities (118,275) 724,487 (54,252) 627,723 

As at 31 December 2023 
SANY 

Loudi Loudi SANY Auto Financial 
Zhongxing Zhongyuan Finance Leasing 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Revenue 1,511 ,273 463,452 797,211 356,576 
Profit/(loss) for the 

year 109,933 (23,232) 336,390 185,775 
Total comprehensive 

income/(loss) for 
the year 109,844 (23,224) 336,390 185,775 

Current assets 1,200,729 187,545 7,101,461 2,012,365 
Non-current assets 1,751,452 410,522 6,920,060 3,783,204 
Current liabilities 804,731 105,045 10,207,972 4,201,612 
Non-current liabilities 1,413,360 7,322 255,205 

Net cash flows 
from/(used in) 
operating activities 846,092 29,302 107,279 {1 ,778,286) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

48. PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 
(continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 
SANY 

Loudi Loudi SANY Auto Financial 
Zhongxing Zhongyuan Finance Leasing 

RMB'O0O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Revenue 1,619,914 479,303 609,988 342,802 
Profit/(loss) for the 

year 187,327 (28,321) 273,804 195,341 
Total comprehensive 

income/(loss) for 
the year 186,031 {28,324) 273,804 195,341 

Current assets 1,584,563 226,552 3,915,901 2,162,157 
Non-current assets 1,666,002 376,383 7,426,597 3,664,455 
Current liabilities 1,411,036 140,641 7,753,880 4,175,691 
Non-current liabilities 1,319,084 4,816 116,756 

Net cash flows 
from/(used in) 
operating activities 450,458 23,852 65,211 (29,788) 

As at 30 April 2024(Unaudited) 
SANY 

Loudi Loudi SANY Auto Financial 
Zhongxing Zhongyuan Finance Leasing 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Revenue 590,093 186,041 221 ,840 108,548 
Profit/(loss) for the 

period 80,531 2,235 8,405 78,083 
Total comprehensive 

income/(loss) for 
the period 80,579 2,235 8,405 78,083 

Current assets 1,358,088 221,645 3,123,785 1,622,013 
Non-current assets 1,706,647 394,167 9,424,074 2,951,750 
Current liabilities 833,490 120,938 9,024,689 2,945,138 
Non-current liabilities 1,416,548 6,927 211,789 

Net cash flows 
from/(used in) 
operating activities 158,898 8,027 35,662 807,021 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

48. PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 
(continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 
Loudi SANY Auto SANY Financial 

Loudi Zhongxing Zhongyuan Finance Leasing 
RMB'O00 RMB'OO0 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Revenue 621 ,551 182,287 167,281 116,617 
Profit/(loss) for 

the period 92,699 7,467 67,145 68,979 
Total 

comprehens 
ive 
income/(los 
s) for the 
period 93,955 7,834 67,145 68,979 

Current assets 1,613,375 234,856 3,590,862 1,818,295 
Non-current 

assets 1,631,554 361,081 6,668,357 3,624,684 
Current 

liabilities 1,295,417 126,042 6,603,435 3,566,609 
Non-current 

liabilities 1,334,987 4,546 273,222 

Net cash flows 
from/(used 
in) operating 
activities p2,054} {87,184} 148,061 583,252 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a) Parent entities 
The Company's parent company and ultimate holding company is SANY Group Co., ltd. 
- - ~111~~&0-sJ, and the ultimate controlling person is Mr. Liang Wengen. 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties 

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following parties were significant 
related parties of the Group that had transactions or balances with the Group for the 
Relevant Periods: 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 
Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., Ltd . .= - ~Bffl¥~ 
~fm$.ffi~f/\i~~~0"SJ Joint venture 
PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA Joint venture 
Palfinger Sany Crane CIS Joint venture 
Yuandong Construction Investment Group CO., Ltd. of 
Beijing~tJit:lJ!XJ!~JlJ!!U:9:~~111~~~0ifJ Associate 
Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd.$Jfi¥iig-f:&~11JjJ~~&0 
if] Associate 
Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. 
~~fL1+1nit.lH1!Ui~~&0-sJ Associate 
Tangshan Chite Mechanical Equipment Co., Ltd.f.!'fw 
,ltll~41~~f/\i~ ~& 0-sJ Associate 
Lianyungang Anxin Machinery Sales Co., Ltd.:il~m 
1z::,C,,fl~ilfj!f~~&0"SJ Associate 
Hunan Sany Jingchuang Technology Co., Ltd.$Jli¥J.=: 
- ~jU#tt~~&0-sJ Associate 
Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., Ltd. $Jli¥J.=#§ilHf JN-0t~ 
~& 0-sJ Associate 
Wuxi Sany Venture Capital Partnership Enterprise 
(Limited Partnership)~~.=-j1J~f:9:~-frn1£~ C ~ 

~& 1H$) Associate 
Hangzhou Serva! Technology Co., Ltd.m1+1JU-lafll.ttff 
~li0"SJ An associate of the parent company 
Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding Industry Co., ltd. g§ 1z::¥W f.Jfl-
~S '.CT~~~li 0-sJ An associate of the parent company 
Jiulong Property Insurance Co., Ltd.)\!liMii-SH~~~li 
0-sJ An associate of the parent company 
Sichuan Lumaite Engineering Equipment Co., Ltd. [9Jil 
nl!ii~If¥~ffi~~~0"SJ An associate of the parent company 
China Kangfu International Leasing Co., LtdJPwJJmft 
~ ~-t.EI. 1U5l -0t ~ ~~ 0-sJ 
MGB SANY(M) IBS SON BHD 
Hunan Lehui Sports Culture Communication Co., Ltd. 
$JI i¥J ~ !Hf fflHf JC 1-t ft ffl ~ ~~ 0-sJ 
Kunshan Sany Power Co., Ltd. ~w.= - lb.7J~~~0"SJ 
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An associate of the parent company 
An associate of the parent company 

An associate of the parent company 
Subsidiary of and associate 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 
Hunan Anren Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd. 
Wli¥i~t=--mill-13tfl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd.¥/i.Jli¥i=--·~rrof.!HE!:EI 
~fl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Handan Construction Technology Co., Ltd.=-
tm¥~mif4ttfl~i0"§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction Engineering (Linli) Technology Co., 
ltd.=--mI C!ffiil) Nttfl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction Technology (Miluo) Co., Ltd. =--~ 
If4tt OB~) fl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd.= - mif4tt 
!Nfilfl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Zhejiang Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd.#Jfu 
=- - mif4ttfl~i0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Jiangsu Sany Construction Co., Ltd.Uff=-mi fl~i 
0'§'1 Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany International (Hong Kong) Industry Co., Ltd. =- -
~~ ( :j:i,l) r!~fl~&0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd.=-.m~~ffnfl~&0 
ifJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Co., 
ltd . .=: -- :i:~~~~!Nfl~i0'§'J 
Hunan Xingbida Network Technology Co., Ltd.1MWJff 
~,J!iMimn4ttfl~i0"§'J 
Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED Company¥/iJJWJ~ ]I!~ 
~fl~& lH:E0 '§'J 
Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd.Wli¥.i=-!l!~fl~i0'§'J 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., ltd and its subsidiaries= -

Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 

Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 

Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 

.m:tmJNfilfl~&0'§'J&;l't-f-0'§'J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.uff 
= - I:ft:l.tt4ttfl~i0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Hunan Sany Construction Co., Ltd.Wli¥.i=-~Ifl~& 
0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Beijing Sany Architectural Design and Research Co., 
LtdjL*=-~m~ttWfJEfl~&0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Hunan Aika Internet Technology Co., Ltd.Wli¥.i~--J::;-Ji 
lffl1f4ttfl~&0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Shanghai Sany Construction Co., Ltd.__.t~ =- - mI~ 
~fl~i0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction Engineering (Xi'an) Technology 
Co., Ltd.=-mI C rffi3i:) f4ttfl~&0iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction (Chongqing) Technology Co., Ltd. 
=- - mI (.ml!) f4ttfl ~& 0 iiJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 
Zhuhai Zhuxiang Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.f$1c~~.$ 
~#ttif~i0irJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany (Quanzhou) Construction Technology Co., Ltd.= 
- C *1+1) ~IHttif ~i 0 ifJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Hunan Sany Intelligent Construction Engineering Co., 
Ltd.¥/iJliti=-:&:flJ!~If¥1f~i0ifJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Sany Construction (Quanzhou) Building Materials Co., 
Ltd.= - ~I C *1-M) J!tt1f ~i0ifJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Zhongxian Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd)il:;, 
M,=-~If4ttif~i0ifJ Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Hubei Sany Truck Sales and Service Co., Ltd.¥/iJl~t= 
- -t]rl.ii/!~~1Ui1f~i0-§J Controlled by Mr. Liang Wengen 
Shengjing Intelligent Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.1:M: 
~:&:fl:¥4tt CB-~) 1f~i0-§J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd.= - m:$ .AJ4tt1f 
~i0-§J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co., Ltd.= - ti:$ A* 
ffi Ciffi$:) 1f~i0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., Ltd.= - $~g ( f?K 

¥1+1) 1f~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.=-i'Hf¥iP~Iif 
~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd.=-tttfj*#(Jtf 
~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.=-~gVffi*fffiif~i0 
"§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd.=-fU~1f~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., Ltd. =-~irn~'.ll*ffi 
1f~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Logistics Equipment USA Co., Ltd=-~tfL*fffi 
~litf~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Heavy Equipment Indonesia Holdings Co., Ltd. 
= -[;pffi~~*#(Jif~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Intelligent Mining Technology Co., Ltd.=-:&~ 
f4ttif~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.=-~ '.ll*ffiif~i 
0-§J A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy Technology Co., Ltd.1JK 
ll+i=-$~~13z:{;ij1f~i0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New Energy Co., Ltd.1JK 
iii'! - - $~~f,Jr~~~if~~0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd.= -~~frH&0ifJ 
Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltdjt :~rm=-_m: 
1:J.!ftH& 0 ifJ 
Changsha Dilian Industrial Control Technology Co., 

Relationship with the Group 
A fellow subsidiary 

A fellow subsidiary 

Ltd.-R¥Y'ri¥liI1:M4tt1H&0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., Ltd.#l:1'1·11Jll!~l!JffH& 
0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Sany Interactive Marketing Technology Co., 
Ltd.Wlm.=.-!LI/J{HM4ttff~&0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd.=-ri:Jtii~ff 
~&0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Ground Unmanned Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., Ltd.Wlmilfi'±-t!!.mf ~}d~ffiifi-wf 
Ji:i:p,t'.,,ff~&J:1f0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd.Wli¥i.=.-m:1JN: 
ffiff ~&0-§1 A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Sany Cloud Oil Energy Co., Ltd. Wl m .=. - ~all 
~g~ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Xingxiang Construction Supervision Consulting 
Co., Ltd.WlwJJUffiJ!N:iffJ.!§~ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Shenzhen Trinity Technology Co., Ltd.~:1;111$.=.- t4tt 
ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Zhushengyuan Property Service Co., Ltd.WJP?J 
t'r Jm il !lo/J ~~IU)}ff ~& 0-§'J 
Changsha Shufeng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. 

A fellow subsidiary 

-R¥Y;tM1111::~~rlff~&0ir] A fellow subsidiary 
Chongqing Sany Zhushengyuan Property Service Co., 
Ltd . .mm=-ttJmm!!lo/J~U~r)}ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Silicon Energy (Shuozhou) Co., Ltd.= - :fi)l~g 
( ~Jl1+1) ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting Technology 
Co., Ltd. mw.=.-!lf:Ji'H4ttff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Sanfeng Technology Co., Ltd.tJfi¥J°.=.ili!t4ttff 
~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Shanghai Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd . ...tl'Hft'r 
Jmm!±-t!!.iiff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuhai SANY Port Machinery Co., LtdJ:$K;4ii = - m n mt 
~ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Zhonghong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.Wlm9'1 
1Zi%!13ft.E!.~ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Sany (Zhuhai) Investment Co., Ltd.=- C!il'Hf) t:9:~ 
ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Zizhuyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.~AP?J~ttrmm 
±-t!tifff~ll0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
China Wealth Machine Holdings Limited i:p j';Jl~~JN 
ff~&0-§'J A fellow subsidiary 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 
Guangzhou Huayao Real Estate Co., ltd.~ 1'1-l~lil.1'.~1H& 
0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Changsha Three Silver Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ft 
i:'.9 .=.j~J%±-!Q.,il lffl ~IHH& 0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate Co., Ltd . .=. - C ~#lj:) .1'.ltlH& 0 
ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Lianyuan Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.iiUJrlfttlmll 
J%:ltil1Hi0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Loudi Zhushengyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.~ 
~ ttlm llJ%:ltillffl~1Hi 0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Linli Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.~1fl:ttMIIJ%:ltil 
1'f~i0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co., Ltd.ft fY~:$}% ±-!Q.,il::{ef~~ 
0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Changsha Yuntian Real Estate Co. , Ltd .f~}:Y*:11:J%±llii11'f~i 
0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent Manufacturing Co., Ltd.# i'-}H = - ~ 
~~~1'!~~0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuzhou Sany Smart Industry and Trade Co., Ltd .#iiii.=.-
~ ;t!I ~ 1'f~i0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd . .:==:- ( .i: 
,II ) ~ '.ff~ f-ro::(ef ~&0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Changsha Yunqi Real Estate Development Co., ltd.{HJ;~ 
-'!J%:ltil lffl ~::(ef ~i0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Changsha Yunhui Real Estate Development Co., ltd.ftYY* 
lii'J%:ltil lffl ~1H &0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Chongqing Zhushengyuan Real Estate Development Co., 
Ltd . .i:Jfttlmll.!%:ltillffl~::(ef~&0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
Zhuzhou Sany Zhushengyuan Property Service Co., Ltd.# 
iiii .=. -ttlmll1~lU!i~1'f~i 0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Sanyin Commercial Management Co., Ltd.i\\1l i¥.i.=.i~ 
lt,~IJlrl!.lH&0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd . .=. - ~ fl~ f4~1'f 
~i0~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Robot (Changsha) Co., ltd . .=.-l'JU~ A U~Jy ) ::(ef ~& 0 
~ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Anren Sany Heavy Steel Structure Co., Ltd.i\\1li¥.i~C 
.=.-.i:~H~ff41'f~i0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Ningxia Jinanshun Construction Engineering Co. , Ltd.*R:~ 
~JIIJHl ~Ifi1'f~&0ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Turbo Fly Machine Engineering Limited/f.{Hlt~fJ!JG~ ffii' ::(ef~i 0 
~ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Indonesia Mining Equipment Co. , Ltd =-E:pft\1i)(li i.lJ~ 
ffiHH&0~ A fellow subsidiary 
China Wealth Hongkong Machine Limitedr:J=r i;w rt~ fJ!JG ::(ef~& 
0 ~ A fellow subsidiary 
China Wealth Saudi Machine Limited r:J=ri,' i:!;%'ttlt fJ!JG::(ef~&0ii] A fellow subsidiary 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group 
China Wealth Cambodia Machinery Co., Ltd.i:f:tj' * :f:m 

~11f!llG~~lt0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 
China Wealth Equipment Pte Ltd.i:f:t j'~fff~~&0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 
China Wealth Machinery Malaysia Co., Ltd.i:f:tj'tlf!llGm 

*®§ ~~&0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 
Gangyue Construction Engineering Co., Ltd ii~~~ 
Iti~~&0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Construction Development (Malaysia) Limited = 
- ~ I ~Ji cm*fffi§ ) ~~i0'§'J A fellow subsidiary 

Loudi Zizhu Yunzhi Industrial Park Development Co., 
Ltd.:/l~~it* ~if~~~Ji~~lt0'§'J A fellow subsidiary 

SANY PC Manufacturing SON BHD A fellow subsidiary 
Sany International (Zambia) Industrial Co. , Ltd.=-li 
~ C i'E6 tt§ ) 1f~ ~ ~lt0 '§'J A fellow subsidiary 

SANY MINING Equipment Co., Ltd . .=-MH!~~lt0'§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Huaxin Yongkang Insurance Sales Co., Ltd.¥fJr1J<~ 

{:li~:llhi~~~~lt0'§'J A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Sany Intelligent Industry Private Equity Fund 

Enterprise (Limited Partnership)WJm.=-~~ilf~fl 
~JRtl~ ~ ii::~ C ~~&-@-~) A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Kinetic Energy For Electricity New Energy 
Technology Development (Ezhou) Co., Ltd.= - JJJ tiE 
~~~riE1IU4tH~Ji C !!Jll1+1) ~ ~&0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Kinetic Energy For Electricity New Energy 
Technology Development (Zibo) Co., Ltd . .= JJJ ~~ 
~~~~E~ftli~Ji Cr~ iw ) ~ ~&0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Ludian Lithium Energy (Jianshui) Co., LtdJl~ilUE 
( ~1.IO ~ ~&0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Lithium Energy (Chongqing) New Energy Co., 
Ltd . .=-il~~ ( * ~ ) ~ ~E~~ ~lt0 '§'J A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Lithium Energy (Changsha) New Energy Co., 
Ltd . .=-i!.riE C-RrY) ~riE~~~&0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Shanghai SANY Science and Technology Co., Ltd._t 
;liiJ.=-f4tt~ ~&0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Lithium Energy (Zhengzhou) New Energy 
Technology Co., Ltd. =-i'-tiE C ~ 1+1 ) fJr~E~ f4tt~ 
~&0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Shenzhen Sany Cloud Oil Technology Co., Ltd.i.~ :fJII .= 
- *naif4tt~~& 0'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Lithium Energy (Luoyang) New Energy Co., Ltd . 
.= -if r1E Cm,~) ffJr~E~~ ~& 0 'irJ A fellow subsidiary 

Sany Construction Industry Development Africa (PTY) 
Ltd . .=- ~ I~Ji c~nf!D ~~c!0if.J A fellow subsidiary 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS(continued) 

(b) Names and relationships with related parties(continued) 

Name of related parties 
China Wealth Machinery Malaysia Co., Ltd.'t'~~fffl~*® 

§lHlH~'ifJ 
Zhuzhou Clover Environmental Development Co., Ltd.~i'Jii 

=.l\t~Ji±jpJ ~ ~ ftHHlH~ 'ifJ 
China Wealth (Huayue) Limited't''i¥it!Hlti!Fff~0'ifJ 
China Wealth Asia Machine Limited. q:i ~ C 51 i'fli) 11~::f!H~ 

Relationship with the Group 

A fellow subsidiary 

A fellow subsidiary 
A fellow subsidiary 

0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Sun Li Heng Machinery Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong).ffilVt11mt~ff 

~~0'ifJ(~~) A fellow subsidiary 
Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. and tis subsidiariesf!Hlt!fJmt Key Management personnel exercise 

/Rfn\ff~~ 0'ifJ &;!,l;-=f0'ifJ significant influence 
Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading Co., Ltd.JJi)+lrrf ~I~~ Key Management personnel exercise 

~fH~0'ifJ significant influence 
Huachu Petrochemical (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.-~:P4t CJJi Key Management personnel exercise 

JIO ff~~0'ifJ significant influence 
Runze Hui Enterprise Management Co., Ltdn'll$!i.'Jf:~tf:EI Key Management personnel exercise 

1H~ 0'ifJ significant influence 
Shihezi Mingzhao Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd. Key Management personnel exercise 

:PfiiJ-=f rrf SJl !ffi/RIH:lH2i 'ir:E!ff~~ 0'ifJ significant influence 
Yaowu (Shenzhen) Technology Co., Ltd.:~HJl- C ~:IJII) Htt Key Management personnel exercise 

ff~~0'ifJ significant influence 
Key Management personnel exercise 

Beijing Sany Public Welfare Foundationit](=. - -0 ~~~'i' significant influence 
Guangzhou Yigongpin Technology Co., Ltd .JJifi'lrrf ~I~;J;4 Key Management personnel exercise 

ttff~~0'ifJ significant influence 
Hunan Zhongfa Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.Wlw'J't'~~~ Key Management personnel exercise 

*ffflff~~ 0'ifJ significant influence 
Kunshan Zhongfa Asset Management Co., Ltd./%Ll.Jq:i~~iIKey Management personnel exercise 

'ir:E!ff~~0'ifJ significant influence 
Cuiyun Gonggong (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd}~*;l:tI Key Management personnel exercise 

( _t;iaf) HttlH~ 0'ifJ significant influence 
SANY Group Co., Ltd.=.-~!llH~0'ifJ The parent company 
Hunan Sany Electronic Control Technology Co., Ltdli5Jl"w'J = -

~fN4ttff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Hunan Yimao Industrial Control Technology Co., Ltdl'/ill "w'J ~ 

~I~;J;4ttff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany Construction Malaysia Limited=-mr.~*®s1ff~~0 
~ A fellow subsidiary 

Xi'an Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd®*ti"~mlm:l:t!tiii 
ff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 

Zhongfu Laos Machinery Leasing Co., Ltd q:i 1li' ~M~~f.ll.1t 
ff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 

Beijing Xinhaoji Construction Machinery Co., Ltdit](~~~ 
Ifimt~ff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 

Chengdu Shuneng Shenghe New Energy Co., Ltd .5x:ffllli~~ 
:llli:fr:Jf,fi~~m:::ff~~0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
Sany International (OE) Industry Co., Ltd=. - 00 Jl,j C ffi~ 

:wi) ff~~]HE0'ifJ A fellow subsidiary 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties 

i. 

The following transactions and balances were carried out between the Group and its related 
parties during the Relevant Periods. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related 
party transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated 
between the Group and the respective related parties. In addition to those disclosed elsewhere 
in the Financial statements, the Group has the following transactions with related parties: 

Purchases of goods from related parties 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Changsha Dilian 
Industrial Control 
Technology Co., 
Ltd. -Ri'Y'iff ij~I~l4 
tHH&0i¥J 483,016 404,597 1,129,178 192,184 614,036 

SANY Heavy 
Equipment Co., Ltd. 
=-ll!~H~filf~&0 
i¥J 966,722 561 ,020 946,298 235,834 246,918 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-
LIMITED Company 
$JJ ]¥if\:]!i~X§: 1f ~& 
ff 0 i¥J 132,238 342,419 615,444 97,505 100,324 

SANY Marine Heavy 
Industry Co., Ltd . .=: 
-~ ~ 11! I 1f ~~ 0 i¥J 532,034 1,330,365 481,401 167,177 120,526 

Hunan Sany Body 
Co., Ltd.$JJ W"J.=:-]![ 
~ lf~&0i¥J 5,340 139,617 405,823 136,517 203,803 

Hunan DEUTZ Power 
Co., Ltd.M1¥imf:&;x 
!11 t., 1f ~& 0 i¥j 408,182 368,175 378,933 140,280 194,643 

Sany Heavy 
Equipment 
International 
Holdings Co., Ltd . .=: 
-ll!~ll~~flxlf ~& 
0 i¥J 919,552 976,955 327,506 88,734 61 ,584 

Sany Logistics 
Equipment USA 
Co., Ltd.=:-1miJIE~ 
fi~lilf ~& 0i¥J 324,875 54,920 87,068 

Sany International 
(Hong Kong) 
Industry Co., Ltd . .=: 
- jgrJ ~ ( 'l'ft-i ) -~ 
1f~&0i¥J 11 ,527 283,144 41 ,584 195,742 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

i. Purchases of goods from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Hangzhou Lilong 
Hydraulic Co., Ltd. 
#iJl·I fl ;ijJ, lBHH~ 
0'/rJ 199,676 184,739 237,879 82,944 83,588 

Guangzhou Ygp 
Industrial Trading 
Co., Ltd.nii;l-l·l rn ~I 
&i11(~1H~0'/rJ 217,438 219,640 194,408 63,002 80,908 

Kunshan Sany Power 
Co., Ltd.~IlJ = - iJJ 
tJ1H~0'/rJ 104,263 62,198 155,232 34,775 36,086 

Sany Lithium Energy 
Co., Ltd.~ - jlJl.~~ff 
~~0 '/rJ 137,628 284,247 

Huachu 
Petrochemical 
(Guangdong) Co., 
Ltd.lff~:fif-t (Jf/i 

}!0 ff~~0'/rJ 33,203 59,394 87,910 28,833 45,136 
Rootcloud 

Technology Co., 
Ltd. and tis 
subsidiariesr!H~1i 
mt /l!iH~ ff ~LH~ 'irJ & 
Jl:-f-0'/rJ 97,386 77,866 49,531 18,900 1,580 

Sany Robotics 
Technology Co. , 
Ltd.= -~off A Htt 
ff~~0'/rJ 378,417 50,912 47,385 38,546 23,831 

Sany Intelligent 
Equipment Co., 
Ltd.=-t'~~#iiff 
~~0'/rJ 26,659 45,372 9,252 7,919 

Sany Palfinger SPV 
Equipment Co., 
Ltd.= - ~tJjffl~~~ 
fi]l[fffi~ffiiff~~ 0 
'irJ 8,553 24,675 42,244 1,898 7,570 

Sany Construction 
Technology (Miluo) 
Co., Ltd.=-~If4 
tt OB?il ) ff~~0 
'irJ 14 32,359 231 40,005 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

i. Purchases of goods from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Hunan Anren Sany 
Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.Wl 
i¥i5:f== - ~It4ttff 
~i0~ 5,388 2,338 23,393 3,269 33,690 

Hunan Sany Building Co., 
Ltd. i'iVHW =--tR: ffiJ !511 ~ 
I£flff~i0~ 6,924 42,944 21,643 693 3,870 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon 
Energy New Energy 
Co., Ltd.;¥,l;iffl = - r&H~fJr 
"~~ff~~0~ 62 16,168 2,990 7,167 

Sany Technology 
Equipment Co., Ltd.=-
ttm ~ffif lf ~i 0 ~ 5,196 256,945 15,384 6,761 1,853 

Shengjing Intelligent 
Technology (Jiaxing) 
Co. , Ltd.:tffi:~t' :tH4tt 
<JH~) ff~~0~ 4,569 11,775 4,369 2,693 

Sany Heavy Equipment 
Indonesia Holdings Co., 
Ltd.=-!:~.Fe.~ ru~ffifff 
~~0~] 19,174 16,663 6,956 27,801 

Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.= 
- ~It4ttnxffilf~~0 
~ 20,565 3,026 8,947 5,894 

Sany Construction 
Engineering (Linli) 
Technology Co., Ltd. = 
- ~I C Wiift) f4ttff 
~~0~ 8,050 28,340 8,735 7,675 

Hunan Ground Unmanned 
Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., 
Ltd. WJ i¥i 'ii' it!! ffi 1Ws A~ ffif 
Il~HiJf 1E cp ,t,ff ~UHf 
0~ 8,052 1,296 2 

Zhejiang Sany 
Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.WT 
IT=-i!If4ttff~~0 
~ 14,377 6,151 3,164 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

i. Purchases of goods from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Jiangsu Sany 
Construction Co., 
Ltd.u!f=. -~I1f 
~i0iu 5,798 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Zhuzhou) Co. , Ltd. 
=.-f&~g <tK;f!D 1f 
~~0iu 15,646 5,540 1,717 832 

Jiangsu Sany 
Environmental 
Technology Co., 
Ltd.U!JK=. -!i:!:Jt¥4 
ttlH~0'i¥J 23,812 43,080 4,777 3,963 408 

Sany Environmental 
Industry Co., Ltd.=. 
- JiJiidt1f~~ 0'i¥J 4,198 3,557 1,060 361 

Sany Energy 
Equipment Co. , Ltd. 
=-- ~g~~ffii'tf ~~ 0 
'§'] 1,907 2,652 465 20 

PT SANY MAKMUR 
PERKASA 1,458 1,699 175,453 1,870 

Sany Heavy Energy 
Co., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries=. - .m:. 
~g}N{Jt1f~i 0'§'] &~ 
r0iu 5,814 22,403 1,183 900 49 

Sany Robot 
Equipment (Xi'an) 
Co., Ltd.=.-~:ff.A. 
~ii ( rl:g3i: ) 1f~l'l0 
if] 291 ,622 86,168 962 675 

Hangzhou Serval 
Technology Co., 
Ltd. tt1+I IHIH4tt1f 
~l'l0iu 263 908 656 • 

Xi'an Hualei 
Shipbuilding 
Industry Co. , Ltd.® 

3i: • ffi' oo~a ~ ~1f ~i 
0iu 8,761 916 550 

Sany Hydrogen 
Energy Co., Ltd.:': 
- fUg1f~i0iu 475 281 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

Purchases of goods from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Beijing Sany Heavy 
Machinery Co., Ltd. 
~t ]Cflj-= - ~tlftH& 
0~ 442 433 

Hunan Xingbida 
Network Technology 
Co., Ltd.YiVlWHr&:,:ii 
~!lf4:J:ttfll& 0 i'r] 673 11 ,935 432 230 

Tangshan Chite 
Mechanical 
Equipment Co., Ltd. 
~ LlJ ~ ¥-J~~~ffnff 
~&0ii'J 4 124 291 83 215 

Lianyungang Anxin 
Machinery Sales 
Co., Ltd.:li*m~,c., 
~~iiH~lr~&0~ 10 114 228 75 16 

Sany Intelligent Mining 
Technology Co., Ltd. 
= - tilfflf4ttff~&0 
~ 2,270 12 210 210 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong 
Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd. 
11\~fl.1+1 l!Ififfl~ 
lr~&0~ 222 197 3 

Hunan Sany Interactive 
Marketing 
Technology Co., Ltd. 
1'Vlm-=. - B.JJJffiiH4 
ttlr~&0~ 134 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon 
Energy Technology 
Co., Ltd.~i}li -=.-li!Y 
fi~ttUrff~& 0~ 45 

Runze Hui Enterprise 
Management Co., 
Ltdi!Ml~lli.1'.E:~1r~lr 
~&0~ 90 6 6 

Sany Handan 
Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd. 
-=. - 1:l[l~~If4ttff 
~&0~ 1 1 
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49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

Purchases of goods from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 

Sany Oil Smart 
Equipment Co., Ltd . 
.=.- ::S-nl!~~~ffi\'1i 
~lrn·i'il 

SANY Group Co. , Ltd . 
=--~1111i~~0i'!J 

Hunan Sany 
Construction Co ., 
Ltd .Wli¥i.=.- ~I1i 
~~0i'!J 

Hunan SANY Port 
Machinery Co. , Ltd. 
WJ]¥j.=.-l'ii=JW:ffi\'1i 
~~0i'!J 

Hunan Sany Cloud Oil 
Energy Co ., Ltd .WJ 
]¥i.=.-~nl!ritilff-1i~~ 
0i'!J 

Beijing Sany 
Architectural Design 
and Research Co., 
Ltd.~t*=-- ~~W: 
ttliff1ElH~0i'!J 

Shenzhen Sany Cloud 
Oil Technology Co., 
Ltd .i*:IJl!.=.-~nl!f-4 
tt1i~~0i'!J 

Palfinger Sany Crane 
CIS 

Beijing Sany Public 
Welfare Foundation 
~t*.=.- 0.frd~~* 

Hunan Sany 
Electronic Control 
Technology Co., Ltd 
y,\Jl]¥j .=-'!fi:~f4tt1i 
~~0i'!J 

Chengdu Shuneng 
Shenghe New Energy 
Co., Ltd lix:fiHi\lfit~;fU 
!lrfitilff-lH~0i'!J 
Hunan Xingxiang 

Construction 
Supervision 
Consulting Co., Ltd. 
Wl1¥iJJl!#ll~W:!:i.J,U§ 
81iJ1l~~0i'!J 

Total 

2022 2023 2024 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

2,526 

95,423 

2,813 

58,607 

38,558 

841 

30,410 

4,821 

39 

16 

5,100,621 

209 

64,369 

4,071 

739 

438 

254 

5,469,705 

169 

6,089,549 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

2,362 

336 

165 
1,655,111 2,526,507 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

ii. Receipt of services from related parties 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 
Companyi\tlli¥iA]l[~iJ!r~ ~ii!i: 
ff0i§'J 83,058 127,101 42,427 44,484 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=. - ffi,111~ 
~i0i'r.l 58,767 78,205 63,871 16,446 15,372 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd.itiji;JU+lffl 
IfHltj;jl1~ µi0i§'J 53,418 53,192 62,528 11 ,799 9,239 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd.il\lll¥itr!mlffl1PJ 
!U \UMHi0i§'J 56,648 56,865 51,675 16,837 17,668 

Sichuan Lumaite Engineering 
Equipment Co., Ltd.1/!l ] ll~ i&tii' 
If.¥~fii~ µ~0 i§'J 7,650 21 ,081 57,818 5,551 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and 
its subsidiaries.:::-£~~J!'i1: f5HT 
~i0i§'J &Jti'-0i§'J 15,520 12,277 18,315 2,591 2,985 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., 
Ltd.7d\iM~fi~~ ~H;-i§'J 819 14,512 1,394 4,607 

PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 10,402 16,752 8,147 3,836 1,467 
Shihezi Mingzhao Equity 

Investment Management Co., 
Ltd. ;p-iiiJ r m aJl !ffi J!'i1: tliH:5!: ~ 11!' JI 
~ µi0i§'J 11,751 7,296 8,050 2,683 2,778 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology 
(Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.~~ ~ ~ f!Hi 
C~Jl!) Mlrn·i§'J 2,073 4,658 3,327 103 

Tangshan Chite Mechanical 
Equipment Co., Ltd.~w!f!!ti\'tj 
j;j!1~ffiltHi0i§'J 14,546 6,181 4,655 2,774 958 

Lianyungang Anxin Machinery 
Sales Co., Ltd.:iU~m:l'.i: -C,- t;Jijjjj1 
il1J~Mi0i§'J 6,154 2,109 2,625 486 118 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy 
New Energy Co., Ltd .i,f(jjff.=-
w ~~1Htvl~µi 0 i§'J 2,198 83 699 

Sany Intelligent Mining 
Technology Co., Ltd . .=.-~li/Ji 
f4ttlHi 0i§'J 1,726 

Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd . .=: 
- i!!!~HHi 0i§'J 1,610 143 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co. , 
Ltd.ii\:ll i¥i:!l!!il!llt~irl.:fl!§t1Ul:fµi 
0i§'J 7,850 5,512 1,241 1,1 20 97 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., 
Ltd . .:::-tjff.A.f4ttl:fµi0i§'J 53,866 12,278 1,210 994 790 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., 
Ltd.#i:1+1hffl~~M i0i§'J 7,012 3,010 943 472 

Hunan Sanfeng Technology Co., 
Ltd.ii\:ll l¥i.:::~ f4:Jil:fµi0i"rJ 502 552 797 245 61 

Hangzhou Serva! Technology 
Co., Ltd .#i:1+1JHllif4:Ji~µi0i"rJ 150 707 116 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

ii. Receipt of services from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Chongqing Sany Zhushengyuan 
Property Service Co., Ltd.£~ 
.=::-t'rOOll4m!!i!rnlU;f1HlH~i'rJ 290 619 142 216 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd. 

iil:ll1¥I3Cf==-~IHtHH&0'a'J 191 1,207 449 74 162 
Hunan Ground Unmanned 

Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., Ltd. 

ii\:ll1¥J ~, ifu im 11\tA* ti I f¥liJf ~ 9" 
,l'..,1H lU'iff0i'rJ 1,403 235 4 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology 
Co. , Ltd. 

1*#11 m .=::- f41H f ~&0i'rl 241 334 196 59 62 
Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) 

Co., Ltd . 
.=::-ttt~A*fi rn~ l tH&0 

i'rJ 58,851 18,218 194 
Hunan Xingbida Network 

Technology Co., Ltd. 
ii\:ll1¥Iff~,Ji~~Nttff~&0i'i'J 4,791 100 153 42 303 
Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery 

Co., Ltd. 
~t :Jltm .=::-lt tt!!tr~[ 0i'rl 2,892 1,486 121 15 89 
SANY Marine Heavy Industry 

Co., Ltd . 
.=::-illt~£IM&0'a'J 109 17 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd. 
=-~~* #«11~& 0'a'J 160 271 106 19 35 
Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd. 
ii\:ll1¥J.=-]f[~1f~& 0i'rl 2,367 8,210 95 
Sany Construction Technology 

Co., Ltd . = - ·~I f4ttJNfB-1f~& 0i'i'J 6,493 6,331 59 7,761 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental 

Technology Co., Ltd. 
il:ff.= - ~±.iH-H~11~& 0'a'J 54 
Kunshan Sany Environment 

Protecting Technology Co., 
Ltd. ~w.=::-~1~HttM[ 0irJ 52 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., 
Ltd. 

:::-tttH* ffl'11~& 0'a'J 43 20 
Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. 

= - n~il5i*fi11~[ 0 'a1 23 26 18 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

ii. Receipt of services from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Sany Intelligent Equipment 
Co., Ltd . - : - ·~ .;,!!&fiHf 
~lH;•,;J 21 4 4 

Hunan Aika Internet 
Technology Co., Ltd.i'/illl¥J 
f' f-' !L~fHHilltrn- nj 2 10 18 16 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Zhuzhou) Co., Ltd. 

_: - ·Ji9fjE Ct,l<lfH) ,mrrndJ 5 
Sany Silicon Energy 

(Shuozhou) Co., Ltd . 
.:.: - ·li9aE C~.ll1'M) #JlM0JJ 
Changsha Shufeng 

Enterprise Management 
Co. , Ltd. 

N: i'JI m ~ 1t Xi'tr J1H i ~i 0 ,;J 2,334 2 
Rootcloud Technology Co., 

Ltd. and tis subsidiaries 
till ffR .rf~ ll9:fil -tf~i0 ,iJ &,tl; 

'f0.rJ 91 2,467 
Zhejiang Sany Construction 

Technology Co., Lid. 
it'iiL: ·~ U4U1Hi0 d] 396 
Hunan Sany Building Co., 

Ltd . 
mirw _:. ·f}tifuJ;i;tt·t Utfi 

~i0ia] 215 47 
Hunan SANY Port 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 
i~ fW _.:. - i:t!, Ll i&{fiHf~i 0 Pj 5 
Zhushengyuan Real Estate 

Co., Ltd. 
l·.itHT~1¥ll.lt!l/iJi1i!lM0 ,;J 11,752 3 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real 
Estate Co., Ltd . 

i,IJJ wff ~tti.ffi\!11 li!!i[ 1i llfil 0 ,;J 4,363 
Beijing Sany Architectural 

Design and Research 
Co., Ltd. 

~t#- -=':.- ilt~i&.'itliJf1UHi 
0cl'J 620 21 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., 
Ltd.m!wilt'd«;~~j Jfi~i 
0 i"/J 7,950 

Sany Construction 
Technology (Miluo) Co. , 
Ltd .. :C:: - ·~Ififtl: C iH 
;n #ii&0a'J 54 

Total 389,465 391 ,114 400,207 165,745 123,914 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iii. Other procurement expenditure 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co., 
Ltd. i,\IJi'liiJllilllllt.Nl!ii.!!R::tiii•JfillR 
0iiJ 

Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd .-:: -~ Lf4ttlllifitMl'l 
z}i,j 

Beijing Sany Archttectural Design 
and Research Co., Ltd.~t ;?- .=: - -
il!~J~lt liJf "1'. Ml'l0 JJ 449 855 

Zhejiang Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.il/ii.I = -~ 
I HtHfll!\!0<1] 5,421 221 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd .iN!l¥! 'ic1.:"': 
- ~:r:Httti'IIW.0 ••1 12,464 739 

Shanghai Sany Construction Co., 
Ltd. U L '- --~ I il1:&11lltrn •J 1,222 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . _:_ -!lH'!Hi 
!ll'l0i'i] 7,664 2,104 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. 
and tis subsidiariesj;ljj,t;! !Illll/lQ~ 
-til!R0a &Jt f0oi 236,246 168 912 

Total 263,466 172,831 

173 

2024 
RMB'000 

1,574 

1,172 

719 

558 

229 

2,110 

214,149 
220,511 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'OO0 
(Unaudited) 

1,172 

75 

73 

79,366 48,515 
80,686 48,515 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Palfinger Sany Crane CIS 269,985 727,288 1,306,277 467.187 557,939 
PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 245,929 373,1 05 594,475 49,380 199,331 
Sany Logistics Equipment USA 

Co., Ltd 
.:.=:-#'.lik:l&/IH,~-lilll!0is! 213,653 550,183 299,973 153,424 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd . 
-:: - of[lf1*11Hi l!R0JJ 387,437 321 ,482 354,128 132,671 105,279 
SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co ., 

Ltd. 
:: ·ifJiH( cm1rn•.sJ 213,481 348,635 300,822 93,738 96,545 
Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 
Jt~.hJ!i#~.Cfil/Jtrilifl°llR0iil 566,123 241 ,917 286,221 109,536 157,496 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd. 
:.-~fMH&0d'J 269,082 103,168 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 
Company 

i,\IJ iwf( !JI'-!ii'HTlll! i'Hl:0 uJ 30,329 66,347 204,844 32,473 114,523 
Sany Intelligent Equipment Co., 

Ltd. 
_:: · tl':lJ*ffirH&0.;J 3 19,803 113,462 35,299 44,437 
Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. 
2 -/iliibrnil/J•/.illli!0,sJ 9,099 64,054 88,350 29,427 23,791 
Turbo Fly Machine Engineering 

limited 
fiij~/Jtiil1.l!:il/J•mrn ,,1 54,208 92,479 86,448 33,981 31,529 
China Wealth Hongkong Machine 

limited 
lf''iJ"·MIJ:!li!tiil1fi lrl0 iiJ 25,456 41,426 72,581 41 ,213 19,482 
Tangshan Chite Mechanical 

Equipment Co., ltd. 
f.liJ.IJ~tt.Hliltrili.W:/IHTlll!0°J 21 1,851 141 ,395 63,816 20,256 78,252 
lianyungang Anxin Machinery 

Sales Co., ltd. 
i11!'..Si:!!i:i,; ,t,!li!li10i'i11HH&0 ,;J 249,844 97,402 47,928 25,295 
China Wealth Saudi Machine 

limited 
clri:ri'HHlll~iH&0uJ 34,001 33,939 338 7,851 
Sany Robotics Technology Co., 

ltd. 
::;:-JIUUf-HHYlll!0..-J 17,324 7,822 30,876 6,765 14,958 
Hunan Ground Unmanned 

Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., ltd. 

i,\IJ1lH'1J1!!riL~ A~f//J TflliJ!1l'f'•L' 
M&itif0 ,iJ 4,389 29,624 1,657 15 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., ltd and 
its subsidiaries 

--: - - •Rfiii/EHHH&0 ci'J & J~+0 uJ 39,631 57,693 28,482 8,128 6,823 
Hunan Sany Body Co., ltd. 
i,\lji$i_::- ljlJ'.l"'tflll!0;,-J 88 21,822 26, 158 7,885 9,036 
Sany Indonesia Mining Equipment 

Co., Ltd 
: -EpJe~w;&/lHi\JR0,;J 24,331 7 

Sany Heavy Equipment Indonesia 
Holdings Co., Ltd. 

:: -Epft'.if(i!1~ffiHH&0 uJ 37,559 23,337 15,470 619 
Sichuan Lumaite Engineering 

Equipment Co., ltd. 
D]l/l[~ii§f.f [fla1ffHH~0.-1 32,854 12,264 16,517 4,543 6,278 
China Wealth Equipment Pte Ltd . 
't''/Za1/lil'# !ft0i;J 6,570 11,964 15,351 5,641 7,031 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aenl 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 
Sany Construction Technology 

(Miluo) Co., Ltd . .. :: -~ 0 4Ili 
<ii:!~ ) t ill&0 °1 91 6,321 6,418 2,543 2,420 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd .i"!il!¥ltf&'.·i! 
~JIHIHilR0.;J 2,422 2,511 4,627 1,057 473 

Changsha Dilian Industrial Control 
Technology Co., Ltd.{Hl>'i'i\'JI r: 
l'm t.HHR0 iiJ 17,108 3,568 4,496 879 2,801 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading 
Co., Ltd.Jl/iflfifi £ I.'I, i'HHJ!l& 
0a'J 362 2,804 4,427 6,851 8,742 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., 
Lld.~&tMJ!i.iW:~'f -mrn.;-1 9,908 8,274 4,381 1,916 1,592 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., 
Lld . .fftrl·I h na~ll!HH!i!0 ii] 7,983 2,741 3,245 1,606 133 

Huachu Petrochemical 
(Guangdong) Co., Lld.~/;Urn:. 
( Jl/iliD -IH&z:- .;-J 2,972 447 

China Wealth Machinery Malaysia 
Co., Ltd .'PiJ'-!l\1/Ji(.1.~JRi!.HUill& 
0 ii] 485 3,141 2,669 1,018 1,165 

Gangyue Construction 
Engineering Co., Ltdi-l!iil!! l.lt~ T. 

F£-tillN0 °1 9,341 3,192 2,371 1,353 371 
Sany Technology Equipment Co., 

Ltd .. :::: JxJ-'j ~{f;rffllfl0iiJ 6,043 14,452 1,941 1,740 52 
Hunan DE UTZ Power Co., Ltd. i/ill 

J¥l i/11« hUw J1 ,/iµf.\ 0 .;J 1,755 3,478 1,823 966 561 
Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., 

Ltd .. =: :ri il!J ¥1 ~ ~flirmR 0 ii] 80,767 62,966 1,009 445 314 
Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) 

Co., Ltd . .::: - $11-g <l!lciffl l MU 
0 a=J 455 2,446 842 270 802 

China Wealth Cambodia 
Machinery Co., Ltd .'f"1:1 •IOlfi'.m 
!lillitHillti0 iiJ 756 721 831 72 202 

Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd .=: - ·?$; H-Hlilllif!l-'!'HM 
0AJ 1,279 1,060 660 279 166 

SANY Group Co., Ltd. ~ -m[!lll-li 
!R0'iil 58,646 1,394 554 228 126 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd. ·::: 
- M.~HHR0d'J 9 946 440 270 104 

Sany Construction Development 
(Malaysia) Limited -:: -~ r: ~ I& 

<.\~llsilli§.l -tHR0•l 740 434 
Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New 

Energy Co., Ltd.;f',lciffl C::- f0~li m.ri 
fJliibHi!R0•J 21 384 28 126 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.i!ill¥53,: {= --': 

- ~ U4ttfi~0"1 467 2,093 371 308 47 
Sany Environmental Industry Co., 

Ltd . .::: - .i;:!.l;'.ti/E l'i11il&0 oj 30 797 346 201 1,059 
Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 

Service Co., Ltd .ilili¥i1'rl!Jili'!M/JJ.'.!11 
nl:HMilR0 °J 103 238 344 165 70 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. 
and tis subsidiariesu/ltt!l:JIJN 
f!)- {HR0 i'!J lUt 'f 0 a'J 2,123 438 329 134 117 

Zhejiang Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Lld.il/ilI .c:: - !JI! 
IMttMfrniiJ 563 569 250 124 62 

Hunan Anren Sany Heavy Steel 
Structure Co., Ltd.i!ilm'!,:t::::: -
'1£1.!'ljlijt/4-fHR0,:,1 224 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0OO RMB'0OO 

(Unaudited) 
Sany Silicon Energy 

{Shuozhou) Co., Ltd . ..=: 
lt'fie c~JJiii J .f:fllli!0,;J 168 188 27 382 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon 
Energy Technology Co., 
Ltd t,li:;\'ff : - fi9fJW:UHT 
ll!H}iiJ 756 155 62 10 

Sany Robot Equipment 
{Xi'an) Co., Ltd.::: -·!Jl:m 
A~ffl/ Ci!§ 1,; l #llli!0 o1 7,310 6,305 109 103 84 

Kunshan Sany 
Environment Protecting 
Technology Co., Ltd.!,!. 
w ::.-m~NnHHr.0 ~1 137 29 106 94 

Sany Intelligent Mining 
Technology Co., Ltd .::, 
- f'/~N!Hill!!0 "1 12,469 2,270 86 5 37 

Sany Construction 
Engineering (Xi'an) 
Technology Co., Ltd . ': 
- ·JU: c ~-!< J N!Hillli! 
0H] 50 39 72 4 28 

Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent 
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 
t!i:i/tl -=: - ~.~~iZtfillli!0 
;',] 91 96 71 61 2 

Hunan Sany Building Co., 
Ltd.i4il!¥i ..C:-t!c1mW{l:'ia 
Lfil'illli!0 "1 8,312 4,810 70 21 58 

Guangzhou Huayao Real 
Estate Co., Ltd .$1/,i 'i\ftll 
['tll{illli!0u] 13 12 65 16 4 

Hunan Xingxiang 
Construction Supervision 
Consulting Co., Ltd .i~ rw 
Jl!i!flilt.1Ut.l'l1.ll'i;;&1 tii:!i! 0 
"J 106 127 64 4 19 

Jiangsu Sany 
Environmental 
Technology Co., Ltd . iI 
ff= -1n~N:!'lt m1H} ifJ 13,176 3,842 60 42 106 

Changsha Yuntian Real 
Estate Co., Ltd. l,ii'J;'l, x. 
IAJ1!!111i1l"llli!0ol 57 30 

SANY PC Manufacturing 
SDN BHD 3 56 

Hunan Sany Construction 
Co., Ltd .i,\IJM .='.- !J1U~i 
~lrn,/J 277 214 55 27 16 

Zhuzhou Sany Smart 
Industry and Trade Co., 
Ltd.tJ;\'ff .:C: ·f?.!l: HHi 
~lrn,sJ 55 7 46 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 
Zhuhai SANY Port 

Machinery Co., Ltd.Jll<i/,J: 
:: · /llirllll!~-ti ll!l0i/J 47 

Shengjing Intelligent 
Technology (Jiaxing) Co., 
Ltd. iiHt"1m4tt rn 
JI! ) -mr,i0 ;;1 14 46 3 8 

Hunan SANY Port 
Machinery Co., Lld .i,\IJ 1¥! 
::. -i41i1:l ,lltilHHli!0dJ 30,439 45 11 

Sany Robot (Changsha) 
Co., Lld . .=':- lll!,1&A <k 
i'J;> :/Hli!0 i/J 38 3 

Sany (Quanzhou) 
Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd .-=: - (fJUH > '.l5 
U 4tt1fllli!0dJ 23 34 37 35 

Sany (Zhuhai) Investment 
Co.,Lld . .C::- ( J,lci,J ) f:lt 
itH H li!0 iiJ 4 15 35 9 4 

Shenzhen Trinity 
Technology Co., Ltd.iJsJJII 
rli ::: --Mtt{Hli!0 °1 5 14 33 17 21 

Chongqing Zhushengyuan 
Real Estate Development 
Co., Lid . ofUJl!t'r lPt [,'llliJJt!! 
4 illl~Hf l!R0 ;;J 10 47 33 27 

Beijing Sany Heavy 
Machinery Co., Ltd .~L ~( 
rli :C: · ,Jlffll{i llli!0"1 119 31 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real 
Estate Co., Lld.i,\IJ~~t'r 
ii!,(})} J'l!liit f rnH~ ,1J 113 92 31 20 5 

Hunan Sany Intelligent 
Construction Engineering 
Co , Lld.i,\lllti :': -l-nHll 
i1i Cf H f!li! 0•-J 30 17 

Sany Palfinger SPV 
Equipment Co., Ltd .=. -
<IB!i ili flf!f.1 ¥1! $.IH!H/Hi 
llli!0u] 170 107 30 38 

Sany Construction 
Engineering (Linli) 
Technology Co., Lid . .=: ·-
~1: r lli,ii \'l J f4tHi\ll!0 
a'] 64 51 21 18 

Changsha Shufeng 
Enterprise Management 
Co., Lid. W'Ylil/ ift ri': Hi' 
l!HHli!0.;J 20 32 

Changsha Yunhui Real 
Estate Development Co., 
Lld. MY.Sl'JtJ/ Jt!!~BIHI 
{f \ll!0d] 33 6 19 4 5 

Sany Hydrogen Energy 
Technology Co., Lid.~~-
ti!. nm tt =1n1t 0 .;J 5 18 8 

Yaowu (Shenzhen) 
Technology Co., Ltd.'!l!fn 
O* J!ll l t-H H f\ll! 0u1 69 25 18 11 4 

Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate 
Co., Ltd .. =: - ( J;lci/i} > '{/_ 

l'iMli!0 ol 50 3 16 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Sany Handan 
Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd . 
~ - -1:ttl\\tll~ HHHf 
~trnBJ 47 45 16 16 

Zhuzhou Sany 
Zhushengyuan 
Property Service Co., 
Ltd . .j,!c;fii :::: ·t'r/JJH,W!m 
~ij11J'MH!H:- ci'J 13 5 14 5 4 

Hunan Sanyin 
Commercial 
Management Co., 
Ltd. ii\llrw ~ j&fl}j~'i'.fllll 
1rnrn <1J 2 11 

Sany Construction 
(Chongqing) 
Technology Co., Ltd. 
~ - -~ [ ( ifL~ J fl!-
!:HH!i! 0 ~l 13 9 8 2 

Changsha Yunjing Real 
Estate Co., Ltd. U:i'Y 
·t£tL(l}±11'.~ ,(ii;t,! 0 nJ 140 22 6 4 

Jiangsu Sany 
Construction Co., Ltd. 
rH.i<~ - -~ L-l'i i;t,10 
aJ 4 

LoudiZhushengyuan 
Real Estate 
Development Co., 
Ltd. Wltt'r!J,J[fl]IJ}.tt/!.ft'/i 
m.m -riP!il0 fII 16 27 4 3 

China Kangfu 
International Leasing 
Co. , Ltd.rl•~J;/fi;\'[,j,J 
~ffl. ti JlQf1HH!i! 0 uJ 15,487 4 9 

China Wealth Machine 
Holdings Limited 't' 'r;,; 
-l.llt-lil£fl/N.fi~!i! 0 ,,J 10,000 4 4 

Loudi Zizhu Yunzhi 
Industrial Park 
Development Co., 
Ltd.JJJ/~~t'r'l ~ rig%£ 
ri-.'ll~nHrnrn1>'l 4 4 

Shanghai Sany 
Construction Co., Ltd. 
UfiE ~ I i!SI:~ 
~lrni'fJ 67 115 3 2 

Changsha Yunqi Real 
Estate Development 
Co., Ltd.ftV"~!ll!ffi 
.ttl!.~mi~-mrrn aJ 2 

Beijing Sany 
Architectural Design 
and Research Co., 
ud.Jt.lj{_- =: -mr~.iw 
liJf1i'..-tflltrn~ 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

iv. Sales of goods to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A11ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Hunan Aika Internet 
Technology Co., Ltd.m] ]W 
'W'. ·Js-.liimWt1H~ 0 E'J 2 2 

Kunshan Sany Power Co. , 
Ltd. /iw .=.-~ fJii-ll~ 0 °] 531 

Linli Zhushengyuan Real 
Estate Co., Ltd.~i'li11!ml\!AI 
IJ5 .11!!.itf i'i" lli 0 &J 2 

Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Ltd.=. -

( ii~ ) ~ .5:~fru1Hli0 
ri] 

Changsha Three Silver Real 
Estate Development Co., 
Ltd. ~i'Y cStUjt .11!!.1/i OO ~# 
llfri0d] 33 

Chongqing Sany 
Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd .. •fUJll.=: • 
11Jmfill4Pr~nIrnHr lli 0 ;,J 

Yuandong Construction 
Investment Group CO.,Ltd 
of BeijingJbi(:lf&il'.ii.JRit 
iW:J3!J'i~li'Jli'i" lli0 ifJ 

Sany Construction 
(Quanzhou) Building 
Materials Co., Ltd.=.-~ 
r. ( JR1tl ) i!.f'.HHi0 nJ 

Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding 
Industry Co., Ltd.J/li'l'.i.:7'~-
flfl lls1'Uf.filli0 il'J 84 

MGB SANY(M) IBS SON 
BHD 82 

Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., 
Ltd. i~ rt] =: i,l!!jR h lli ffi'-fi 
1!&0 "j 5 37 

Beijing Sany Public Welfare 
FoundationJtJl-.=. - 0Mi. 

¥~* 44 2 
Shenzhen Sany Cloud Oil 

Technology Co., Ltd. i~Jjll 
.::: - '.~ i fll,Ji4-rHillti0iiJ 54 

Xi'an Zhushengyuan Real 
Estate Co., Ltd j1q'ic1'Jlm~ 
fff .i1!!.i H ill&l0 ii"J 6 

Hunan Sany Cloud Oil 
Energy Co., Ltd.~JW.::-:- -

'l=ifll i'i~Wit.fHR0 FiJ 18 
Sany International (OE) 

Industry Co., Ltd :::. - [~~F 
C ffi ~ Wi ! .ff lllh'HE0 JJ 11 ,791 

Total 2,644,938 3,096,415 4,615,526 1,443,971 1,772,555 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'000 RMB'00O RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

SANY Marine Heavy 
Industry Co., Ltd . .= administrative 
- #fii$.£I1'i°~i0iil service 16,418 84,923 55,763 4,696 7,554 

Sany Heavy Energy 
Co., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries.=-.£ fi~ 

Jll1:flt1'i~i0iiJ,&;J;l;-'f administrative 
0iil service 2,751 39,215 45,344 16,105 8,395 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-
LIMITED Companym! 
i¥iA.il[~~f'i~UHf logistics 
0i'i.l service 2,589 16,438 34,757 3,603 11 ,371 

SANY Heavy 
Equipment Co., Ltd . 
.=-1iru~f:Aiff~i 0 administrative 
iiJ service 3,581 1,459 31,953 1,377 11,896 

Sany Logistics 
Equipment USA Co., 
Ltd.=-!Jo/.Jifif.~f:Ai~~ administrative 
ff~i0iil service 23,300 339 9,868 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Zhuzhou) Co., Ltd . 
.=-li.91i~ ( ~7}tl ) fl logistics 
~& 0iil service 1,466 15,542 1,632 11,460 

Sany Heavy Equipment 
Indonesia Holdings 
Co. , Ltd . .=- fPle.£ administrative 
ru~f:Ai1'i~& 0 i'i.l service 2,634 14,779 

Wuxi Sany Venture 
Capital Partnership 
Enterprise (Limited 
Partnership )!!0~.= - - management 
iiH\tlJ!:~*nJl::~ consulting 
Cff~~*n > service 13,208 13,208 13,208 4,403 3,769 

SANY Heavy 
Equipment Co., Ltd . 
.=-.£~~ffiff~&0 logistics 
ii] service 352,479 80,882 11 ,712 5,419 1,883 

Hunan Zhushengyuan 
Property Service Co., 
Ltd. mli¥i it !!Hi! !Jo/.J ~ administrative 
R!HJ} 1'i ~& 0 iiJ service 13,204 10,440 9,679 3,602 2,973 

Hunan Xingbida 
Network Technology 
Co., Ltd .m!i¥itr~•i! administrative 
~IH4ttff~~0iil service 487 8,572 9,190 1,514 770 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A!1ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Shengjing Intelligent 
Technology 
(Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. 
:!1lHi~ !H4U C !l, administrativ 
Jl!) -IHlH;· n] e service 7,072 7,331 3,187 902 

SANY Marine 
Heavy Industry 
Co., Ltd.=.-iiiH~ logistics 
,:JU:-fnf! 0 cj service 165,264 26,340 6,896 3,066 1,698 

Sany Lithium 
Energy Co., Ltd. administrativ 
.: .:- -ill[tiUfllN.0 a] e service 6,076 2,370 

Sany Heavy Energy 
Co., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries : -

ifUJ5/l51:tH-ill& 0 uj logistics 
liUt r0 a'J service 5,646 1,661 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Shuozhou) Co., 
Ltd . .=: - li9rJ5 ( ~Jl logistics 
1-1-1 ) 1'f~fl0 i'/J service 5,090 755 2,255 

Sany Construction 
Technology Co., 
Ltd . .=: ~ L l4H logistics 
ID1:tHrnrn,i] service 10,007 12,451 5,043 1,216 677 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Zhuzhou) Co., 
Ltd. =: - li9fj5 ( ~ administrativ 
;+H ) -mW.0wJ e service 128 4,913 24 31 

Hunan DEUTZ 
Power Co., Ltd. )/ill 

l¥Jili:f:i'd/;:iJi.lJJJ M[i logistics 
0<i] service 2,820 4,153 1,090 2,162 

Sany Robotics 
Technology Co., 
Ltd. ::C:-f!~.A.N administrativ 
Ji:(ef~fl0 is"] e service 298 4,389 3,602 1,945 564 

Sany Indonesia 
Mining Equipment 
Co. , Ltd =:.- ~PM administrativ 
~Li1/&#ltff~fl0 i'/J e service 3,507 

Sany International 
(Hong Kong) 
Industry Co., Ltd . 
.:~ -~-;JI!!;€ ( fi:i! ) administrativ 
'l'!~MtrnJJ e service 354 3,265 

Sany Technology 
Equipment Co. , 
Ltd. :C: -jii,fj~ffir administrativ 
ffll[;/.0 ii] e service 1,157 1,412 3,177 507 133 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A[1ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Sany Palfinger SPV 
Equipment Co., Ltd. =:: - '1(3 

1'! -iH1H<1fi::'f!.ffll~ffiHfll&01ogistics 
fiJ service 1,071 1,167 3,065 70 851 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd .¥/ill 1¥i logistics 
ff 1Z•i!.tlllnHHfll& 0 1'iJ service 2,909 2,704 2,512 803 207 

Hunan Sany Body Co. , Lid. logistics 
¥/illi¥i =: - tl!SHi!l&0JJ service 24 531 2,400 694 1,277 

Hunan Anren Sany 
Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.iMf¥i3'i:t:: ::_ -~ J: administrati 
H!Hf~0irl ve service 4,156 3,039 2,299 715 739 

Hunan Sany Building Co., 
Ud.iNlfYai .:3. ·•tMii!k(l'.€.[ logistics 
JF~fll&0 .;J service 51 1,468 2,273 

Zhejiang Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ud.Wrn : administrati 
.:.:: -~n.iJ--t.HH&01'iJ ve service 1,526 2,266 2,238 575 957 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., administrati 
Lid. :': - fMiE -fi~0 ,,:J ve service 104 2,046 1,540 13 

Sany Robotics Technology 
Co., Lid.~ - ttl!~ A.f.iJ-J'Hf logistics 
{![{0 ;,J service 3,197 377 1,753 169 2,729 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-
LIMITED Companyiitll /¥'ii( administrali 
'V-1Mi1Hilllh'H10 ":J ve service 272 268 1,663 63 82 

Sany Silicon Energy 
(Shuozhou) Co., Lid .. - =: • administrati 
W~ (1Jl1'H l ff !lli!0"J ve service 90 1,555 97 

Sany Energy Equipment Co.,logistics 
Ltd. --' fiitiJii~ffi\' 1H&0 d] service 445 71 1,493 332 39 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic 
Co., Ud.vt1HfJifilillf 111HHM logistics 
0":J service 670 1,428 613 364 

SANY Group Co., Lid. ::'.: - 1,1! administrati 
~I W &0 ,ij ve service 4,323 1,557 1,407 221 387 

Sany Intelligent Equipment 
Co., Ltd.~-~ .~l&ffil'ffll& logistics 
0fiJ service 315 1,361 406 519 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., 
Ud.iitll1¥iit'!:f&X:.:i/JJJl H&0 administrati 
n] ve service 1,006 1,813 1,267 170 389 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic 
Co., Ud.v'U·H hffii.i!lUIJHfll~ administrati 
0 h] ve service 136 508 1,193 227 101 

Hunan Sany Body Co., Lid. administrati 
im wL :: • 'f!.:4-f.flltrn iiJ ve service 41 329 1,105 50 55 

Tangshan Chile Mechanical 
Equipment Co., Ud./;lj-t!J/!ltl'. logistics 
ttttl!ffll:.lJl:ifiHH&0 ti:J service 2,867 2,074 1,098 413 244 

Sany Construction 
Technology (Miluo) Co., 
Ud.2 - ·~HH~ OHID logistics 
ffil&0'a'J service 8 976 18 2,246 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment 
Co., Ltd. == ,riim}n,H,\Hf/f administrali 
::ff {l&0 a-J ve service 344 361 914 244 42 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

v. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Sany Environmental 
Industry Co., Ltd. 
- - m~~lt'fflli administrative 
0lll service 8 346 894 138 125 

Sany Energy 
Equipment Co. , 
Ltd. --=. ·ITEil§.!/i€{'1/i administrative 
-fill!! 0a-J service 553 158 873 65 130 

Sany Robot 
Equipment (Xi'an) 
Co., Ltd.-=-: ·-111!~ 
A.~ i'Ni C i/li~ l 1'!. administrative 
~lrnnj service 474 755 837 235 

Lianyungang Anxin 
Machinery Sales 
Co., Ltd . .i!li'..'.'.:tl3<: 
,C,,,mt1'i!J!jfWi-fi~ri01ogistics 
i>] service 4,414 1,537 828 429 87 

Changsha Yuntian 
Real Estate Co. , 
Ltd. H:i:v'..S ~liJi'l!! administrative 
&ff l®.0 n service 2 776 119 185 

Sany Hydrogen 
Energy Co., ltd . -:1ogistics 
-g tJ:Hntrn dJ service 37 574 26 

Sany Robotics 
Technology Co., machine 
Ltd. ~:: --!11!@ A.f4 processing 
tHi Ill! 0 irJ service 2,473 566 455 

Hunan Anren Sany 
Heavy Steel 
Structure Co. , ltd. 
i,\)] r-14 3({ : ·:: • ,p;i administrative 
$1/4t/Hi~ti0"j service 559 275 

Sany Intelligent 
Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .:: • 'ti' .!.'l lHIII administrative 
-MrrnaJ service 3 1,260 506 31 71 

Sany Lithium Energy 
Co., ltd . .:.: ·ilffm logistics 
1Hi0B'J service 497 302 

Huaxin Yongkang 
Insurance Sales 
Co., Ltd. ~;J,Jr,l<J.Ji administrative 
~~M/.i'IM{Hti 0 a'J service 249 397 45 24 

Sany Construction 
Technology Co., 
Ltd . .=: - ~.IHH: administrative 
/lQ-f'itmR0t,j service 456 1,026 362 79 107 

Sany Environmental 
Industry Co., ltd. 

=:: - ·I,t:l~Pl'.!itMi logistics 
0.,1 service 353 290 9 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A(1ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong 
Engineering 
Machinery Co., 
Ltd.ftti;tf1.1II !tI logistics 
fa1-lltJ1HHfi!0'7J service 183 307 

Sany Construction 
Technology 
(Miluo) Co., Ltd. :::: 

-~U-H.¼: ( iR administrative 
/1) 1'J°µ[il0.r] service 5 81 287 35 130 

Zhuzhou Sany 
Silicon Energy 
Technology Co. , 
Ltd .,j,jc¥!+i - - -lt'il~ logistics 
ttwr::trlli0 <iJ service 847 270 216 74 

Changsha Yunjing 
Real Estate Co., 
Ltd. &f'.11 '1.{f.~1/J} J:i!J. administrative 
"11Ht-J.0"'J service 912 943 214 96 30 

Zhuzhou Sany 
Silicon Energy 
Technology Co., 
Ltd .,j,jc¥!+i :: ·le'fm administrative 
tt#f{fµ[il0 1a] service 2 178 3 3 

Kunshan Sany 
Environment 
Protecting 
Technology Co., 
Ltd. 611IJ :: - • mf¼ administrative 
¥1-tt{Hi 0 ,.,-J service 169 179 175 39 18 

Sany Technology 
Equipment Co., 
Ltd. - :: ·1.HH!&flli logistics 
·Mi0irJ service 3 2 148 46 3 

Zhuzhou Sany 
Intelligent 
Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd.,j,jc;ftt ::': - administrative 
~~ .~(!Mi.1£.-(f~li 0 ,;J service 52 130 

Hunan SANY Port 
Machinery Co., 
Ltd.i~h# :: -r,! r I administrative 
al!:#Hi~0.;J service 3,342 92 125 2 32 

Sany Intelligent 
Mining 
Technology Co., 
Ltd. ::C: -W~fHt administrative 
M&0<i.l service 66 49 115 10 7 

Hunan Sany 
Building Co., Ltd . 
ilill 1¥i.:?. -t:lrmf M'ft administrative 
"i:i I 1f·M~0ffJ service 2,080 1,450 113 

Jiangsu Sany 
Environmental 
Technology Co., 
Ltd.'!I/it ~--m.tJi: administrative 
f1l-tt{Hi0iefl service 88 41 112 28 21 

Sany Lithium Energymachine 
Co., Ltd.::: ill tm processing 
M&02J service 99 67 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Jiulong Property Insurance 
Co., Lld . .0-.~l'tUldil~HHi administrativ 
0.r] e service 91 98 4 43 

Rootcloud Technology Co., 
Lid. and tis subsidiaries,li1 
m.1lJffiliJlxtHHi0 ia'J.liUl; -r administrativ 
0 ;:,-1 e service 39 88 95 3 23 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon 
Energy New Energy Co., 
Lld .t!lcifH :::: - $ fiilfJr tiiliJJi!1'f administrativ 
~ft0 <'i'] e service 82 2 73 

Zhuzhou Sany Smart 
Industry and Trade Co., 
Ltd .t)lcifli =: ~ .t~ r'l'UHI[ administrativ 
0.iJ e service 69 16 

Sany Technology Equipment machine 
Co., Lid. - :: ·tHH/&ffuM~ processing 
0.;'J service 718 211 57 57 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon 
Energy Technology Co., machine 
Ltd .t!lcifli=- ·WfiMHMH~ processing 
0 liJ service 434 56 53 

Sany Robot (Changsha) Co., 
Ltd . .::-: - t!l!~A Un'.JI l 1i administraliv 
lll\l.0n'J e service 54 24 

Sany Construction 
Engineering (Xi'an) 
Technology Co., Ltd . .=:. - · administrativ 
•t c~~ l Mtt~lll\l.0 ~ e~rv~ 15 16 52 3 24 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology 
Co., Ltd. i¥.lJllm=- ·fiH.:Hi administrativ 
lll\l.0<1] e service 173 47 47 

Sany Robot Equipment 
(Xi'an) Co., Lld.· c: ·t!l!~A logislics 
/&ffu l lffi'i,: ) 1illl\l.0 o5J service 213 44 44 

Sany (Zhuhai) Investment 
Co., Lid. ::.:- · C~ihJ> 15!:Pi administrativ 
nlll\l.0"1 e service 3 31 15 

Sany Construction 
Engineering (Linli) 
Technology Co., Lid . .= • administraliv 
• tc~ml Mtt#lll\l.0n'J e~rv~ 7 5 28 6 

Sany International (Zambia) 
Industrial Co., Ltd ..: · IPIJ~ logistics 
c r1o 1:t~ ) rrn:tHl[0 ~ service 26 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

V. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong 
Engineering Machinery 
Co. , Ltd.J\:;~httl ITT!. Cfa1-1:11i administrali 
-li!l!tilU~i'iJ ve service 253 22 30 

Hunan Xingxiang 
Construction Supervision 
Consulting Co., Lld.~M~ administrati 
iffliUifi:i. .lll!Z~rnt1:fill&0 a-J ve service 24 55 13 7 8 

Beijing Sany Heavy 
Machinery Co., Lld j L~rli administrati 
~ - :i :f1\Hflll,rn BJ ve service 6 12 4 2 

Hunan Sany Construction 
Co. , Ltd .11;1JW'.f =:-~ .Ct H& administrati 
0 B] ve service 35 44 10 3 

Sany Construction 
(Chongqing) Technology 
Co., Lld.~-j:; _[ C:il!.,!l ) administrati 
t4ttm~ 0 .,.1 ve service 12 12 10 3 

Runze Hui Enterprise 
Management Co., Ltdill!l~ administrati 
lll{ 1E~rr.fll!M&0 is'J ve service 30 9 

SANY Marine Heavy lndustrymachine 
Co., Ltd.~ · if<.Vi'r-.ill. .U H i processing 
0 d] service 9 9 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery 
Co., Ltd .11;1li¥i =: - - i;f!; l l :&ffli logistics 
'fHi0 f-'fJ service 28,948 2,198 7 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial 
Trading Co., Ltd .fM/"N rti M administrati 
I £ t'U,Hfll~ 0 .;J ve service 300 6 726 

Hunan Aika Internet 
Technology Co., Ltd .i/vl1¥j administrati 
~ t !f.!ffiH4tii'illi0 a-J ve service 2 13 5 2 

Sany Hydrogen Energy 
Technology Co., Ltd .=: - · administrali 
1m.fimtt::tHli0 nJ ve service 138 5 

China Wealth Saudi Machine 
Limitect rl• -~fi'..Pf.'f~-li!l!.fillR administrali 
0 ci'J ve service 5 5 

Shanghai Sany Construction 
Co., Ltd . l:i/,J - -: -~ [ ill :& administrali 
t"illti0 i'iJ ve service 198 605 4 4 

Changsha Yunhui Real 
Estate Development Co., 
Lld. ,ki'.'.l>:,S Pi fJ1l& i1'fi. 6~1 ~.fj administrati 
~rrn iil ve service 4 

China Wealth Machinery 
Malaysia Co .. Ltd . rt1 'CT -lm-li!l!administrati 
Y.B*iffi521f~i0rr] ve service 4 

Beijing Sany Architectural 
Design and Research Co., 
Lld. Jth(.=-:- -ilt~:&JtliJf '1'. administrali 
tfllf!0,s,j ve service 3 3 

Hunan Sany Intelligent 
Construction Engineering 
Co., Ltd.11;1JJ.¥J.?-- t l'!l:il!il! administrati 
T fil tf ll&0 \iJ ve service 3 6 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

v. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate 
Co., Ltd.:-. • <~ilii ) .i'/..'.V!; administrati 
{HlH } ill ve service 

China Wealth Equipment Pie logistics 
Lld.1f'1J .N:fliHHti0P] service 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong manageme 
Engineering Machinery nt 
Co., Ltd.fEti;l;fL1'1rn~ L ffil-1! consulting 
tl1Ftf ll!l0 d) service 

Sany Handan Construction 
Technology Co. , Lld.:::C: - - administrati 
tf!ll'/lll~.n .iJ.-t.Hi~& 0 i,j ve service 

Zhuhai Zhuxiang Cloud 
Technology Co., Lld .~ ;llj administrali 
~ ~;i: ·.tf4-tHrni0AJ ve service 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment 
Co., Ltd.=: - - fi iBJ fl'-~ ~ #if logistics 
fHti 0 riJ service 

Turbo Fly Machine 
Engineering Limited/li1W:ut 1ogistics 
fil£.N: {f1Hi~~0 ifJ service 

Sichuan Lumaite 
Engineering Equipment 
Co., Ltd. J7ll JI I ~ ®:ti' S.-ti:& administrati 
(tum~ 0 r,J ve service 

Huachu Petrochemical 
(Guangdong) Co., Lld. {i'H~administrati 
{ i f.t Cwt!-#. ) 1Hfl. 0 ri] ve service 

Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Lid.::::- administrati 
( •TUJ~J 'f\'.~!~HM'{ill!!0 .il ve service 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., administrati 
Ltd./i LlJ ..?. - -~}J-fi~lH~ ;;-J ve service 

Zhuzhou Sany 
Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Lld.~#tt..:: - · administrati 
t'rlBf~~J~ mUHH&0 iiJ ve service 

Changsha Dilian Industrial 
Control Technology Co. , 
Ltd.N:i'.!l-Afim Ll'H41HH& administrati 
0 n] ve service 

Zhongxian Sany 
Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.:t,M:::C:-~If.iJ.H administrati 
·Mli 0 .;J ve service 

Guangzhou Huayao Real 
Estate Co., Ltd .Wii'M~il'lliti'. administrati 
l£ fi II& 0 ~j ve service 

Hubei Sany Truck Sales and 
Service Co., Ltd. i~~t :::C: - administrati 
·t:: 1M i'l11rnlHMfil& 0 iii ve service 

Loudi Zhushengyuan Real 
Estate Development Co., 
Lid. -1nJl'.\; t'rlBf !Mlm J.il,.p"/i_ llil ~ administrati 
lrni 0 .;J ve service 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

12 

7 

6,062 

33 

575 

708 

187 

5 

5 

1,641 

157 

122 

28 

15 

13 

10 

5 

3 

3 

3 

2 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

3 

2 

48 

18 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

v. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

Guangzhou Yigongpin 
Technology Co., Ltd .lilUli administrati 
rlH1,IJHH5H.i!lfi0dJ ve service 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., logistics 
Ltd.fili/1 :. -JJJ)J1'f~lil.0ii'J service 

SANY Group Co., Ltd.-=::: -m logistics 
lltH!il0f;'J service 

Hunan Sany Construction 
Co. , Ltd.Wl ~ ::': ~ HIP[ logistics 
0 i/J service 

Kunshan Sany Environment 
Protecting Technology 
Co., Ltd.Mw = -J.tHJH4:l'i1ogistics 
~~lil.0ieiJ service 

Sany Intelligent Mining 
Technology Co., Ltd._:: - logistics 
~lil!HtHi~lil. ~ f;'J service 

SANY MINING Equipment logistics 
Co., Ltd.==.-li/$1-!}lt1i~0d] service 

Hunan Anren Sany 
Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.i~fi'J'.l'.c{: -: --~ r: logistics 
HU Mi 0 i'r] service 

Sany Robot Equipment maintenanc 
(Xi'an) Co., Ltd.-:: --!}lt;mA.e and repair 
~ffir ( [llj3e l ti~fl0.:i] service 

Sany Construction 
Technology (Miluo) Co., maintenanc 
Ltd.-=:: -JH:l4U < rR.~ l e and repair 
:feHlil. 0 ,;J service 

Sany Silicon Energy maintenanc 
(Zhuzhou) Co., Ltd . - : -jjJ, e and repair 
flE < tl<iftt J {Hfl ~ ~j service 

Sany Heavy Energy Co. , Ltd maintenanc 
and its subsidiaries - -: • .Y( e and repair 
fitfRfilfH[H~ l'f] &j!; 'f0 l'f1 service 

maintenanc 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co.,e and repair 

Ltd. - -- - i!J/l'llHM' #~!i 0 ,;J service 
Sany Robotics Technology maintenanc 

Co., Ltd.~:: - -WMA.HtH.i e and repair 
~!i ~ u] service 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic maintenanc 
Co. , Ltd.,rJU·l·lh/i[~~-fflllil e and repair 
0 ,;J service 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE- machine 
LIMITED CompanyiM!mf\ processing 
.ill~J11Mlil.i'Hf.0 "J service 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment machine 
Co., Ltd.?--;fiillit':!!~ffir processing 
·Mlil. 0 uj service 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

1,379 

71 

59 

238 

212 

96 

554 

1,999 

320 

98 

3,207 

188 

132 

35 

25 

8 

4 

2 

876 

865 

847 

182 

107 

68 

10 

629 

155 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

v. Rendering of service to related parties (continued) 

machine 
Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., processing 

Ltd. C: -$ fie l ~ iffll 111.!0 "] service 
Hunan Anren Sany Construction machine 

Technology Co., Ltd. illll>l 'ici: ": -JI, processing 
I # tli l'flll!0ol service 

Hunan Xingbida Network Technology machine 
Co., Ltd.iMl>li f ·Jl:-i.t~iHHHi lil!0 processing 
1,i] service 

Hunan Sany Intelligent Industry Private 
Equity Fund Enterprise (Limited management 
Partnership)illl~:. -'!l' ~,l!iY;,fl. j!; JII! consulting 
llH.-~ iel'i <·tHMG-nl service 

Sichuan Lumaite Engineering 
Equipment Co. , Ud. 11!1 /ll llli/!lil T t1 
~ ff& ff llH 0 llj logistics service 

Palfinger Sany Crane CIS logistics service 
China Wealth Machine Holdings Limited 

'PiJi!lf!l!~lll! tf lil!0 °1 logistics service 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental 

Technology Co., Ltd.it~ , - Ji1J1,; '4 
tt. (j l!El~ ~1 logistics service 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. administrative 
iMm ~ t'riEil.il lt!!i'IWl<l.0 iiJ service 

Hunan Sany Cloud Oil Energy Co., Ltd. administrative 
illl rtol , --;;;Jli fJeV,i (il:frnnJ service 

Lianyungang Amcin Machinery Sales 
Co., Ltd.il!'I,il!;'ii; ,~,lJl~ i ~tHi~0 administrative 
JJ service 

Tangshan Chite Mechanical Equipment administrative 
Co., Ltd.lJi w !tl!t1l!lt,\!:&HH ii:1!0 nJ service 

Jiangsu Sany Construction Co., Ltd. iI administrative 
li _-: -~ [ ff~ i ~ p·J service 

machine 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd c - processing 

lfl 'li '&ffHH~0 "J service 
machine 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd. processing 
iNI li'i ..::: -m r 1 :&ff,7iii:1! i) ,]) service 

maintenance 
SANY Group Co., Ltd. : - JIHlll{iJ:U0 and repair 

12] service 
maintenance 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd.and repair 
2 -JI, CfH.!UIZnt i'i i:1!0 "] service 

maintenance 
Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED and repair 

Companyi41laii\ ll l l ii'i til!lli'i~f & ~} service 
maintenance 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. and repair 
Jt ,il- ,JJ -:c ·iJlllt!ii:u0JJ service 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co. , Ltd. logistics 
,t ,;,: 1t,· -:: - •Il llt m1rn a; service 

The Bank of Sanxiang Co. ltd of Hunanadministrative 
ProvinceiN.11¥1 :'.HtillffJl:2: fil- tl~~i.i] service 

Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., administrative 
Ltd. c - ~ Jll1fijjfr.lH 1tflli'1,fl,)fiJ:U0 service 
oj 

Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent Manufacturing administrative 
Co., Ltd .¥,le iffl_: - '!'l.@'fti,!i >HQ0 o] service 

machine 
Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. processing 

..3. -!illJ!'1iJ:fim 0,iJ service 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 

subsidiaries.=: · ili ffr:@t'ltBri ~ i:ij & EPC contracting 
Jt T Z~ i.il services 

Total 

Year ended 31 December 
2022 2023 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

50 

7 

6,604 2,985 

155 
3,193 

1,372 

4 

113 

12 

11 

10 

3 

85 

36 

424 

285 

128 

127 

674,802 359,352 

189 

2024 
RMB'OO0 

369,149 

Four months ended 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'0OO RMB'OO0 
(Unaudited) 

2 

3 

129 

4 

9 

74 

40 773 
66,109 135,834 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

vi. Leasing with related parties as lessor 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., Ltd . 
:.: ·tlat;J.$~1'1ftlit!tijj~ffiHfm.01iJ Building leasing 7,475 8,198 7,852 2,617 2,683 

Hunan Lehui Sports Culture 
Communication Co., Ltd. i/1JIVi~llUfl ff 
Jc-f.tfllHlllfl° ll&0 iil Building leasing 4,760 5,049 6,064 2,071 1,443 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd. ': • 
l1\!~AHtHill&0uJ Building leasing 2,247 5,202 1,605 2,049 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd .=: 
·ttWJ~ ffii''fHrn iiJ Building leasing 4,661 4,880 4,759 1,459 631 

Hunan Xingbida Network Technology 
Co., Ltd .i,IJJifiih&:·i!~~Htt1ill!i!0 °1 Building leasing 39 3,445 708 635 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd .i,!JJJ¥i1c f-:c=:-~ 
Uftt.fillli!.0,;J Building leasing 1,221 5,856 3,349 2,210 2,910 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 
"'o ·itJi'f'{(HTJlli!0iiJ Building leasing 458 2,622 1,905 1,180 94 

Hunan Anren Sany Heavy Steel 
Structure Co., Ltd.i,IIJ fiij '!<: f: -=. -.YUi'! 
llillilHHli!0,;J Building leasing 1,639 

Sany Ltthium Energy Co., Ltd. "': ·i'J!fllj 
{H[;l0 ,.;J Building leasing 1,636 1,329 

Zhejiang Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.~iL:: -~1:l4tt111ltt0.iJ Building leasing 3,194 1,994 1,537 3 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and tts 
subsidiaries -: • .Y( fiEIN:jjJ-{ii!ft0 ,,J RI. 
Jt-f0o1 Building leasing 426 470 1,310 76 

SANY Group Co., Ltd .::: -M.Hl'lJ -fjfli!0,;J Building leasing 2,745 42 631 23 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd . :: - .Y( 

l!'1~ffu-fflli!0"J Building leasing 482 394 414 255 150 
Changsha Yunqi Real Estate 

Development Co., Ltd . F):y.J; ·;B IJJ!fiHt!'.,/f. 
lll!~mErn1iJ Building leasing 85 185 63 

Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. -: 
- J;lt~,,r~mli! 0 oJ Building leasing 75 179 25 97 

Hunan Sanyin Commercial Management 
Co., Ltd.iMr\ii ..::itUli'.\trr.l!ll-iii!ft0,;J Building leasing 27 128 43 43 

Beijing Sany Public Welfare Foundation 
JtJl( :: - 0~!Utl'.f Building leasing 64 85 21 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd . ::- -fllj 
iJf,U!Hf,HillfrnnJ Building leasing 241 2 61 14 14 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting 
Technology Co., Ltd.fi!.w C:: - m(JiH4 
tt{ill&0iil Building leasing 115 6 34 34 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd.i,\IJl#i l!J /i: 
ilElr/Jh -/Hli!0erJ Building leasing 1,107 31 27 15 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., 
ud. -= -- 1i<1. flmttmli!01iJ Building leasing 20 71 20 20 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd. 
?ii U4fillll:jjj-.fHli!0iiJ Building leasing 17 6 17 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property Service 
Co. , Ltd. i/;J r\ii1tJBi[l'~~XimHMi!li!0uJ Building leasing 2,295 17 11 11 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd .=o -g 
fif{fll(;l0,.;J Building leasing 60 227 8 8 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

vi. Leasing with related parties as lessor (continued) 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December AE!ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 
Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., Ltd. 

-=- - ,5im~:!11~ffi\'ff~0 fl'J Building leasing 5 4 2 2 
Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., 

Lid. Ji:;,~( rti --': - · <!UtlHHrt 0ffJ Building leasing 2 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental 

Technology Co., LtdJI~ .=::-J.;:tJ:l't 
fl!Hil!Rz~ nJ Building leasing 8 2 2 

Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co., 
Lld._=:: - -l,liig _A_!~ffi\' C j/ij3e l ffpft 
0cl] Building leasing 654 3,162 2 

Sany Robot (Changsha) Co., Ltd._-:: 
- ,llgA C-w:i'J/ l 1f~rt05'J Building leasing 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., 
Lld. i,\IJ1¥F -i~IJ,W:ffHfpft0 d.! Building leasing 2,424 

Hunan Sany Construction Co., Lld.J/jlj 
wF -: -~ C1SHft0 a'J Building leasing 2,1 43 2,143 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Lld.i/illrt,j .::.-: 
- ·tk rmM/{t!/5 C'tfffpft0 ~ Building leasing 2,690 1,467 

Shanghai Sany Construction Co., 
Ltd. u1 -=: -~ r:ill;;J1:1rnrn ,iJ Building leasing 1,624 1,044 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. and 
tis subsidiaries,hi/fffli!l~tHiPft0 
.r]&Jl: f0,~ Building leasing 975 245 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., LtdJil.111 
=: ·ljl/J)J;fjpft0 if] Building leasing 327 

Sichuan Lumaite Engineering 
Equipment Co., Ltd .iJ!!J ll ll!}Jl!lttI 
f,1.W:ifu:fHft 0 E'J Building leasing 136 45 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd .ifti'ltU+l ffU [ 
flHJ,Uj-fi !lM 0 i/J Building leasing 73 17 

Hunan Sanfeng Technology Co., Ltd. 
J,1/j m _-:ilft.f4H: m~ 0 rrJ Building leasing 20 10 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., 
Lid.,::. - i&at <tlciffl l tHft0.,J Building leasing 5 

Hunan Sany Cloud Oil Energy Co., 
Lld .i,1/JwJ -::: - -~iilltitiLli1f Pft 0 J-J Building leasing 4 

Sany Intelligent Mining Technology 
Co., Ltd.::c::- rJlWifH.Hi~ 0 io'J Building leasing 4 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co., Ltd .i,1/J 
i¥i IJ!!i-111 l.R.W: ~I!Ji'i l•JfHIR 0 &J Building leasing 3 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., Lid. 
m1-H h iili ~ i!IHHrt 0 nj Building leasing 

Hunan Sany Body Co. , Ltd .i,\lj1¥f2 - · 
•lt~#pft 0 r.i] Building leasing 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries.:=. - iitiE~filff pft 0 E'J Equipment 
&JI; f0f.1 leasing 48,250 81 ,567 87,978 6,303 4,973 

Hunan Sany Intelligent Construction 
Engineering Co., Ltd .iq}jl¥J .=:: - -~!l: Equipment 
illi1t Cf.HHrt 0 ;;-J leasing 47 1,057 133 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Equipment 
Lld . .=::-#Jiifil1IfHft 0 dJ leasing 1,368 1,527 847 322 555 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

vi. Leasing with related parties as lessor (continued) 

Year ended 31 December 

Sany Kinetic Energy For Electricity 
New Energy Technology 
Development (Ezhou) Co., Ltd. 
-=-~ -diJJRg~•iWl'JiliEiW-lH.Hl M 
C ':J~i'M) fHtrn· c'] Equipment leasing 

Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd .. =: - -
ff fiEffllH 0irJ Equipment leasing 

Ludian Lithium Energy (Jianshui) 
Co., Lld.tl'.:lfffJE (il!7J< > 1i~li 
0 a] Equipment leasing 

Sany Lithium Energy (Chongqing) 
New Energy Co., Ltd. =-:- -i1J!fjE 
C!ltfl) ,Wi/iEiW-ff~i0 "' Equipment leasing 

Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd ._: -~ U-Hil:112:i'lHi~li 
0 rSf] Equipment leasing 

Sany Lithium Energy (Changsha) 
New Energy Co., Lid. =:: ·ill!.tiE 

C -&rY) ,WiREiJ,1iHHi 0 c'J Equipment leasing 
Sany Kinetic Energy For Electricity 

New Energy Technology 
Development (Zibo) Co., Lid. ~ 

·difJRE~'cli:,Wi fiEiW-1'4-r.HlM Ciill 
J:\1J) 1f~!H~ii'] Equipment leasing 

Sany Construction Technology 
(Miluo) Co., Ltd. =::_ - -~ [ ,H-t.:,\: 
< iEH!O fi llt,H~ ci Equipment leasing 

SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd. 
:C:: ·fillt/~tlHHi0"j Equipment leasing 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., 
Ltd.i~MF ~ · r,IJ:[ 1 :&:flrr.fillli!. 0 ~r] Equipment leasing 

Sany Intelligent Mining Technology 
Co., Ltd .:=:: -~lll'!NJ'HiPi 0 '-"l Equipment leasing 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., 
Lid.:=:: -Wh~flli{ f!lli0 °'l Equipment leasing 

Lianyungang Anxin Machinery 
Sales Co., Ltd.J.1\'Ei:!3':•i'..•nlt~iri 
ili.fHli!. 0 rrJ Equipment leasing 

Sany Environmental Industry Co., 
Ltd. =::_ ·f.;J:Ji:ffi~.fHi0irJ Equipment leasing 

Total 

192 

2022 2023 2024 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

39 

82 

416 

1,463 

125 100 

88 

4 
90,382 125,542 

656 

627 

100 

98 

81 

80 

25 

19 

132,078 

Four months ended 30 
April 

2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'000 

(Unaudited) 

23 

2 

19,249 

441 

596 

79 

79 

37 

18,903 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

vii. Leasing with related parties as lessee 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=.-~111 
lHlH;- irJ 49,239 75,459 78,052 27,170 26,006 

Sany {Chongqing) Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Ltd . .=.- ( ~ 
~ l ~~~ ffil'W~lH~ 'ifJ 45,778 59,312 60,428 20,112 18,722 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery 
Co., LtdJt:l¥-$ .=.-:m:~1Hi 
0'ifJ 18,941 20,497 23,707 7,751 7,383 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology 
Co., Ltd .i~#l!$.=.-Htt1H& 
0'ifJ 3,894 5,239 6,064 1,431 512 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang 
Technology Co., Ltd.iil/l]¥J.=.-
fflii1Jf4vzff~&0'ifl 1,426 5,704 5,704 1,901 2,650 

China Kangfu International 
Leasing Co. , Ltd.'P IITlmi~IITl 
~ f.ll. jt/NfilW~& 0 'ifl 3,292 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd. 
iilll mm -f& ;x 1/J JJ Mi 0 'ifJ 1,615 1,787 754 516 

Shanghai SANY Science and 
Technology Co., Ltd . ...t.i/i=.:-
f4ttW~i 0 'ifJ 593 550 502 253 198 

SANY Heavy Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=-- -:m:~~fffM i0'ifJ 273 275 344 2 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd.iil/li¥ii'JMflll 
tm~mHktHi0'ifJ 141 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd 
and its subsidiaries.=.-:£ffE 
/Nfu' ff ~i0'ifl &Jt-'f 01§'] 4,394 72 132 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd. iil/l i¥i ff£, 
ii~IH4tt1f~i0 1§'J 532 43 31 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery 
Co., Ltd .iil/JJ¥i.=.-m O~ffi\'tf 
~~0irl 111 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=.- ffE~~ffil' l H~0 1§'J 2 

Total 124,649 169,183 180,136 59,405 56,121 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

viii. Property transferred to related parties 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 A~ril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

SANY Group Co., Ltd. - - -~f;tlfi~IH~ "l 7,002 2,232 804 238 2,095 
Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd. -::_ -

um~f1Hi l!M0i1J 634 470 179 177 18 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental Technology 

Co., Ltd. iI ~ -::- -fiB'iJH.HH~0i'!J 399 20 
Sany Energy Equipment Co. , Ltd . ~ - ~EiEt-

~ffitM~0 ieiJ 366 80 5 5 5 
SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. -=: 

ifiH'Ht UHR 0 d] 353 809 9,929 8,564 6,875 
Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., Ltd.mi+lh 

li~~IIJHHR0 is'] 304 107 2 2 
Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd. =: -,ffl! 
~ M-'-1-U{HR 0 dJ 298 100 392 370 33 

Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. -=: - -
:f!lt.iVIdtMR 0 dJ 290 210 2 27 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., Ltd. ~ -.fi 
ifllfg};~#HHR0irl 201 3,589 55 55 23 

Hunan Aika Internet Technology Co., Ltd. i/vl 
wi ~ F _fil!M,.f-'-1-bHHR ~ JJ 89 6 6 2 

Hunan Xingbida Network Technology Co., 
Ltd. ilill Fil ff ,Jl, lfi~1 l!M, HU Mtrn ~1 83 38 604 122 46 

Sany Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd . .=-: -i11 

-~~#HH~0i/J 82 2,240 15 12 7 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd. '· - •Tl~ 

~{fi\'ffll&0"J 41 5,244 560 476 575 
Tangshan Chile Mechanical Equipment Co., 

udJ.tt liJ ~11'.t.Ht~:&iru Mi'! 0 eiJ 23 
Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding Industry Co., Ltd . 

IN 3<-!f. '£ ffcl~B l.'! lt1H!l0 iiJ 21 
Hunan Zhonghong Financial Leasing Co., 

Ltd. ilvl J¥J 'P ~ 1\1'.H"Hfl 1'l ff~R 0 ,,J 18 4 6 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 

subsidiaries ==: - iliJiltfill:fMfll& 0 J] &Jt.'.f 
0 ,r] 8 395 78 

Hunan Yimao Industrial Control Technology 
Co., Ltdi/vlwH',?l UH-'-l-tHHR0 "i 8 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property Service Co. , 
Ltd. ilill rWitJgj[(~!/PJ~~IHnMlrn ,;J 6 20 117 72 553 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting 
Technology Co., Ltd .hlw =:- .m!W-f-'-1-Hfl 
~frn• d] 6 108 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd jtJX 
1n -:: - -w:lnff~R0 n'J 3 6 25 52 

Sany Intelligent Mining Technology Co., Ltd. 
~~ - ~li!/li.flt.Hfl!M ~ "J 3 3 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. ir\.lll¥i 
~itw;(IJJJ:lt!.ft'f.·MR0 n'J 3 8 2 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd. i/vlrM -: - " tk rfri 
F.sf1 '.'i:iI ~1f ~trn isiJ 3 3 

Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co., Ltd. : =: -
ln~A~ifff Cffti ~ ) 1HR0 JJ 3 127 

Changsha Yunhui Real Estate Development 
Co. , Ltd. tU'.P:.SN /JHl!liif flllflifl!R0.rJ 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED CompanyililJ 
mA ijr~ii/r~ ~!! .i'Hl:0 <1J 748 340 301 12 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

viii. Property transferred to related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 
(Unaudited) 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology (Jiaxing) 
Co., Ltd.11JHHn.H-'-1-U OU!! ) 1mm JJ 76 205 192 

Sany Silicon Energy (Shuozhou) Co., Ltd . .::-. 
·li9fili C~Jl:/+I ) :ffllR0nj 86 157 2 

Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd. ?- - ll'l!_tiHill~ 
0 €i] 119 35 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang Technology Co., 
Ltd .i'4'lfti.::. - · :/i'J:firlf.H¼::ffµ~ 0 ilJ 65 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., Ltd.= 
- li9tie <t!ciffl ) Mlrn"i 271 49 42 32 

Sany Construction Technology (Miluo) Co., 
Ltd. '..:: - ~ T ,¥4Hi: CifUllD '!'Hlil0cf] 58 49 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology Co., Ltd .i.~JJII 
r1i - -- · f.Hi :f'i llR 0 iiJ 16 49 

Hunan Ground Unmanned Equipment 
Engineering Research Center Co., Ltd.i/i.ll 
1¥i1':i'±l!H!iifMA~ff/i T.f.a1Wf1LtJ:t,i:,,{HIE'HE 
0 ;;-1 40 

Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd. i/vl wi ' -·•tUHi 
~[,rn l'r] 23,335 36 3 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd. :: -~fie{i 
µ[i0,;J 837 34 33 3 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd . .:::-
~ H4-t.11ll1:15HHR 0 ri 4 29 3 3 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New Energy 
Co., Ltd.t!ciffl ..::. - li9flg-Wffiliifff.-{jll&0 €i] 27 4 

Changsha Yunqi Real Estate Development 
Co., Ltd. t~rYEM !)Hl!!i/e: l#-J :/iiMR 0 ,;J 24 

Loudi Zhushengyuan Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd. gJ!i£'ft lm"'11/JH-l!!P1[ 
IJ/.J~ fHf! 0 H] 16 2 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy Technology 
Co., Ltd ~iffl= - li9fiefilfi :fiµR 0 €i] 59 13 13 

Changsha Yuntian Real Estate Co., Ltd. N:i-'Y 
'ER.JJi ±-l!!lfil1illti 0 ,;J 3 2 

Chongqing Sany Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co , Ltd. •R~=:-itlW~~!lm:tRIHZ 
,(jµ[{0ri] 3 

Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co., Ltd.N:r.J; 
'1'.I~/'ii .ll!!.111itill&0 JJ 4 2 

Hunan Sany Intelligent Construction 
Engineering Co., Ltd.i/vlw,J ::.:: - -t ~!H!Ul!t I 
f H Hli0 ;a;-J 

Changsha Shufeng Enterprise Management 
Co., Ltd. #r.J;tM~JEl[n'~ til~0,;J 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction Supervision 
Consulting Co., Ltd.mlrl;ill!!#llil.lll:lti.~J?i 
J~JMf!0 Bj 3 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd 5/iJlrvJ:td-:: -: -~ If-4 
!HHR0 ""l 1,066 

Hunan Sany Construction Co., Ltd.i/iJl m ..::: -

~ -HHR0 riJ 3 
Total 10,248 42,385 14,046 10,692 10,397 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

ix. Property purchased from related parties 

Four months ended 30 
Year ended 31 December Aeril 

2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

(Unaudited) 
Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 

CompanyWli¥JA]fi~ illi:~ ~&:i't{f0-§'J 18,788 4,080 395 19 2 
Hunan Xingbida Network Technology 

Co., Ltd.¥tJli¥J ff &:,Ji~ Jffln.4tt~~&0'i¥J 13,765 160 135 99 4 
Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. 

~t*m =-.m:mM&0'i¥l 9,662 6,743 5,670 2,881 1,834 
SANY Group Co., Ltd.:C::-~lllff~&0'i¥J 5,136 137,588 22,006 19,081 31 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd .=-11: 

~~fm~~&0'i¥J 2,043 52 178 41 123 
Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd.Wli¥J=-.$:5t 

M&0'i¥J 569 20 
Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd .Wl 

WE- mP~ffii'M&0'i¥J 481 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 

subsidiaries=-llfl1':J12:ffi"~~& 0-§'J &X 
-'f0-§'J 458 439 21 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property Service 
Co., Ltd.Wli¥J'Yr/mil4m1UUJ}~~&0'i¥J 363 18 11 2 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd.¥tJli¥i=-'tR 
ffo.@{!"EI:il~ ~&0'i¥J 74 80 16 8 

Shenzhen Sany Cloud Oil Technology 
Co., Ltd. i3is:!Jll= - ~nl!Htt~~&0'i¥J 47 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., Ltd .= -
1:inl!tl'~~fl\\'~~&0-§'J 45 2,016 

Hunan Sany Electronic Control 
Technology Co., LtdWli¥J=-'eltl~Htt 
M&0i'i'l 29 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd.= 
- tt#r~fl\\'1r~U~'i¥J 21 20 3,962 5 1,845 

Hunan Zhonghong Financial Leasing Co. , 
Ltd.i/iJli¥i't'*~1iiiffi'Aff~&0'i¥J 16 15 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.;'tJl 
i¥i~'Yrim!J%:ltl!&lf~&0i'rl 12 905 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.= 
- i/it¥$11:IM&0i'rl 11 3,720 7,579 7,460 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd. 
=-mif4ttJ12:f1HH&0i'i'l 10 62 2 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting 
Technology Co., Ltd .1¥.w=-Jli{!\H4tt 
M&0i'rl 7 21 3 4 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(c) Transactions with related parties (continued) 

ix. Property purchased from related parties (continued) 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction Supervision 
Consulting Co., Ltd.i/illi¥i!!l!ifflil1.Ji:!ialll!,"l'f/iilJfill!,! 
0ci] 4 2 3 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd . .:::-111!~ AM 
!Hill!!0 o1 820 2,242 1,449 756 

Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co., Ltd. --: -l!l!~A 
*filj CrJ:li'l'i: l M!!0ul 367 291 288 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang Technology Co., Ltd.i,\llr# 
::=::-t'iJ'iH-H.Hfll!!0t/J 96 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Lid. 
ll,U'cff!H4tt <£o·!!l! ) 'tilb!0ul 61 1 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd. ": ·!iUHilllil0c1J 12 33 15 2 
Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 

~iJii .c=. - -f0 fJHHl'iff!lH~ 01 16 27 21 6 
Hunan Aika Internet Technology Co. , Ltd.i/ill rn~ -I< 

J.i!l!M-'f tt fill! 0 JJ 30 23 22 
Sany Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd . .C: -

Mf1mtt1i!fH}oJ 20 20 
Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent Equipment Co ., Ltd . .==. 

- < i!i /l' l ~.!Ht!liT-l'H!!~iiJ 17 
Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. : fj~~~flii{j 

!b!0o] 17 2 
Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd . .l:ifii:ttMl~Jt!! 

,o'/i{fllti0ci] 15 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Lid. :': -~fJHi!li10 ,,] 11 14 
Hunan Sany Construction Co., Ltd .i!Jl/¥i ::=:: ·Jif 1:{i 

1!!0 iiJ 10,330 7 
Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., Lid. 0 :: -fpl~e 

<¥-l<irt! l Mb!0,,J 19 6 6 25 
Sany Intelligent Mining Technology Co., Ltd. :: - '!l' 

li,Ul ttfill!!0 .ij 2,485 5 
Sany Silicon Energy (Shuozhou) Co., Ltd. _, -fpl fji?; 

c~Jlflil 1illf<0o1 2 4 
Zhuzhou Sany Zhushengyuan Property Service 

Co., Ltd. flfc ;+ii .::: - ttl!lilrll~ 'lt!~Uf:IHTll!,!0iiJ 2 
Shenzhen Trinity Technology Co., Ltd .iiJJII f]l --: -

HtHHli10•l 
Zhuhai Zhuxiang Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.J;lcivj 
~ -'X'E-!HHTPli! ~ ol 

Hunan Ground Unmanned Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., Ltd .ilvlrn1'1Ji!!.i!il~A~#ir r: 
fi!iJf1t. '1' ,c.--ull!!n ft 0ii'J 1,336 

Shanghai SANY Science and Technology Co. , Lid. 
J-.iliJ.C: -t4ttMb!0•l 990 

Sany Construction Technology (Miluo) Co., Ltd .:::: 
-m n4tt < ifHU {Tll!H} ,;J 223 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction Technology Co., 
ud.ilvl1¥i 'l< t:= -m n4tt-ffllf<0c1J 48 

Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., Ltd.tlt/-li h fliiill1~ 
Mli!0nl 24 

Changsha Three Silver Real Estate Development 
Co., Ltd. f¾r.J; ::.~JT;Jt!'.1'£fJIHH'Hli0oJ 8 

Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co., Lid. Ri'J;'J:;Ji;i/J, 
Jt!!Ji'.Hilifrn,~ 4 

Total 51,541 171 ,670 43,831 31,432 4,659 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: 

i. Prepayments and other receivables 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd. : -~ Cf4 
ttlll1:fiHTll&0 a1 1,529 

IMlhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering Machinery Co ., 
Ltd.iitfli:h.i·lrnil U'i1!111!JIHHli!0 riJ 36,502 34,622 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd ._:: -i/;ffl, ,f[ 

1:-M~0cJ 7,651 40,331 
Sany International (Hong Kong) Industry Co., Ltd . 

.=: -~~ ( i'i'/l!, ) 1!¼(-l'f ll!,l0<i] 360 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd.~ - ,f['\'i!!';i/Hf 

!li!0 aJ 2,811 684 
Sichuan Lumaite Engineering Equipment Co., Ltd . 

(/ljJ JI Jll!Jill~Lfil:&1/Hfllf,!0.;J 757 
Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd . .=: -m!~A.fil-

tiHHli!0°l 30,602 3,678 
Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co. , Ltd . -: -111!~,A_ 

~11/J (rffi'l(J { f!l-!0o] 6,639 320 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries . ..:: 

- ifr.~!Ettil-1T~0 aJ&J1; f0,iJ 74 708 
China Wealth Machinery Malaysia Co ., Ltd.'P"&fml 

-iiJJ!J.!l31<Jl!isHfll!,l0 °1 928 
SANY Group Co., Ltd. --= -:!IHl1Tll&0 oJ 32 ,462 753 
Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd .i/vl rw il'Hlcix!IWh-'l'Hl,l 

:t:uJ 12 593 
China Wealth Machinery Malaysia Co., Ltd .'P"W".lll: 

II/J.\!l 31< Jl!isHf!li!0 "1J 554 
Shengjing Intelligent Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. 

~ i;t!f~-~m~ O'&JIP ,fflltrn "J 1,505 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd .--= -- ffl!f/Hfll&0 o] 
Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd.i,UJ !ti , - ii!, 

U;zi:II/J,{f ll!J.0wJ 1,030 248 
Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., Ltd .t,i:i·H hh~i~~ 

'(Hli!0,;J 167 160 
Changsha Yuntian Real Estate Co., Ltd . UW1: Ji:rJi 

liM:1fll-rn nJ 
PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 98 
Sany Energy Equipment Co ., Ltd. -:: - litib;!~II/Jfi 

ll!10wJ 155 
Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED Company;,\IJ iw/ ( •f{ 

tlilHHlh'tf:I 0 fiJ 
Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd ._:: -ttlfi'~ 

/l,Hflll!0 •;J 213 55 
Huaxin Yongkang Insurance Sales Co., Ltd. lj\'&fr;)< 

IJ!t'R~i/Hlimli! 0 °J 58 
Hunan Xingbida Network Technology Co., Ltd.iN!m 

ff,JZ,J!miim-!4:r.Hfll-!0wJ 
Hunan Sany Cloud Oil Energy Co., Ltd .i/vl J¥J -: ~·E 

iil!~wrnll&0aJ 543 47 
Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding Industry Co., Ltd. ifll'l< ~\ 

·J;· ll'.-rns ft lW!rl 0 n1 23 23 
Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., Ltd . .=: -116® 

'W 11i-m ,n~r. ffli~ lit'r-1i1&0 a'J 
Sany Intelligent Equipment Co ., Ltd . _: -~~-~~ff,) 

mli!0o] 
Shanghai Sany Construction Co., Ltd. r.iliJ -:: - ~ c 

il!~,(fµf,!z~ UJ 
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2024 
RMB'OOO 

46,550 

34,622 

29,1 11 

14,752 

10,487 

4,859 

4,065 

3,654 

3,416 

928 
691 

624 

554 

486 
238 

197 

186 

127 
96 

79 

61 

55 

55 

49 

47 

23 

17 

16 

16 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

44,526 

34,633 

38,224 

14,012 

5,568 

6,479 

951 

3,654 

4,473 

842 

983 

497 
11 

196 

79 

56 

75 

83 

66 

47 

23 

18 

77 

3 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued} 

i. Prepayments and other receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

Zhuzhou Clover Environmental 
Development Co., ltd.r.l<i/tl ::=: i!i -1.tm.1.il: iJ: 
l!~!!IIH TPl'H~.;J 

China Wealth Saudi Machine Limited'r·w rJ; 
'l#lilllilHfll!i!0ifJ 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., Ltd.9-.~M 
im ~ fMHf.! 0 "l 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd jtJX 
nE :: - _•IH!HHtrn r.J 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading Co., Ltd. 
~fliifj-\,iJ:,l/.,fHHill!i!0"l 

Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate Co., Ltd. =: 
( filc il\! > \"ll\1Hli!0-.J 

Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent Manufacturing 
Co., Lld.~i}ti - : - f'l~~.i11ill1i!0JJ 

Changsha Dilian Industrial Control 
Technology Co., Ltd.&i'Yfwllllim4tHf 
111i!0aJ 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd .i/ill rl,<i -: -tier/ii 
!.sf.ESE I:~-ffli!!0"l 

Hunan Aika Internet Technology Co. , Lld.i<tll 
ri<i~ P[l!llfH,H ill1i!0 "1 

Hunan Zhonghong Financial Leasing Co., 
Lid ilillilii<r* iM!~i'll.JHHli!0 -.J 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., Ltd . ~w --: · ij/J jJ 
-f'.Hf.!0 .,J 

China Wealth Machine Holdings Limited q, 
·wv.tliixt-1/llt'/Hli!0 °J 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. and tis 
subsidiariesm!f.l li llllll'ltiHill!i!0,,J &J~ f 
01iJ 

Kunshan Zhongfa Asset Management Co., 
Lid. l~LIJ,j,f:,~,iTi·IT' .f!llMf.!0 .:.1 

Hunan Sany Intelligent Construction 
Engineering Co., Lld.i/illm" .=: ·¥/ !Hlti1i r. 
,f',l'/Ht.!0 Jj 

Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd . : • 
J;iJ.il:"'1ilHiPli!0.;-J 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting 
Technology Co. , Ltd.[l w -: ·l;l~HtHi 
ll!i!0o] 

Zhejiang Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd .il/riI-:: -~UH.Hi!f.!0 JJ 

RMB'0OO RMB'OOO RMB'000 

26 

6,416 

9 

157 

134 

199 

2 

6,970 

1,380 

29 

9 

17 

4,500 

117 

20 

9 

5 

5 

3 

10 

5 

4 

3 

2 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

163 

2 

20 

4,500 

6 

549 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

i. Prepayments and other receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Hunan Ground Unmanned 
Equipment Engineering Research 
Center Co., Ltd.ill/liW~':ltMiiAAA~ 
fffi'IfjlvfJti:p,l',,~~~j!l:{f0 i!fJ 6,018 

Jiangsu Sany Environmental 
Technology Co., Ltd.ITff=-J:i:lli 
f4tt~ M0i!f.l 4W 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.ill/l iW1ct:=::­
~ I f4ttM~0i'il 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Technology 
Co., Ltd .:=::- -il ll:S:f4tt~~~0i'il 

Sany Logistics Equipment America 
=-~im.?!H}~00~~~ 0 i!f.l 

Sany Technical Equipment Co., Ltd 
:=::-tt;;fc~~M ~0i'i.l 

Sany Mining Machinery Co., Ltd:=::­
liiffl~~~0i'i.l 

Tangshan Chile Machinery 
Equipment Co., Ltd~ w~l!!~;J:Jl~ 
ii~lf~~0i'fl 

Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co. , 
Ltd-lHYEij!,~Ht!!F ~~~0i'fl 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New 
Energy Co., Ltdt;l;i/tl.=- liH:S:WTll:S: 
~~~~0is'J 

Sany Construction Technology 
(Miluo) Co., Ltd.=:-~ I f-1.tt 0 8 
~ ) ~~~0is'J 

Total 

182 

21 

132,297 

200 

101 ,077 156,087 

As at 30April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

21 

3 

1,243 

75 

8 

2 

6 

4 

3,673 
165,853 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Palfinger Sany Crane CIS 217,486 150,717 410,263 297,680 
PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 119,876 178,994 377,352 402,731 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd . .=-j!l!fjg 

~ ~i0i'fl 227,330 208,839 
Sany Logistics Equipment USA Co., 

Ltd.C::- !lo/Jmt~fllf~~ ~ ~i0i'fl 212,927 206,666 287,655 
Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 

subsidiaries..=::-~ fjg/Nfil'~~i 0 i'fl& 
:Jet-f-0i'fl 37,753 114,417 94,735 57,642 

Sany Heavy Equipment Indonesia 
Holdings Co., Ltd . .=-En.!E£ll2~ft// 
~ ~i0i'fl 45,051 85,202 82,284 

SANY Heavy Equipment Co. , Ltd . .=-
£ ru ~ ft//Mi0 i'fl 89,408 52,846 70,712 71,026 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 
CompanyttJJi¥JA:$.lMJ:ir~~iJ{ ff 0 i'fl 4,098 13,545 69,498 91,159 

Turbo Fly Machine Engineering Limited 
ll:U~tt!Hm~ft//~ ~i0i'fl 33,046 70,321 66,241 69,870 

China Wealth Saudi Machine Limitedc:p 
"gyy~tt!Hii!G~~i 0i'fl 31,654 55,588 55,457 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd . 
.=:-;4H~~I~ ~i0i'fl 49,777 58,223 40,582 82,269 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd. 
ii.!li¥J.=-li!IJ~ft//~~i0i'fl 33,964 34,280 31,495 34,380 

China Wealth Hongkong Machine 
Limited't' 1i\''ffi:li!ttlt:ffll:~~i0i'fl 6,051 27,570 34,106 28,108 

Sichuan Lumaite Engineering 
Equipment Co., Ltd.ll!l )ll!Elt:@l~Ifi 
~ffu~~i0ii'J 58,687 39,553 27,505 24,930 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., Lid . .= 
- tl~Af.i.l-tHHi0i'fl 5,832 581 18,286 29,448 

Sany Intelligent Equipment Co., Lid . .= 
-~~~ft//~~i0i'fl 2 2,218 15,539 27,581 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

Gangyue Construction Engineering Co., Ltdt-/!~ 
Jtaif¥1H~0i§'J 

Tangshan Chite Mechanical Equipment Co. , Ltd. 
~w~m~mf!ilG~fi:ff~~0i§'J 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd . .=.-~~~~fi ff 
~~0 i§'J 

Lianyungang Anxin Machinery Sales Co., ltd.it 
~m*,e,,fj f!ilG~iHlf ff ~~0i§'J 

Hunan Ground Unmanned Equipment 
Engineering Research Center Co., Ltd.l'Mi¥i~' 
±tl!. ID~ A ~ fi I UHiJf tE q:i ,e,, ff~~ J\'. 1f 0 is] 

China Wealth Equipment Pte Ltd.q:ij'~fiff~~0 
j§'j 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=.- ~ ll! ff ~~0i§'J 
Hunan Lehui Sports Culture Communication Co., 

Ltd. liJJ ffi ~tiff ff ::X: fl f$ tiff ~~ 0 i§'J 
Sany Construction Development (Malaysia) 

Lim~d.=.- aI~• c•-~ 2) ff~0i§'J 
Sany Construction Industry Development Africa 

(PTY) Ltd.=-aI~.t'i C~~t}li) ff ~~ 0 ~ 
China Wealth Cambodia Machinery Co. , Ltd. q:i j' 

~*m* fif!ilG:ff ~~ 0ir1 
Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., Ltd .= - *s ffl 

$m~ tf]![$ii!i~fi1H~0i§'J 
Sany Indonesia Mining Equipment Co., Ltd.:::. -

E:PJe*w~ffflff~~ 0i§'J 
Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd.Wl ffi.=.-]![ :11:l-1H~0 

j§'j 

China Wealth Machinery Malaysia Co., Ltd.q:tj' 
fjf!ilG,~*fili2 ff ~~ 0 i§'J 
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As at 30 
As at 31 December April 

2022 2023 2024 2025 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

9,474 

34,594 

2,394 

87,829 

3,285 

861 
12,507 

4,749 

4,494 

2,663 

2,875 

10 

1,263 

11 ,992 14,535 16,594 

23,737 13,803 69,853 

3,686 13,862 11,167 

36,046 24,649 17,029 

5 

7,723 
13,467 

7,640 

9,391 

4,570 

3,395 

3,249 

1,072 

2,117 

11,404 

15,745 
10,807 

10,245 

9,603 

4,638 

4,252 

3,877 

3,869 

3,467 

3,132 

19 

28,922 
1,855 

11,101 

27,564 

4,714 

4,345 

3,713 

8,341 

8,417 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

{d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) 
Co., Ltd.=-li:$7fi~ Ct,!i:~J·ID lH& 
0i'¥J 34 341 2,838 4,809 

Sany Silicon Energy (Shuozhou) 
Co., Ltd.-=.-li:$7fl~ < 1JIHI) if~& 
0i'¥J 13 1,542 1,089 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd.i'Mwsiff~,ji 
~~ll-ttfl ~& 0 i'ij 889 1,106 1,483 683 

Zhuhai SANY Port Machinery Co., 
Ltd Ji~-=-- t,l D tiUifl ~& 0 fr] 1,402 1,485 1,467 1,562 

Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.-=.-- ~If4tt.llQ:f5fif~& 
0i'¥J 1,520 916 2,088 463 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading 
Co., Ltd.nV+lrlr £L:l'lijf £::tf~& 
0i'¥J 208 15 1,322 9,802 

Hunan Sany Intelligent 
Construction Engineering Co., 
Ltd. i'tJl wJ -=-- ~ intmI t£ fl~& 
0i'¥J 53 1,007 226 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd.~ 
i¥J m 1:& ;xJJJ jJ fl ~II 0 i'¥J 124 3,793 838 3,237 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd.WliW 
-=. - #!: im @1i :t: I~ fl~& 0 i'ij 1,432 37 660 64 

Sany Construction Technology 
(Miluo) Co., Ltd.-=.-~IHtt 
OB~) lH&0i'ij 66 1,098 602 2,056 

Sany Construction (Chongqing) 
Technology Co., Ltd.-=. - ~.I 

< !t~) f4ttfl~&0i'¥J 19 14 535 
Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., 

Ltd.#i::J+/jJJlt~~fl~[l[0i'¥J 35 436 296 160 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

{d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Sany Construction Engineering 
(Xi'an) Technology Co., Ltd . .=. -
~I < ®~) f4Nfl~lH~~ 125 85 280 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=. - 1i nil~:~ ~-@fl~~ 0 'iiJ 5,692 1,142 940 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=. -NWI~fmfl~& 0 ~ 991 27 206 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. 
and tis subsidiariesfiHIBDitJNfil 
fl~& 0 'iiJ l>Utf-0 ~ 101 55 162 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd . .=. 
- tt~gfl~l0'ii1 1 79 147 

China Wealth Machine Holdings 
Limitedq:t~~~~JNfl~&0'iiJ 14,229 1,168 141 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New 
Energy Co., Ltd.~mi.= - 1i:>7~gf;fr 
~gvJfl~l 0-a'J 8 141 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd.ftt)l flJl·lffl 
If.1Hi~fl~&0'ii1 105,748 17,102 696 

Sany Environmental Industry Co. , 
Ltd . .=.-Ji:l:ii1Ulfl~&0~ 34 59 99 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd.1itHWt'.r§II~~ 
~IUJtfl~l0'iiJ 83 269 94 

Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding Industry 
Co., Ltd.®~¥1!:tfill~Bil~fl~l 
0-a'J 71 71 
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As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

4 

114 

183 

214 

110 

7,232 

33,583 

22,139 

929 

88 

71 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy 
Technology Co., Ltd .timi.=.-.fi'.>' 
titli#r::ff~&0ir1 705 64 10 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.i'Ml¥i~1=.=. 
-mINtt::ff ~i 0 irJ 84 287 50 76 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co., Ltd. 
iM l¥i ~j,ffi ~N:~3:1 ~§~fl~& 0 ii'J 52 145 48 15 

Sany Intelligent Mining Technology 
Co., Ltd . .=.-~liU4tt::ff~&0irJ 347 5 46 24 

Huachu Petrochemical 
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.¥~:P1t 
c~ :iio lH&0irJ 45 464 

Hunan Anren Sany Heavy Steel 
Structure Co., Ltd.iMwJ~C.=.-
iUt! ~ ffl ::ff~& 0 irJ 45 

Sany International (Zambia) 
Industrial Co. , Ltd ==-il~ (raj 

t:t:§) ~~::ff~&0ii'J 29 29 
Guangzhou Huayao Real Estate 

Co., Ltd./Ji1+1¥JtM!Bt::ff~i0~ 13 28 6 
Changsha Yuntian Real Estate 

Co., Ltd. ftrY~~/%±!E.J"i::ff~&0 
if] 25 18 

Zhejiang Sany Construction 
Technology Co. , Ltd.itli'IT.=. - m 
It4tt::ff~&0irJ 126 10 224 39 

Zhuzhou Sany Smart Industry and 
Trade Co., Ltd .t',f;~HI :::: - ~ ~I 
~1f~&0i§'] 24 2 

Jiangsu Sany Environmental 
Technology Co., Ltd.ITff == -Ji 
:tJU4tt::ff ~i 0 i§'] 635 18 18 25 

Sany Robot (Changsha) Co., Ltd . 
.=.-tiff.A ( ftf.Y) fl~i0ii'J 18 1 

Zhuzhou Sany Zhushengyuan 
Property Service Co., Ltd.tii1ii .=. 
- tt Im Ii #JJUH!::ff ~& 0 i§'] 14 13 17 16 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'00O RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Hunan Zizhuyuan Real Estate Co., 
Ltd .i'lvlffl"~1tm!mttl!lifl~i0~ 116 211 14 18 

Yaowu (Shenzhen) Technology 
Co., Ltd.JU)} 03i~±JI[) f4ttfl~i0 
~ 31 14 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology Co. , 
Ltd .i*±Jllr\J .=. - f4ttfl~i0~ 5 6 13 12 

Hunan Sany Construction Co., Ltd . 
Wlffl"-=.- ~Ifl~i0~ 138 99 12 13 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology 
(Jiaxing) Co. , Ltd.~:lll~J,U4tt 
Cl!~) 1Hi0~ 37 11 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co. , 
Ltd jt:Jjl"r\J .=.-!l!~ff~~ 0~ 271 9 3,400 

Kunshan Sany Environment 
Protecting Technology Co., Ltd.~ 
w -=--~~Httfl~i0~ 87 35 8 3 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Technology 
Co., Ltd.=-w.tiM4ttfl~i0~ 4 8 

Changsha Yunhui Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd. ft¥Y¾l1il% 
±tl!Ji(mgff~i0~ 21 8 3 

Sany (Zhuhai) Investment Co. , Ltd. 
= - < fti'ij) :t9: ~ fl ~i 0 ~ 5 1 7 4 

Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., Ltd. ml 
m -=-iffl iur llx fn' fl ~i 0 ~ 4 4 4 

Jiangsu Sany Construction Co. , Ltd. 
ffff -=.-~Ifl~i 0~ 4 

Chongqing Zhushengyuan Real 
Estate Development Co., Ltd . .m 
lf1timooim:1:tl!1Irm gfl~i 0~ 4 33 3 1 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(e) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co., 
Ltd. ft i"J; ¾:® ffiHlBiHHtH~ lrJ 

Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate Co., Ltd . 
.=:: - c l')ii;;4i}: ) .'iJnHi 0 i§'J 

Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent 
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.~lY'IE:::­
tl' '.!:#. ~:ur 1H~ 0 i§'J 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., Ltd. !Wow 
.::::-JJJjJ1f~i0i§'J 

Sany Robot Equipment (Xi 'an) Co. , 
Ltd . .=.-tt!lff.A.~fm C il!i~) 1f~i 
0i§'J 

Sany (Quanzhou) Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd . .=.- ( ~ 
J+I) ~IlHx1f~~0 i§'J 

Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Ltd . .=:- ( £~) 

ti' ¥,~ flii' 1f ~~ 0 ft] 
Changsha Yunqi Real Estate 

Development Co., Ltd. ft¥Y¾.!lltm 
±{!iii: r,~B}1f~~ 0 EJ 

Changsha Three Silver Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd.fti"J; = j!Yl/Jj 
:f:{!\,ii:r,ijg1f~i0fil 

Sany Construction (Quanzhou) 
Building Materials Co., Ltd . .=.- -~ 
I OiU+I) ~;t,J1f~i0fil 

Hunan Sany Intelligent Industry 
Private Equity Fund Enterprise 
(Limited Partnership)#i!Jm .=.-"& 
~ii: )Ul~JN:ttUd1t-1~Jt ( 1f ~~ it 
~) 

Sany Handan Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.=-tJUfl~ 
Il4tt1f~i0fil 

RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 

12 

48 

35 

564 

2,223 

21 

7,000 

12 

207 

10 

2 

2 

120 

47 

39 

7,000 

32 

3 

2 

2 

As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

3 

2 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(f) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

ii. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

MGB SANY(M) IBS SON BHD 12 
SANY MINING Equipment Co., 

Ltd.= - ~tlH!f ~f¾ 0 ifJ 2 
Sany Construction Malaysia 

Limited=-~Ifi.B*®§if~f¾ 
0ifJ 9,592 

Beijing Xinhaoji Construction 
Machinery Co., Ltd~t ffi"f!~;l[ 
Ifi ffl~if~f¾0ifJ 7,529 

China Wealth Machinery 
Malaysia Co. , Ltd.9 'ffi~fifi.B 
*®§if~[¾ 0 ifJ 532 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., 
Ltd. 7,.IIU;1" ii ~~.&if ~f¾ 0 ifJ 383 

Hunan Zhonghong Financial 
Leasing Co., Ltd .i'MWIT 9 *itt~ 
fJH'l if ~f¾ 0 ifJ 12 

Sany Construction Engineering 
(Linli) Technology Co., Ltd.= 
-~I C~iU H ttlH f¾0ifJ 5 

Xi'an Zhushengyuan Real Estate 
Co. , Ltd® 3( TJ Im Iii m J:il!fi if ~f¾ 
0ifJ 4 

Hunan Aika Internet Technology 
Co., Ltd.i'Mffi~~ Ji~Httif 
~f¾0ifJ 2 

Shanghai Sany Construction 
Co., Ltd.J:;4!¥=-mr~ ~lf 
~[¾ 0ifJ 

Total 985,621 1,199,251 1,997,453 
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As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'OOO 

654 

2 
2,158,360 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iii. Trade and bills payables 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 
Company¥rl!li¥ii"'\J:li~i!fl~iJltff0 
qj 75,395 245,639 562,504 518,109 
SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd. 
= - :1:JJVJ flfl ~i 0 EJ 332,489 372,781 527,247 380,454 
Sany Heavy Equipment 
International Holdings Co., Ltd . .=. 
-]!~~~~Jlxfl~i0EJ 541,906 475,956 449,422 401 ,597 
Changsha Dilian Industrial Control 
Technology Co., Ltd.fti1'.M ir~ I ~ 
t4ttfl~~0EJ 181 ,175 220,034 786,767 219,719 
SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., 
Ltd. =-;4i'J~:i:Ifl~~0'§'J 401 ,965 1,068,626 307,229 325,386 
Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd.¥rl!lWi.=. 
-J:li~fl~i 0'§'J 306 18,996 271,411 122,488 
Sany Logistics Equipment USA 
Co., Ltd.=.-~mt:~fl~ilfl~i 0EJ - 249,166 279,301 
Sany International (Hong Kong) 
Industry Co., Ltd .=-~~ ( W t-i ) 

fH HHi 0EJ 11,431 194,812 320,484 
Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading 
Co., Ltd.~;l-l·lm$'ii i:lh ~$'ifl~i 0 
qj 156,411 128,174 148,107 45,174 
Hangzhou Lilong Hydraulic Co., 
Ltd.#L1+ItJn~l!fl~i0EJ 14,778 29,938 83,945 100,983 
Huachu Petrochemical 
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.¥wF61-t 
( 1'i3!0 fl~i0EJ 34,288 47,036 62,380 32,971 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd.i'M 
Wi ~ f& ;xf}J jJ fl ~lH~ EJ 39,744 16,928 50,398 85,345 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd . .=.-
i!figfl~~0 EJ 46,164 183,148 
Sany Heavy Equipment Indonesia 
Holdings Co., Ltd.=-EpJBi!lru~ 
118fl~~0'§'J 21,065 39,151 67,337 
Sany Intelligent Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=.-ti~~tmfl~~ 0 EJ 26,659 27,699 13,476 
Sany Construction Technology 
(Miluo) Co. , Ltd . .=. - -~If.ttt C iB 
ff) fl ~i0'§'J 11 27,206 53,042 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iii. Trade and bills payables (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Kunshan Sany Power Co., Ltd.~ 
w = - iJJjJ1f~lH~ifJ 18 8,332 18,001 13,656 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd.i'i\Jl 
WJ.= - '~lm r.!}11-"!::I~ff ~i0 
if] 624 34,628 13,301 17,171 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) 
Co., Ltd . .= - liS"fi~ ( :f.$1i; tfli) 1f 
~i0ifJ 1,520 6,682 6,601 

Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment 
Co., Ltd . .=-~Elffl$~Wf.l!I! 
,Rl~fiff~i 0ifJ 2,720 8,083 6,603 33,838 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd.l'MWJ*f= 
-=- ~If4tt1f~i0ifJ 20 748 6,186 16,928 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., 
Ltd . .=:- :ttU!Af4tt1f~i0ifJ 995 176 5,835 18,050 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. 
and tis subsidiariesHHlHDl!lx 
B 1f ~i 0 ifJ liz. ~-=f 0 ifJ 2,728 4,816 5,439 8,599 

PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 19,994 3,574 2,595 2,014 
Sany Environmental Industry 

Co., Ltd . .=- !i:li:if~ff~i0 
if] 155 1,609 741 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=-fi~v!~ fttt1f~i0 ifJ 2 64 1,537 1,447 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

{d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iii. Trade and bills payables (continued) 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 2024 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology 
(Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.~~~~;f;j. 
:ti (3JV 1Hi0fiJ 

Xi'an Hualei Shipbuilding 
Industry Co., Ltd.®*¥ffi"im~EI 
ff ~ff ~i 0 fiJ 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy 
New Energy Co., Ltd.tPJH.=. -
10 ~~!Ir~~ ¥1H-ff ~i 0 fiJ 

Sany Technology Equipment 
Co., Ltd . .=.-:tit#~f.mff~i0 
ft] 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery 
Co., Ltd.Wli'W.=.-m:D~f.mff 
~i0fiJ 

Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) 
Co., Ltd. = -:ijJU~ .A~f.m c ® 
*) ff~i'!0fiJ 

Hunan Ground Unmanned 
Equipment Engineering 
Research Center Co., Ltd .Wli'W 
i'±ttfiii Ma.A~f.m If¥Wf JE 'fl ,e,, 
ff ~ltlHf 0 fiJ 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd.Wli'Wff 1'.'., 
ii~imn4:ttff ~i 0 fiJ 

Lianyungang Anxin Machinery 
Sales Co., Ltd.;\l~t,!*,e,,~~ 
j~~ ff~i'! 0ft] 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

1,539 1,030 

916 988 

107 

5,139 79 

26,485 2,231 74 

247 36 33 

567 39 12 

43 5 

5 10 2 
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As at 30 April 
2025 

RMB'000 

162 

988 

200 

41 

2,413 

33 

2 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iii. Trade and bills payables (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Tangshan Chite Mechanical 
Equipment Co., Ltd.Jlf w,t!l!f.f 
1ui~fffl1f ~i 0 '§'J 1 1 14 

Sany Construction Engineering 
(Linli) Technology Co., Ltd.= 
- ~I Cl2fo1t) f-%t1f~i0jcij 1,949 3,137 

Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd . .= - ~If4tt/Nf5t1f 
~i0jcij 4,605 2,400 4,579 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=-~11 
1f~i0jcij 102,631 1,192 

Jiangsu Sany Environmental 
Technology Co., Ltd.IT~.=-
~±iHttlHi 0 jcij 127 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd. fttiifLHlll! 
I~tl~1f~~ 0jcij 32 42 3,522 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co., 
Ltd.¥MPW ~mnt~IHU§~ff~i 
0 '§'J 38 38 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and 
its subsidiaries.:::-:l:riE!N:f5t1f 
~i0jcijR~r0jcij 4,437 56 

Palfinger Sany Crane CIS 482 
Shenzhen Sany Cloud Oil 

Technology Co., LtdJ*:J;JI[=-
*nilf4tt1f~i 0jcij 234 

Sany Intelligent Mining 
Technology Co., Ltd.-=: ~-f4tt1f~~0jcij 166 

Hunan Sany Cloud Oil Energy 
Co., Ltd.i'/iJl PW.:::-*imfiEv]l1f 
~~0jcij 65 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=-:Pnb~:i:~ffi1f~~0i§'J 26 

Total 1,952,666 2,757,122 3,903,727 3,280,069 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iv. Other payables and accruals 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=:-~1111f~~0'ii'J 278,185 537,102 309,401 300,963 
China Wealth Asia Machine Limited. 't' ~ 

C§.i'Jtl ) tt!itiil<1H&0ii'J 275,000 138,550 
Liang Wengen and other natural person 

~~tlHJE:J~A 74,300 74,300 74,300 74,300 
Sany Technology Equipment Co., Ltd . .=: 

-ttm~fl\r1f~~0ii'J 105 48,793 47,856 35,497 
Sany Robot Equipment (Xi'an) Co., Ltd . 

.=:-tt!!~A~fl\r (i!.§3i:l 1H&0ii'J 94,518 70,487 33,420 32,778 
Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd . .=:-

tt!i~Af4tt1'J~~0ii'J 27,359 24,631 17,357 17,041 
Jiangsu Sany Construction Co., Ltd. ¥Ii\< 

.=:-mI 1f~&0ii'J 8,281 8,056 14,376 4,320 
Jiangsu Sany Environmental 

Technology Co., Ltd. ffi\<.=:-J:i l:U4 
tt1'J~&0ii'J 27,668 18,421 11 ,170 11 ,657 

Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED 
Companyl'itlli¥iAllK~~1f~[:i'if£0-§'J 10,265 10,351 12,328 

Shihezi Mingzhao Equity Investment 
Management Co., Ltd. :fi"i"iiJ'fiii ~Jl ~1tfili: 
tl:f9:~~JJ11lH&0ii'J 9,199 9,848 9,335 6,143 

Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd . 
.=:-mif4ttJNffi-1H&0i'fl 2,049 8,220 15,458 

Sany Heavy Energy Co ., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries.=:-Jt/JtJ!l1:f5i'-1f~&0ii'J & 
:J!f;'f0-§'J 59,896 39,569 6,528 19,762 

Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent Equipment 
Co., Ltd . .=:- ~ji:)J!) !&'.tf.~fl\r1'J~[0 
ii'] 5,294 5,480 5,481 5,102 

Palfinger Sany Crane CIS 4,966 428 
Sany Lithium Energy Co., Ltd . .=:-i!UE 

M&0i'fl 4,753 4,173 
Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd. and tis 

subsidiariesWt&1i.l!llll1:IB-1f~~0'ii'J :&. 
:J!f;'f0i'fJ 6,048 1,888 4,365 2,355 

Shengjing Intelligent Technology 
(Jiaxing) Co. , Ltd.lll'f~ ~~Htt ( ~ 
~) 1f~&0 i'fJ 3,446 2,410 2,426 

China Wealth Machine Holdings Limited 
't'~tt!itiil<~fili:t-H&0i'fJ 4,154 4,266 4,288 2,240 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property Service 
Co., Ltd i\l/l i¥i'Yrlm~4m :AUIU.n1'J~&0i'fJ 424 1,096 1,561 1,080 

Changsha Dilian Industrial Control 
Technology Co ., Ltd.~rJ/ 'iil'imI~f-4 
tt1f~[0i'fJ 446 18 1,695 1,244 

Hunan Anren Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd. l'41li¥i3i:C.=:-m 
If4tt1'J~&0i'fJ 758 880 1,130 1,014 

Beijing Sany Architectural Design and 
Research Co., Ltdjt:lJl:.=:-~m~~t 
Wf1r.M[0i'fJ 1,109 1,114 1,114 1,114 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iv. Other payables and accruals (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Hunan Sany Building Co., Ltd.i',\/lm.C::-
-~jffl/afi:-"EI~tfµi0'a'J 1,835 1,486 1,099 1,099 

Hunan Lehui Sports Culture 
Communication Co., Ltd.il\Jlm~IUf 
ffJtit-f.iffitf~i0'§'J 1,002 1,002 1,002 1,002 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., Ltd.~lli: 
~.:1"'1E~~tf~i0'a'J 35 1,011 344 

Sany Environmental Industry Co., Ltd . .= 
- fi:ll'1E~1f~i0'§'J 739 38 

Hunan Xingbida Network Technology 
Co., Ltd.i'tJlmfr£,:ii~'1:f4tttf µi 0'§'1 171 710 960 

SANY Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd . .C:: - ;I 
!JHltffii'tf~i0'a'J 676 651 649 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial Trading Co., 
Ltd. f;!!:1-Mrn ~Lil,~ ~tfµi 0'§'1 2,679 1,434 643 996 

Sany Construction Technology (Miluo) 
Co., Ltd . .=- mIHtt ( ¥8~ l 1fµi0 
'§'] 609 35 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., Ltd . .=- liE 
~ ~ffii'MU~'ifJ 556 549 555 

Kunshan Zhongfa Asset Management 
Co., Ltd. EE:w 't'~~'1E'l§l'JIMi0'ifJ 529 531 529 529 

Zhejiang Sany Construction Technology 
Co., Ltd.#JrIT.=-mitttt1Hi0'§'J 249 506 20 

Huachu Petrochemical (Guangdong) 
Co., Ltd.¥~1=11.t CIJl!J!O 1Hi0'ifJ 124 476 239 

Sany Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd . .= - Mo 
litMi0'a'J 443 556 

Yuandong Construction Investment 
Group CO.,Ltd of Beijing~r.}Jl:~l!iU[ 
l!ru!:t9:l1i:~1111f~i 0iil 400 400 

Loudi Zhushengyuan Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd.:Jl!i£11~m!m:lt!l 
'1E ml RM&0'a'J 397 

Sany Intelligent Mining Technology Co., 
Ltd . .C::- ~lilf4tt1Hi0·is'J 1,114 330 330 330 

Hunan Xingxiang Construction 
Supervision Consulting Co., Ltd .il\Jli¥i 
JU!!! ~Ji~:fl!!!i~M& 0 irJ 149 75 324 375 

China Wealth Saudi Machine Limited't' 
~ rJ>¥-i'tl1iixtfµ&0'a'J 260 304 310 310 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New 
Energy Co. , Ltd.~;1fl.C::-f01iE~liE~ 
1f~&0'a'J 87 310 100 

Tangshan Chile Mechanical Equipment 
Co., Ltd.Jl!f w .~1!!¥.ftl:jjjiZBJ1:ffij'tf~i0'a'J 166 114 313 

China Wealth Hongkong Machine 
Limitedi:p'ii'; :ffi:t-ti:11:jjjlZtf~i0irl 32 39 419 61 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry Co., Ltd . 
.=:-i/i~;II 1fµ&0ii'J 2,235 296 391 

214 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iv. Other payables and accruals ( continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 

Turbo Fly Machine Engineering 
Limited)lt~ijJUiil1~fflF~-~lt 0 ~ 228 5 

Changsha Yunhui Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd. -EHb~ti' ~ 
M!ifr,f]~Mlt0~ 158 

Changsha Yunjing Real Estate Co., 
Ltd. ft1'Y¾f.ll!m:lt!!iiff~ 0~ 148 148 

Sun Li Heng Machinery Co., Ltd . 
(Hong Kong) fJr5fiJ'tlHJIUiil1ff~lt0irJ 
('ffi:if:) 42,117 42,723 132 43,752 

Hunan Ground Unmanned 
Equipment Engineering Research 
Center Co., Ltd .i\llli¥i1li':lt!!lffiM.A* 
ffi'nliliJf;E 'P ,!'..,ff~U''iB:0~ 387 119 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd.!EtilfL:l+lffEI 
;jijffllfiil1ff~lt0~ 190 90 104 90 

Hunan Sany Body Co., Ltd .i'i\Jli¥i::C::-
]'j!~ff~lt0i51 100 

Hunan Sany Construction Co., Ltd.Wl 
i¥i::C::-~Iff~i0~ 1,514 498 97 95 

Changsha Yuntian Real Estate Co., 
Ltd . ft1'Y¾7Cm:lt!!iiff~i 0~ 76 

Zhushengyuan Real Estate Co. , Ltd . 
..tilit'rWf~±t!!iiMi0i51 75 75 75 75 

Sany (Zhuhai) Real Estate Co., Ltd. 
:::::- ( ~i/i ) .21.~ff~i0~ 63 

Chongqing Sany Zhushengyuan 
Property Service Co., Ltd.£ll\<::C::-
rr Wf !ffl ~~mu}} tr ~i ~ i51 38 60 19 

Hunan Zhongfa Intelligent Equipment 
Co., Ltd WJW.fcp ~~~*fffiff~i0 
~ 2 6 59 

Hangzhou Serval Technology Co., 
Ltd.m1+1fi~liH4ttff~i0~ 10 5 23 8 

PT SANY MAKMUR PERKASAPT 
SANY MAKMUR PERKASA 21 

China Kangfu International Leasing 
Co., Ltd.'t'~~1J~~f.§.~/l5!:f1Hf 
~0~ 17 15,832 17 

Beijing Sany Public Welfare 
Foundation~t;¥,::C::-0M~jjt-@' 16 16 16 

China Wealth (Huayue) Limited 't'M 
¥~ml~ff~i0~ 11 11 11 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

iv. Other payables and accruals (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'000 

Cuiyun Gonggong (Shanghai) Technology 
co., Ltd.~~;1:ta < J:.mn Htt1f~rrn-~ 6 9 

Hubei Sany Truck Sales and Service Co., 
Lld.l\tll~t.= - '"F]fri~i:!f~lil.r}}1f~l[0~ 9 9 9 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd.l\tll1¥ii1H&l3.: 
ll!!JjJ1f~i0~ 4 

Sany Oil Smart Equipment Co., Ltd . .=-::& 
~~~i&f/ti1f~lH;-~ 2 2 2 2 

Sany Palfinger SPV Equipment Co., Ltd . .= 
- iJ{lffisi/s~tHI$4ii!ii&flti1f~i0i'iJ 2 2 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd jt 
*ilE-£ttltf'f~i0~ 1,536 2 153 

Hunan Aika Internet Technology Co., Ltd. 
Wl1¥i~'"F1ilH4ttW~&0~ 20 

Sichuan Lumaite Engineering Equipment 
Co., Ltd. lillJl l~~~I ffil~fiW~i0~ 

Hunan Sanyin Commercial Management 
Co., Ltd.l\tllJ¥i.=jlfim~~:!11f~l[0~ 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology Co., Ltd.i*#II 
ilE- f4ttW~&~~ 61 37 

Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting 
Technology Co., Ltd./iw.=:-I:lHif4tt 
M&0i'iJ 39 

Chongqing Zhushengyuan Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd.£ Jft'r!mlffl9Ht!!.ii 
i,flflHH&0i'iJ 3 

Beijing Xinhaoji Construction Machinery 
Co., Ltd~t*~ ~ ¥If¥ttlt:!JixMi0~ 387 

Shenzhen Sany Cloud Oil Technology Co., 
Ltd.i*#ll.=:- -~imf4ttlHi0i'iJ 72 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., Ltd.i"tJl1¥i 
.=:-iil: D~f/ti1f~IH~~ 12 

Palfinger Sany Crane CISPalfinger Sany 
Crane CIS 9 

Sany Intelligent Equipment Co. , Ltd . .=-ti 
~i&fltilHi0i'iJ 179 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co. , Ltd . .= 
- li9~t <~;>}ID W~i0~ 77 2 

Shanghai Sany Construction Co., Ltd.J:.ilit 
.=:- ~I~~lH&0~ 37 

Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., Ltd.i"tJl1¥i.=#§jl,! 
fffil!:f5:i'M&0~ 4 

Zhuzhou Sany Intelligent Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd.~~i·l .=-ti~~~M&0~ 406 

Hunan Sanfeng Technology Co., Ltd.ill!l1¥i 
-=~f4ttW~i0i'iJ 65 

Shanghai SANY Science and Technology 
Co., Ltd.J:.ilit.=-f4ttW~&0i'iJ 146 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang Technology Co. , 
Ltd. ill!l1¥i.=-ffltilJHttW~& 0i'iJ 722 

Total 931 ,831 926,772 726,332 605,202 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

V. Contract liabilities 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'00O RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

China Wealth Machine Holdings 
Limited9'1'i"~~~Jl9:if~i0'§'J 15,332 15,584 15,758 17,901 

Sany Energy Equipment Co., 
Ltd.-=.-FJ~~~ffflif~Jl0'§'J 4,273 4,227 4,267 4,818 

Turbo Fly Machine Engineering 
LimitedJlUl~~~~ffflif~i0'§'J 1,750 503 

China Wealth Hongkong 
Machine Limited9'1'i°Wm~~ 
if~~0'§'J 244 297 1,036 

SANY Marine Heavy Industry 
Co., Ltd.-=.-~#:i:Iif~i0 
'§'] 51 893 1,028 

Changsha Dilian Industrial 
Control Technology Co., Ltd. 
~rJ;\% lffi;I ~f4Nif ~i 0 iiJ 3,433 141 617 500 

Jiulong Property Insurance Co., 
Ltd.~li:~;1-@rnU~if ~i 0'§'J 266 468 1 

Hunan Zhongfa Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Ltd.i'/iJliW9'1~ 
~~~ffflif~i0'§'J 18 44 458 570 

PT SANY MAKMUR 
PERKASAPT SANY 
MAKMUR PERKASA 163 176 

China Kangfu International 
Leasing Co., Ltd.9'1il~'i"il~ 
fil. tt B5i:1511f ~i 0 i"fJ 127 127 127 144 

Tangshan Chite Mechanical 
Equipment Co., Ltd.J!w,,m~ 
~~~ffii'if~i0'§'J 216 878 126 182 

Wuhan Jiuzhoulong Engineering 
Machinery Co., Ltd.~~JU+ln 
I f¥~~1'f~i0'§'J 109 2,049 

China Wealth (Huayue) Limited 
9'1 'i° ·~~~if ~i 0 '§'J 82 82 82 93 

Cuiyun Gonggong (Shanghai) 
Technology Co., Ltd.1;5:~tt~I 
CJ::.~> f4Nif~i0'§'J 44 69 78 

Guangzhou Ygp Industrial 
Trading Co., Ltd.JiUHm ~Ii:11 
~ ~ 1'f~i0'§'J 242 67 164 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd. 
iJJ W1 m * /jZ jjJ n 1'f ~i 0 '§'J 27 31 

Hunan Xingbida Network 
Technology Co., Ltd.¥1i!JWJ-ff&, 
~AA3'1lf4Nif ~i 0 '§'J 15 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

V. Contract liabilities (continued) 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery Co., 
Ltd.:1t:JlOn.=-.Mtlff~0i'rJ 15 16 

Hunan Sanyin Commercial 
Management Co., Ltd.i,\!Jm.=i!!Jfli 
~l'l'~ff~!!0i'rJ 4 4 27 

Loudi Zhushengyuan Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd.,!!~1t/f/Jlffl 
mJ:t!t~ ml !HH!! 0 i'rJ 

Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd . 
.=:-mt~Af-lti1H!!0iiJ 13 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and its 
subsidiaries.=: -1l lle/ll1:{1tff~!!0i'rJ 
liUtr0i'rJ 6,086 38 

Sany Technology Equipment Co., 
Ltd . .=.- :Ji#i~ffiilH!!0ii1 805 813 

SANY Group Co., Ltd . .=.- ~i111H!! 
0i'rJ 297 297 

Zhuzhou Sany Silicon Energy New 
Energy Co., Ltd. t,lc#t!.=.-WllEifi lle 
~ff~[i!~i'ij 127 

Zhejiang Sany Construction 
Technology Co., Ltd. WiIT.=. - ~I 
f-l!iff~!!0i'rJ 75 

Palfinger Sany Crane CISPalfinger 
Sany Crane CIS 68 1,409 

Kunshan Zhongfa Asset 
Management Co., Ltd. ~t.lJ q:r~Hl 
ii:l'l'~ff~i0i'rJ 18 

Changsha Yunhui Real Estate 
Development Co., Ltd. ~¥'.V¾W ffer 
Mii:~~M!!0i'rJ 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd.i,\!Jm1t/f/Jli4PJ:'!UI¾ 
r£1f~i0fil 

Sany Intelligent Equipment Co .. Ltd. 
-=- - tl' t!U~ffii ff~i0i'rJ 1,375 

Sany Silicon Energy (Zhuzhou) Co., 
Ltd . .=.-W llE < t,!c i-JH > ff~i0i'rJ 596 

Shanghai Sany Construction Co., 
Ltd . .l.#iJ.=.- ~I},t~ff~i0i'rJ 283 

Hunan SANY Port Machinery Co., 
ltd. i,\!Jm.=.-/ilJ~ffi\'ff~i0i'rJ 55 

Hunan Sanxiang Bank Co., Ltd . i,\!Jm 
.=#§j[i!ffJll1:fn'-ff~i 0i'rJ 33 

Rootcloud Technology Co., Ltd . and 
tis subsidiariesiiHtnr.imJll1:iB-ff~i 
0i'fJ&;!sf;.r0i'rJ 2 

Total 27,266 29,379 26,053 29,742 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued) 

vi. Lease liabilities 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

SANY Group Co., Ltd. -=. - ~!ffl 
~~lH~i'ij 57,473 239,155 215,913 312,747 

Beijing Sany Heavy Machinery 
Co., Ltd.~l:;}¥,riE::.-:mJI~~& 
0i'ij 117,450 103,748 91,528 85,546 

China Kangfu International 
Leasing Co., Ltd.i:f=t~~~~~ 
filJ1 JN,f#~~& 0 i'ij 12,802 14,980 

Shenzhen Trinity Technology 
Co., Ltd J*:!Jilm-=.-Htt~~R 
0iiJ 11,075 4,148 

Sany (Chongqing) Intelligent 
Equipment Co., Ltd .-=.- Clli 
1') ti~ ~#HH&0iiJ 116,576 139,465 2,973 228,967 

Sany Heavy Energy Co., Ltd and 
its subsidiaries == - ]t~~.@:{1Hf 
~&0iiJ &~-f-0i'ij 1,265 1,120 

Hunan DEUTZ Power Co., Ltd. 
¥tJJffi:ijiit<~JJJJ'J1f~R 0i'ij 512 3,779 

SANY Heavy Equipment Co., 
Ltd. -=. - _m: J,tU~ ffii'lHR 0 iiJ 74 195 146 

Hunan Zhushengyuan Property 
Service Co., Ltd.i\l"Jlffit'r /mll!fm 
tt~H)}1f~R0i'ij 138 55 

Hunan Sany Jingchuang 
Technology Co., Ltd.i\l"Jlffi -=.-
ffUJ,Jf4tt ~ ~R 0 iiJ 22,856 

Total 291,499 482,442 336,401 674, 344 

All above outstanding balances with related parties are in trade nature. 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(e) Commitments with related parties 

To promote the sales of the Group's construction machinery equipment and meet customer 
demands, the Group has established finance lease sales cooperation with Kangfu and 
Hunan Zhonghong. The Group has entered into bank-enterprise cooperation agreements 
for finance lease with Kangfu, Hunan Zhonghong, and relevant financial institutions. 
Pursuant to the agreements, Kangfu and Hunan Zhonghong provide finance lease services 
to the Group's end customers, transferring their receivables from finance leases to financial 
institutions. Should the lessees fail to make rental payments according to agreed terms 
during the repayment period, the Group is obligated to guarantee the related leased assets 
under the cooperation agreements to the financial institutions. As of 31 December 2022, 
2023, and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the outstanding balance of such guarantee obligations 
undertaken by the Group amounted to RMB3,861 million, RMB2,601 million, RMB408 
million, andRMB421 million, respectively. 

The Group has entered into trade receivables factoring arrangements with certain financial 
institutions and transferred specific non-current portion of trade receivables to them. As of 
31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the carrying amount of the 
unexpired non-current portion of trade receivables under these arrangements totalled 
RMB289 million, RMB116 million, RMB26 million, and Nil, respectively, with guarantee 
responsibilities assumed by the Company's parent company, Sany Group Co., ltd. 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance and SANY Financial Leasing cooperate 
with Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, or its 
distributors to provide financial leasing and mortgage services to their customers. 
According to the cooperation agreement, Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings 
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries committed to assume guarantee for the lessee or borrower. 
As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the balance of the guarantee 
was RMB1, 177 million, RMB3,433 million , RMB2,436 million, and RMB2,560million. 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance Co., Ltd. cooperate with Sany 
Construction Technology Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, or its distributors to provide 
financial leasing and mortgage services to their customers. According to the cooperation 
agreement, Sany Construction Technology Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries committed to 
assume guarantee for the lessee or borrower. As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 
2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the balance of the guarantee was nil, RMB363 million, RMB220 
million, and RMB170 million, respectively . 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance and SANY Financial Leasing cooperate 
with Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED Company, or its distributors to provide financial 
leasing and mortgage services to their customers. According to the cooperation 
agreement, Hunan AUTOMOBILE-LIMITED Company committed to assume guarantee for 
the lessee or borrower. As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the 
balance of the guarantee was nil, RMB583 million, RMB1 ,458 million, and RMB2,772 
million, respectively. 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance and SANY Financial Leasing cooperate 
with Sany Environmental Industry Co. , Ltd., or its distributors to provide financial leasing 
and mortgage services to their customers. According to the cooperation agreement, Sany 
Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. committed to assume guarantee for the lessee or 
borrower. As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the balance of the 
guarantee was nil, RMB3 million, RMB16 million, and RMB23 million, respectively . 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

(e) Commitments with related parties (continued) 

(f) 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance cooperate with Kunshan Sany 
Environment Protecting Technology Co., Ltd. or its distributors to provide financial leasing 
and mortgage services to their customers. According to the cooperation agreement, 
Kunshan Sany Environment Protecting Technology Co., Ltd. committed to assume 
guarantee for the lessee or borrower. As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 
April 2025, the balance of the guarantee was nil, RMB16 million,RMB11 million, and 
RMB11 million respectively. 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance cooperate with Sany Palfinger SPV 
Equipment Co., Ltd. or its distributors to provide financial leasing and mortgage services 
to their customers. According to the cooperation agreement, Sany Palfinger SPV 
Equipment Co., Ltd. committed to assume guarantee for the lessee or borrower. As of 31 
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the balance of the guarantee was nil, 
RMB0.3 million, RMB0.2 million, and RMB2 million, respectively. 

The subsidiaries of the Group, SANY Auto Finance and SANY Financial Leasing cooperate 
with Sany Robotics Technology Co., Ltd. or its distributors to provide financial leasing and 
mortgage services to their customers. According to the cooperation agreement, Sany 
Robotics Technology Co., Ltd. committed to assume guarantee for the lessee or borrower. 
As of 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the balance of the guarantee 
was nil, nil ,RMB141 million, and RMB328 million, respectively. 

The balance of the related guarantee will gradually be released as the end customers, 
lessee or borrower make the payment and will not be fully released before listing. 

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: 

Year ended 31 December four months ended 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 
(Unaudited) 

Short term 
employee 
benefits 103,254 43,194 50,243 16,358 17,661 

Equity-settled 
share-based 
payments 11,990 5,272 9,434 2,344 1,836 

Total 115,244 48,466 59,677 18,702 19,497 

Further details of directors' and the supervisors' emoluments are included in note 8 to the 
Financial statements. 

(g) Monetary funds deposited with related parties: 

Hunan Sanxiang Bank 
Co., Ltd. Yil"Jfi¥i = #gj~ 
ff JNtHHEH~ ifJ 

As at 31 December 
2022 2023 ------

RMB'000 RMB'000 

5,163,994 5,508,557 
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As at 30 April 
2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

3,512,915 2,596,327 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at the end of each of 
the Relevant Periods were as follows: 

As at 31 December 2022 

Financial assets 

Financial assets at FVPL Financial assets at FVOCI 
Designated Mandatorily Financial 

as such designated as assets at 
upon initial such Debt Equity amortised 
recognition investments investments cost Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Financial assets 
at FVOCI 294,478 1,332,642 1,627,120 

Financial assets 
at FVPL 11,437,989 3,718,901 15,156,890 

Derivative 
financial 
instruments 374,301 374,301 

Trade and bills 
receivables - 31 ,841,409 31 ,841,409 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables 
and other 
assets 6,527,817 6,527,817 

Loans and 
advances - 11,156,920 11,156,920 

Receivables 
under finance 
lease - 12,083,256 12,083,256 

Restricted 
deposits 962,954 962,954 

Time deposits 
with original 
maturity of 
more than 
three months 7,880,313 7,880,313 

Cash and cash 
equivalents - 12,695,771 12,695,771 

Total 11,437,989 4,093,202 294,478 1,332,642 83,148,440 100,306,751 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2022 

Financial liabilities 

Financial 
liabilities at fair 
value through 

erofit or loss 

Held for trading 
RMB'OOO 

Derivative financial instruments 241 ,152 
Trade and bills payables 
Financial liabilities included in other payables 

and accruals 
Placements from banks 
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Other non-current liabilities 

Total 241,152 
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Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

241 ,152 
28,906,687 28,906,687 

7,686,291 7,686,291 
6,523,735 6,523,735 

33,973,007 33,973,007 
461 ,786 461,786 

1,473 1,473 

77,552,979 77,794,131 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2023 

Financial assets 

Financial assets at FVPL Financial assets at FVOCI 
Designated 

as such Mandatorily 
upon initial designated as Debt Equity 
recognition such investments investments 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Financial assets 
at FVOCI 365,819 970,897 

Financial assets 
at FVPL 9,272,040 1,887,809 

Derivative 
financial 
instruments 334,063 

Trade and bills 
receivables -

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables 
and other 
assets 

Loans and 
advances 

Receivables 
under finance 
lease -

Restricted 
deposits 

Time deposits 
with original 
maturity of 
more than 
three months 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Total 9,272,040 2,221 ,872 365,819 970,897 
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Financial 
assets at 

amortised 
cost Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

1,336,716 

11,159,849 

334,063 

29,423,901 29,423,901 

7,931,668 7,931,668 

6,779,361 6,779,361 

16,032,1 27 16,032,127 

704,117 704,117 

9,529,137 9,529,137 

8,141 ,859 8,141 ,859 

78,542,170 91,372,798 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2023 

Financial liabilities 

Derivative financial instruments 
Trade and bills payables 
Financial liabilities included in other 

payables and accruals 
Placements from banks 
Interest-bearing bank and other 

borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Other non-current liabilities 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
at fair value 

through profit or 
loss 

Held for trading 
RMB'000 

237,420 

Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 

RMB'000 

22,692,726 

6,902,169 
5,435,397 

31,025,839 
803,679 

15,415 

237,420 66,875,225 
============ 
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Total 
RMB'000 

237,420 
22,692,726 

6,902,169 
5,435,397 

31,025,839 
803,679 

15,415 

67,112,645 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

Financial assets 

Financial assets at FVPL Financial assets at FVOCI 
Designated Financial 

as such Mandatorily assets at 
upon initial designated Debt Equity amortised 
recognition as such investments investments cost Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Financial assets 
at FVOCI 456,501 608,455 1,064,956 

Financial assets 
at FVPL 9,150,818 2,196,635 11,347,453 

Derivative 
financial 
instruments 375,720 375,720 

Trade and bills 
receivables - 31,256,847 31,256,847 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables 
and other 
assets 8,301,171 8,301,171 

Loans and 
advances 3,301,948 3,301,948 

Receivables 
under finance 
lease - 16,429,658 16,429,658 

Restricted 
deposits 689,488 689,488 

Time deposits 
with original 
maturity of 
more than 
three months 8,566,529 8,566,529 

Cash and cash 
equivalents - 11,576,469 11,576,469 

Total 9,150,818 2,572,355 456,501 608,455 80,122,110 92,910,239 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CA TE GORY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
at fair value 

through profit or 
loss 

Financial liabilities 
Held for trading at amortised cost Total 

RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Derivative financial 
instruments 106,762 106,762 

Trade and bills payables 28,654,359 28,654,359 
Financial liabilities included 

in other payables and 
accruals 6,081,631 6,081 ,631 

Placements from banks 3,507,970 3,507,970 
Interest-bearing bank and 

other borrowings 24,910,931 24,910,931 
Lease liabilities 757,567 757,567 
Other non-current liabilities 477 477 

Total 106,762 63,912,935 64,019,697 
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 

Financial assets 

Financial assets at FVPL Financial assets at FVOCI 
Designated Financial 

as such Mandatorily assets at 
upon initial designated Debt Equity amortised 
recognition as such investments investments cost Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Financial assets 
at FVOCI 470,046 608,455 1,078,501 

Financial assets 
at FVPL 6,788 ,535 5,056,334 11,844,869 

Derivative 
financial 
instruments 225,481 225,481 

Trade and bills 
receivables - 33,984,627 33,984,627 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables 
and other 
assets 8,006,325 8,006,325 

Loans and 
advances 2,573,702 2,573,702 

Receivables 
under finance 
lease - 16,321,664 16,321,664 

Restricted 
deposits 649,235 649,235 

Time deposits 
with original 
maturity of 
more than 
three months - 12,005,332 12,005,332 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 7,839,768 7,839,768 

Total 6,788,535 5,281 ,815 470,046 608,455 81 ,380,653 94,529,504 
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 

Financial liabilities 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

Trade and bills payables 
Financial liabilities 

included in other 
payables and 
accruals 

Placements from banks 
Interest-bearing bank 

and other borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Other non-current 

liabilities 

Total 

Financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit 

or loss 

Held for trading 
RMB'OOO 

394,220 

394,220 

Transfers of financial assets 

Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 

RMB'OOO 

32,183,153 

5,391,953 
3,526,266 

20,159,903 
1,071,717 

225,773 

62,558,765 

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety 

Total 
RMB'OOO 

394,220 
32,183,153 

5,391,953 
3,526,266 

20,159,903 
1,071,717 

225,773 

62,952,985 

At 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, ,and 30 April 2025 the Group endorsed certain bills 
receivables (the "Endorsed Bills") with a carrying amount of RMB302,547,000, 
RMB117,575,000 and RMB229,204,000,and RMB146,826,630, respectively, to certain of its 
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the "Endorsement"); the 
Group discounted certain bills receivable (the "Discounted Bills") with a carrying amount of 
RMB136,474,000, RMB5,033,000 and RMB5,789,000,and RMB9,255,320, respectively. In the 
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include 
default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills and Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it continued 
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables 
settled, and the Discounted Bills and the associated interest-bearing loans settled. Subsequent 
to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, 
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. 
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 

Transfers of financial assets (continued) 

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a long-term receivables factoring 
arrangement and transferred certain trade receivables and loan and advances to a financial 
institutions. Pursuant to the arrangement, the Group may be required to repay the payment if 
any trade debtors delay payment. The Group retain substantially all risks and rewards of the 
ownership of financial assets, and not derecognised the financial assets. Subsequent to the 
transfer, the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the trade receivables and loan and 
advances, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables and loan and advances 
to any other third parties. The carrying amount of the trade receivables transferred under the 
arrangement that have not been settled as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 
2025 was RMB202,607,000, RMB1,157,667,000 and RMB2,170,412,000,and 
RMB1,936,259,000 respectively. The carrying amount of the loan and advances transferred 
under the arrangement that have not been settled as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 ,and 
30 April 2025 was RMB nil, RMB nil and RMB218,441,000 and RMB393,042,000 respectively. 

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety 
At 31 December 2022 , 2023 and 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, the Group endorsed certain bills 
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the 
trade payables due to such suppliers and certain unmatured discounted bills receivables (the 
"Derecognised Bills") with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB1 ,306,696,000, 
RMB524,300,000 and RMB883,339,000,and RMB1 ,013,036,000, respectively. The 
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to twelve months at the end of each of the Relevant 
Periods. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the 
Derecognised Bills may exercise the right of recourse against any, several or all of the persons 
liable for the Derecognised Bills, including the Group, in disregard of the order of precedence 
(the "Continuing Involvement"). In the opinion of the directors, the risk of the Group being 
claimed by the holders of the Derecognised Bills is remote in the absence of a default of the 
accepted banks. The Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the 
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the 
Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the 
Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to 
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the 
directors, the fair values of the Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are 
not significant. 

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group did not recognise any gain or 
loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from 
the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been 
made evenly throughout the year. During the year ended 31 December 2024 ,and 30 April 2025, 
the Group has recognised a loss of RMB2,826,000 and RMB1 ,307,000 on the date of transfer 
of the Derecognised Bills. 
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51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments are as follows: 

As at 31 December 2022 

Financial assets 
Financial assets at FVPL 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Derivative financial instruments 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

As at 31 December 2023 

Financial assets 
Financial assets at FVPL 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Derivative financial instruments 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

As at 31 December 2024 

Financial assets 
Financial assets at FVPL 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Derivative financial instruments 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

231 

Carrying amounts 
RMB'000 

15,156,890 
1,627,120 

374,301 

17,158,311 

241,152 

Carrying amounts 
RMB'O00 

11 ,159,849 
1,336,716 

334,063 

12,830,628 

237,420 

Carrying amounts 
RMB'000 

11,347,453 
1,064,956 

375,720 

12,788,129 

106,762 

Fair values 
RMB'000 

15,156,890 
1,627,120 

374,301 

17,158,311 

241,152 

Fair values 
RMB'000 

11 ,159,849 
1,336,716 

334,063 

12,830,628 

237,420 

Fair values 
RMB'000 

11,347,453 
1,064,956 

375,720 

12,788,129 

106,762 



Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 

Financial assets 
Financial assets at FVPL 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Derivative financial instruments 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

Carrying amounts 
RMB'000 

11,844,869 
1,078,501 

225,481 

13,148,851 

394,220 

Fair values 
RMB'000 

11,844,869 
1,078,501 

225,481 

13,148,851 

394,220 

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills 
receivables, loans and advances, receivables under finance lease, financial assets included in 
other receivables, restricted deposits, time deposits with original maturity of more than three 
months, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and bills payables, placements from 
banks and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to their 
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

The Group's finance team headed by the chief finance controller/his or her designator is 
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of 
financial instruments. The finance team reports directly to the head of finance. At each reporting 
date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and 
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation . The valuation is reviewed and approved 
by the head of finance. 
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51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the 
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the 
fair values: 

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables, loans and advances, receivables 
under finance lease, and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated by 
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with 
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the 
Group's own non-performance risk as at the end of the Relevant Periods were assessed to be 
insignificant. 

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market prices. The fair values 
of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions that are 
not supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to 
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, 
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before 
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation ("EV/EBITDA") multiple and price to earnings 
("P/E") multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing 
the enterprise value of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple 
is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between the 
comparable companies based on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted 
multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to 
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the 
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and 
the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are 
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the Relevant Periods. 

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth management products 
issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted 
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates 
of instruments with similar terms and risks. 

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally 
financial institutions with AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including forward 
currency contracts, interest rate swaps and futures contracts, are measured using valuation 
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations. The 
models incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit quality of 
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying 
amounts of forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and futures contracts are the same 
as their fair values. 

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, management has estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible 
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model. 
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51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instruments 
as at the end of the Relevant Periods: 

Significant 
Equity Valuation unobservabl Sensitivity relationship to unobservable input to 

investments technique e input Range fair value 

Should the discount for lack of marketability be 
increased/decreased by 3%, the fair value of 

Discount for unlisted equity investments would be 
31 December Valuation lack of 20% to decreased/increased by approximately 

2022 multiples marketability 30% RMB11,843,000. 
Should the Control premium be 

increased/decreased by 2%, the fair value of 
unlisted equity investments would be 

Control decreased/increased by approximately 
premium 10% RMB?,895,000. 

Should the discount for lack of marketability be 
increased/decreased by 3%, the fair value of 

Discount for unlisted equity investments would be 
31 December Valuation lack of 20% to decreased/increased by approximately 

2023 multiples marketability 30% RMB9,457,000. 
Should the Control premium be 

increased/decreased by 2%, the fair value of 
unlisted equity investments would be 

Control decreased/increased by approximately 
premium 10% RMB6,305,000. 

Should the discount for lack of marketability be 
increased/decreased by 3%, the fair value of 

Discount for unlisted equity investments would be 
31 December Valuation lack of 20% to decreased/increased by approximately 

2024 multiples marketability 25% RMB24,547,000. 

Should the discount for lack of marketability be 
increased/decreased by 3%, the fair value of 

Discount for unlisted equity investments would be 
Valuation lack of 20% to decreased/increased by approximately 

30 April 2025 multiples marketability 25% RMB29,195,000. 
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51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Fair value hierarchy 

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial 
instruments. 

Assets measured at fair value 

As at 31 December 2022 

Financial assets at 
FVPL 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

Total 

As at 31 December 2023 

Financial assets at 
FVPL 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 

Derivative financial 
instruments 

Total 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets (Level 
1) 

RMB'000 

10,122,717 

400,974 

10,523,691 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets (Level 
1) 

RMB'000 

8,286,110 

313,961 

8,600,071 

Fair value measurement using 

Significant 
observable 

inputs (Level 2) 
RMB'000 

4,693,885 

294,478 

374,301 

5,362,664 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (Level 3) 
RMB'000 

340,288 

931,668 

1,271,956 

Fair value measurement using 

Significant 
observable 

inputs (Level 2) 
RMB'000 

2,562,826 

365,819 

334,063 

3,262,708 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (Level 3) 
RMB'000 

310,913 

656,936 

967,849 
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Total 
RMB'000 

15,156,890 

1,627,120 

374,301 

17,158,311 

Total 
RMB'000 

11,159,849 

1,336,716 

334,063 

12,830,628 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

Assets measured at fair value (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Financial assets at 
FVPL 9,592,118 1,470,284 285,051 11,347,453 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 456,501 608,455 1,064,956 

Derivative financial 
instruments 375,720 375,720 

Total 9,592,118 2,302,505 893,506 12,788,129 

As at 30 April 2025 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 

Financial assets at 
FVPL 7,316,699 4,250,833 277,337 11,844,869 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 470,046 608,455 1,078,501 

Derivative financial 
instruments 225,481 225,481 

7,316,699 4,946,360 885,792 13,148,851 
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Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

Assets measured at fair value ( continued) 

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the Relevant Periods are as 
follows: 

Equity investments at 
FVPL 

At beginning of 
year/period 

Total gains/(losses) 
recognised in profit 
or loss 

Purchases 
Disposals 

At end of year/period 

Equity investments at 
FVOCI 

At beginning of 
year/period 

Total gains/(losses) 
recognised in other 
comprehensive 
income 

Purchases 
Disposals 

At end of year/period 

As at 31 December As at 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

388,449 340,288 310,913 285,051 

(13,341) (45,096) (38,944) (7,714) 
4,958 27,487 16,101 

--~(_39~,7_7_8) __ ~(_11~,7_6_6) __ ___,_(3~,0_1_9) _ ___ _ 

340,288 310,913 285,051 277,337 

934,884 931,668 656,936 608,455 

(327,772) (47,203) 
2,467 55,000 

__ ___,_(5~,6_8_3) ___ ~(1~,9_6_0) ___ ~(1~,2_7_8) ____ _ 

931 ,668 656,936 608,455 608,455 
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51. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

Liabilities measured at fair value 

As at 31 December 2022 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Derivative financial 
instruments 241,152 241,152 

As at 31 December 2023 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Derivative financial 
instruments 237,420 237,420 

As at 31 December 2024 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Derivative financial 
instruments 106,762 106,762 

As at 30 April 2025 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices 

in active Significant Significant 
markets (Level observable unobservable 

1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Derivative financial 
instruments 394,220 394,220 

During the Relevant Periods, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial liabilities. 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing 
bank and other borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI, time deposits with original 
maturity of more than three months and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these 
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other 
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly 
from its operations. 

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally interest rate swaps, 
forward currency contracts and futures contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate 
and currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance. 

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign 
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's 
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.3 to the financial statements. 

Interest rate risk 

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Group's long term debt obligations with a floating interest rate. 

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. 
The Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified 
intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by 
reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for 
variable rate bank borrowings at the end of the Relevant Periods, assuming that the amounts 
of liabilities outstanding at the end of the Relevant Periods were outstanding for the whole year. 
A 100-basis-point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to 
key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably 
possible change in interest rates. 

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held 
constant, the Group's profit after tax for the years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 
and the four months ended 30 April 2025 would have decreased/increased by 
RMB156,822,000, RMB177,340,000 and RM8107, 140,000, and RMB94,212,535, respectively; 
the Group's total equity would have decreased/increased by RMB156,141,000, 
RMB172,097,000 and RM8103,639,000, and RMB91 ,020,545 respectively. This is mainly 
attributable to the Group's exposure to variable interest rates on its bank loans. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales or 
purchases by operating units and investing and financing activities by investment holding units 
in currencies other than the units' functional currencies. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of each of the Relevant Periods to a 
reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, 
of the Group's profit after tax and equity. 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 

Increase/ Increase Increase 
{decrease) in foreign /{decrease) in /{decrease) in 

currency rate profit after tax shareholder's equity 
% RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 31 December 2022 

If the RMB strengthens against the AUD 5 {4,018) {4,018) 
If the RMB weakens against the AUD (5) 4,018 4,018 
If the RMB strengthens against the BRL 5 4,199 4,199 
If the RMB weakens against the BRL (5) (4,199) (4,199) 
If the RMB strengthens against the RUB 5 {5,927) (5,927) 
If the RMB weakens against the RUB (5) 5,927 5,927 
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 9,744 9,744 
If the RMB weakens against the HKD (5) {9,744) (9,744) 
If the RMB strengthens against the USD 5 (46,750) (46,750) 
If the RMB weakens against the USD (5) 46,750 46,750 
If the RMB strengthens against the ZAR 5 5,788 5,788 
If the RMB weakens against the ZAR (5) (5,788) (5,788) 
If the RMB strengthens against the NGN 5 (3,330) {3,330) 
If the RMB weakens against the NGN (5) 3,330 3,330 
If the RMB strengthens against the EUR 5 48,102 48,102 
If the RMB weakens against the EUR (5) (48,102) (48,102) 
If the RMB strengthens against the JPY 5 (2,138) (2,138) 
If the RMB weakens against the JPY (5) 2,138 2,138 
If the RMB strengthens against the THB 5 (4,224) (4,224) 
If the RMB weakens against the THB (5) 4,224 4,224 
If the RMB strengthens against the SGD 5 (6,109) (6,109) 
If the RMB weakens against the SGD (5) 6,109 6,109 
If the RMB strengthens against the INR 5 (87,866) (87,866) 
If the RMB weakens against the INR (5) 87,866 87,866 
If the RMB strengthens against the IDR 5 (134,320) (134,320) 
If the RMB weakens against the IDR (5) 134,320 134,320 
If the RMB strengthens against the CAD 5 (4,522) (4,522) 
If the RMB weakens against the CAD (5) 4,522 4,522 
If the RMB strengthens against the MYR 5 (9,684) (9,684) 
If the RMB weakens against the MYR (5) 9,684 9,684 
If the RMB strengthens against the GBP 5 (7,553) (7,553) 
If the RMB weakens against the GBP (5) 7,553 7,553 
If the RMB strengthens against the COP 5 (884) (884) 
If the RMB weakens against the COP (5) 884 884 
If the RMB strengthens against the SAR 5 (25,962) (25,962) 
If the RMB weakens against the SAR (5) 25,962 25,962 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 

Increase/ Increase Increase 
(decrease) in foreign /(decrease) in /(decrease) in 

currency rate profit after tax shareholder's equity 
% RMB'000 RMB'000 

As at 31 December 2023 

If the RMB strengthens against the AED 5 (1,778) {1,778) 
If the RMB weakens against the AED (5) 1,778 1,778 
If the RMB strengthens against the AOA 5 (416) (416) 
If the RMB weakens against the AOA (5) 416 416 
If the RMB strengthens against the AUD 5 (5,877) (5,877) 
If the RMB weakens against the AUD (5) 5,877 5,877 
If the RMB strengthens against the BRL 5 21,312 21,312 
If the RMB weakens against the BRL (5) (21,312) (21,312) 
If the RMB strengthens against the RUB 5 (1 ,158) (1,158) 
If the RMB weakens against the RUB (5) 1,158 1,158 
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 9,306 9,306 
If the RMB weakens against the HKD (5) (9,306) (9,306) 
If the RMB strengthens against the USD 5 171 ,855 171 ,855 
If the RMB weakens against the USD (5) (171 ,855) (171 ,855) 
If the RMB strengthens against the ZAR 5 10,922 10,922 
If the RMB weakens against the ZAR (5) (10,922) (10,922) 
If the RMB strengthens against the NGN 5 (690) (690) 
If the RMB weakens against the NGN (5) 690 690 
If the RMB strengthens against the EUR 5 78,323 78,323 
If the RMB weakens against the EUR (5) (78,323) (78,323) 
If the RMB strengthens against the JPY 5 (2,593) (2,593) 
If the RMB weakens against the JPY (5) 2,593 2,593 
If the RMB strengthens against the THB 5 (2,159) (2,159) 
If the RMB weakens against the THB (5) 2,159 2,159 
If the RMB strengthens against the SGD 5 (12,290) (12,290) 
If the RMB weakens against the SGD (5) 12,290 12,290 
If the RMB strengthens against the INR 5 (61 ,226) (61,226) 
If the RMB weakens against the INR (5) 61,226 61,226 
If the RMB strengthens against the IDR 5 (119,245) (119,245) 
If the RMB weakens against the IDR (5) 119,245 119,245 
If the RMB strengthens against the CAD 5 (3,273) (3,273) 
If the RMB weakens against the CAD (5) 3,273 3,273 
If the RMB strengthens against the MYR 5 (7,580) (7,580) 
If the RMB weakens against the MYR (5) 7,580 7,580 
If the RMB strengthens against the GBP 5 (2,593) (2,593) 
If the RMB weakens against the GBP (5) 2,593 2,593 
If the RMB strengthens against the COP 5 (773) (773) 
If the RMB weakens against the COP (5) 773 773 
If the RMB strengthens against the SAR 5 (60,089) (60,089) 
If the RMB weakens against the SAR (5) 60,089 60,089 
If the RMB strengthens against the MXN 5 (251) (251) 
If the RMB weakens against the MXN (5) 251 251 
If the RMB strengthens against the GNF 5 (242) (242) 
If the RMB weakens against the GNF (5) 242 242 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 

Increase 
Increase/ Increase /(decrease) in 

(decrease) in foreign /(decrease) in shareholder's 
currency rate profit after tax equity 

% RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

As at 31 December 2024 

If the RMB strengthens against the AED 5 (56,125) (56,125) 
If the RMB weakens against the AED (5) 56,125 56,125 
If the RMB strengthens against the AUD 5 9,296 9,296 
If the RMB weakens against the AUD (5) (9,296) (9,296) 
If the RMB strengthens against the BRL 5 23,946 23,946 
If the RMB weakens against the BRL (5) (23,946) (23,946) 
If the RMB strengthens against the RUB 5 (2,880) (2,880) 
If the RMB weakens against the RUB (5) 2,880 2,880 
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 12,391 12,391 
If the RMB weakens against the HKD (5) (12,391) (12,391) 
If the RMB strengthens against the USO 5 (531,340) (531 ,340) 
If the RMB weakens against the USO (5) 531,340 531,340 
If the RMB strengthens against the ZAR 5 6,834 6,834 
If the RMB weakens against the ZAR (5) (6,834) (6,834) 
If the RMB strengthens against the EUR 5 32,881 32,881 
If the RMB weakens against the EUR (5) (32,881) (32,881) 
If the RMB strengthens against the JPY 5 (4,743) (4,743) 
If the RMB weakens against the JPY (5) 4,743 4,743 
If the RMB strengthens against the THB 5 38,663 38,663 
If the RMB weakens against the THB (5) (38,663) (38,663) 
If the RMB strengthens against the SGD 5 (5,805) (5,805) 
If the RMB weakens against the SGD (5) 5,805 5,805 
If the RMB strengthens against the INR 5 64,727 64,727 
If the RMB weakens against the INR (5) (64,727) (64,727) 
If the RMB strengthens against the IDR 5 51 ,289 51,289 
If the RMB weakens against the IDR (5) (51,289) (51,289) 
If the RMB strengthens against the CAD 5 6,881 6,881 
If the RMB weakens against the CAD (5) (6,881) (6,881) 
If the RMB strengthens against the MYR 5 11,111 11,111 
If the RMB weakens against the MYR (5) (11,111) (11 ,1 11) 
If the RMB strengthens against the GBP 5 4,107 4,107 
If the RMB weakens against the GBP (5) (4,107) (4,107) 
If the RMB strengthens against the COP 5 5,670 5,670 
If the RMB weakens against the COP (5) (5,670) (5,670) 
If the RMB strengthens against the SAR 5 (78,535) (78,535) 
If the RMB weakens against the SAR (5) 78,535 78,535 
If the RMB strengthens against the MXN 5 9,716 9,716 
If the RMB weakens against the MXN (5) (9,716) (9,716) 
If the RMB strengthens against the GNF 5 (430) (430) 
If the RMB weakens against the GNF (5) 430 430 
If the RMB strengthens against the VND 5 (2,482) (2,482) 
If the RMB weakens against the VND (5) 2,482 2,482 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 

Increase/ Increase Increase 
(decrease) in foreign /(decrease) in /(decrease) in 

currency rate profit after tax shareholder's equity 
% RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

As at 30 April 2025 

If the RMB strengthens against the AED 5 (3,333) (3,333) 
If the RMB weakens against the AED (5) 3,333 3,333 
If the RMB strengthens against the AUD 5 535 535 
If the RMB weakens against the AUD (5) (535) (535) 
If the RMB strengthens against the BRL 5 30,125 30,125 
If the RMB weakens against the BRL (5) (30,125): (30,125) 
If the RMB strengthens against the RUB 5 (19,171) (19,171) 
If the RMB weakens against the RUB (5) 19,171 19,171 
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 (18,910) (18,910) 
If the RMB weakens against the HKD (5) 18,910 18,910 
If the RMB strengthens against the USO 5 (800,092) (800,092) 
If the RMB weakens against the USO (5) 800,092 800,092 
If the RMB strengthens against the ZAR 5 16,748 16,748 
If the RMB weakens against the ZAR (5) (16,748) (16,748) 
If the RMB strengthens against the EUR 5 61,318 61,318 
If the RMB weakens against the EUR (5) (61 ,318) (61,318) 
If the RMB strengthens against the JPY 5 (10.442) (10,442) 
If the RMB weakens against the JPY (5) 10,442 10,442 
If the RMB strengthens against the THB 5 34,732 34,732 
If the RMB weakens against the THB (5) (34,732) (34,732) 
If the RMB strengthens against the SGD 5 4,749 4,749 
If the RMB weakens against the SGD (5) (4 ,749) (4,749) 
If the RMB strengthens against the INR 5 52,516 52,516 
If the RMB weakens against the INR (5) (52,516) (52,516) 
If the RMB strengthens against the IDR 5 71,406 71,406 
If the RMB weakens against the IDR (5) (71 ,406) (71,406) 
If the RMB strengthens against the CAD 5 3,645 3,645 
If the RMB weakens against the CAD (5) (3,645) (3,645) 
If the RMB strengthens against the MYR 5 16,820 16,820 
If the RMB weakens against the MYR (5) (16,820) (16,820) 
If the RMB strengthens against the GBP 5 6,086 6,086 
If the RMB weakens against the GBP (5) (6,086) (6,086) 
If the RMB strengthens against the COP 5 5,018 5,018 
If the RMB weakens against the COP (5) (5,018) (5,018) 
If the RMB strengthens against the SAR 5 (69,549) (69,549) 
If the RMB weakens against the SAR (5) 69,549 69,549 
If the RMB strengthens against the MXN 5 9,966 9,966 
If the RMB weakens against the MXN (5) (9,966) (9,966) 
If the RMB strengthens against the GNF 5 562 562 
If the RMB weakens against the GNF (5) (562) (562) 
If the RMB strengthens against the VND 5 (2,197) (2,197) 
If the RMB weakens against the VND (5) 2,197 2,197 
If the RMB strengthens against the PHP 5 1,630 1,630 
If the RMB weakens against the PHP (5) (1,630) (1,630) 
If the RMB strengthens against the UZS 5 (2,061) (2,061) 
If the RMB weakens against the UZS (5) 2,061 2,061 
If the RMB strengthens against the PLN 5 (350) (350) 
If the RMB weakens against the PLN (5) 350 350 
If the RMB strengthens against the KES 5 (864) (864) 
If the RMB weakens against the KES (5) 864 864 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Credit risk 
An impairment analysis was performed at the end of each of the Relevant Periods using a 
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on ageing 
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects 
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable 
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and 
forecasts of future economic conditions. 

Maximum exposure and year-end staging 
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the 
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on ageing information unless other information is 
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at the end of each 
of the Relevant Periods. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial 
assets. 

As at 31 December 2022 

12-month 
ECLs Lifetime ECLs 

Simplified 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 aQQroach Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Trade and bills 
receivables 6,332,072 28,261,887 34,593,959 

Receivables under 
finance lease 12,153,394 276,851 12,430,245 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables and 
other assets 5,756,154 1,203,535 106,308 7,065,997 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 1,627,120 1,627,120 

Loans and 
advances 10,447,294 1,059,745 125,299 11,632,338 

Restricted 
deposits 962,954 962,954 

Time deposits with 
original maturity 
of more than 
three months 7,880,313 7,880,313 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 12,692,449 12,692,449 

Total 57,851,750 2,540,131 231,607 28,261 ,887 88,885,375 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Credit risk(continued) 

Maximum exposure and year-end staging(continued) 

As at 31 December 2023 

12-month 
ECLs Lifetime ECLs 

Simplified 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 af2~roach Total 

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Trade and bills 
receivables 5,033,449 2,359 28,143,686 33,179,494 

Receivables under 
finance lease 16,009,066 500,146 15,205 16,524,417 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables and 
other assets 7,026,332 1,422,309 130,712 8,579,353 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 1,336,716 1,336,716 

Loans and 
advances 6,821,996 107,629 171,360 7,100,985 

Restricted 
deposits 704,117 704,117 

Time deposits with 
original maturity 
of more than 
three months 9,529,137 9,529,137 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 8,138,618 8,138,618 

Total 54,599,431 2,030,084 319,636 28,143,686 85,092,837 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Credit risk(continued) 

Maximum exposure and year-end staging(continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 

12-month 
ECLs Lifetime ECLs 

Simplified 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 a~~roach Total 

RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Trade and bills 
receivables 5,430,865 18,410 30,091,925 35,541,200 

Receivables under 
finance lease 16,037,984 876,430 47,603 16,962,017 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables and 
other assets 7,011,767 1,981,421 130,543 9,123,731 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 1,064,956 1,064,956 

Loans and 
advances 3,080,779 306,256 153,785 3,540,820 

Restricted 
deposits 689,488 689,488 

Time deposits with 
original maturity 
of more than 
three months 8,566,529 8,566,529 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 11,573,981 11 ,573,981 

Total 53,456,349 3,164,107 350,341 30,091,925 87,062,722 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Credit risk(continued) 

Maximum exposure and year-end staging(continued) 

As at 30 April 2025 

12-month 
ECLs Lifetime ECLs 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 

Trade and bills 
receivables 6,080,727 470 1,685 

Receivables under 
finance lease 13,150,440 3,510,078 104,687 

Financial assets 
included in 
prepayments, 
other 
receivables 
and other 
assets 6,549,505 2,202,611 109,085 

Financial assets at 
FVOCI 1,078,501 

Loans and 
advances 1,945,267 688,914 154,902 

Restricted 
deposits 649,235 

Time deposits with 
original 
maturity of 
more than 
three months 12,005,332 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 7,839,768 

Total 49,298,775 6,402,073 370,359 

247 

Simplified 
aQQroach 
RMB'000 

32,284,373 

32,284,373 

Total 
RMB'000 

38,367,255 

16,765,205 

8,861,201 

1,078,501 

2,789,083 

649,235 

12,005,332 

7,839,768 

88,355,580 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Liquidity risk 
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This 
tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade and 
bills receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. 

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities and lease liabilities as at the end of each 
of the Relevant Periods, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: 

As at 31 December 2022 
Less than 1 

year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Interest-bearing 
bank and other 
borrowings 12,548,746 14,773,241 6,670,225 1,538,709 35,530,921 

Lease liabilities 180,772 209,928 55,180 88,836 534,716 
Trade and bills 

payables 28,906,687 28,906,687 
Other payables and 

accruals 7,686,291 7,686,291 
Placements from 

banks 6,604,618 6,604,618 
Derivative financial 

instruments 241,152 241,152 
Other non-current 

liabilities 1,473 1,473 

Total 56,168,266 14,984,642 6,725,405 1,627,545 79,505,858 

As at 31 December 2023 
Less than 1 

year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 
RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO 

Interest-bearing 
bank and other 
borrowings 7,535,341 17,140,783 1,468,097 6,514,443 32,658,664 

Lease liabilities 300,532 279,774 185,666 183,879 949,851 
Trade and bills 

payables 22,692,726 22,692,726 
Other payables and 

accruals 6,914,127 6,914,127 
Placements from 

banks 5,516,047 5,516,047 
Derivative financial 

instruments 237,420 237,420 
Other non-current 

liabilities 15,415 15,415 

Total 43,196,193 17,435,972 1,653,763 6,698,322 68,984,250 
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Liquidity risk (continued) 

As at 31 December 2024 
Less than 1 

year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Interest-bearing 
bank and other 
borrowings 13,502,305 9,512,615 1,253,236 2,035,746 26,303,902 

Lease liabilities 249,370 290,931 199,110 136,044 875,455 
Trade and bills 

payables 28,654,359 28,654,359 
Other payables and 

accruals 6,081 ,631 6,081 ,631 
Placements from 

banks 3,544,259 3,544,259 
Derivative financial 

instruments 106,762 106,762 
Other non-current 

liabilities 477 477 

Total 52,138,686 9,804,023 1,452,346 2,171 ,790 65,566,845 

As at 30 April 2025 
Less than 1 

year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Interest-bearing 
bank and other 
borrowings 8,928,432 8,189,325 1,219,450 1,240,842 19,578,049 

Placements from 
banks 3,544,259 3,544,259 

Derivative financial 
instruments 106,762 106,762 

Trade and bills 
payables 32,203,205 32,203,205 

Other payables 
and accruals 5,740,902 5,740,902 

Lease liabilities 335,208 441 ,841 349,930 151,457 1,278.436 
Other non-current 

liabilities 508 508 

Total 50,858,768 8,631 ,674 1,569,380 1,392,299 62,452,121 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Equity price risk 
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease as a result of 
changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is 
exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 21) and equity investments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (note 20) as at 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024, and 30 April 
2025. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change in the fair values of the 
equity investments, with all other variables held constant and after any impact on tax, based on 
their carrying amounts at the end of the Relevant Periods. 

As at 31 December 2022 

Equity investments: 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Financial assets at FVPL 

As at 31 December 2023 

Equity investments: 
Financial assets at FVOCI 
Financial assets at FVPL 

As at 31 December 2024 

Equity investments: 
Financial assets at FVOCI 

As at 30 April 2025 

Equity investments: 
Financial assets at FVOCI 

Increase/ 
(decrease) in other 

comprehensive 
Carrying amount income/net profit 

RMB'000 RMB'000 

1,332,642 
75,647 

970,897 
62,353 

608,455 

608,455 

250 

51,160/(51,160) 
3, 158/(3, 158) 

36,537/(36,537) 
2,604/(2,604) 

22,945/(22,945) 

22,936/(22,936) 

Increase/ 
(decrease) in total 

equity 
RMB'000 

51,160/(51,160) 
3, 158/(3, 158) 

36,537/(36,537) 
2,604/(2,604) 

22,945/(22,945) 

22, 936/(22, 936) 
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

Capital management 
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong 
credit profile and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise 
shareholders' value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing 
capital during the Relevant Periods. 

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the equity 
attributable to owners of the parent plus net debt. The gearing ratios as at the end of the 
Relevant Periods were as follows: 

Year ended 31 December Four months ended 30 April 
2022 2023 2024 2025 ----- - - --- - - --- - --

RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 

Total liabil ities 
(excluding 
deferred tax 
liabilities, 
income tax 
payables, total 
employee 
benefits 
payables, 
deferred 
income and 
total accruals 
and 
provisions) 81 ,129,981 70,424,690 67,555,244 66,632,863 

Less: Cash and 
bank 
balances (21 ,342,876) (18,071 ,827) (20,383,175) (20,391,620) 

Net debt 59,787,105 52,352,863 47,172,069 46,241 ,243 

Equity attributable 
to owners of 
the parent 65,039,719 68,029,017 71,953,244 75,014,891 

Capital and net 
debt 124,826,824 120,381 ,880 119,125,313 121 ,256,134 

Gearing ratio 47.90% 43.49% 39.60% 38.14% 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

53. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

The Company 

At the end of Relevant Periods, the Company's investments in subsidiaries were as follows: 

Year ended 31 December As at 30 Aeril 
2022 2023 2024 2025 

RMB'000 RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'000 

Sany Heavy Machinery Investment Co., 
Ltd.=. - ;i;Jn :t9: ~ tHlH~-a'J 900,933 904,913 915,287 917,865 

Sany International Development Co., 
Ltd.=. - IE ~f-:&llHHi 0i'il 1,748,634 1,928,080 1,928,080 1,928,080 

Sany Automobile Manufacturing Co., 
Ltd.:::-A:$.ifiIJm:M~0-a'J 3,334,432 3,342,036 3,357,054 3,362,253 

Jiangsu Sany Heavy Industry Tower 
Crane Co., Ltdff;)f. .=. -.:iI±ii=rJL1'f 
~~0-a'J 427,895 427,895 427,895 427,895 

STE Transmission Equipment Co., Ltd. 
~t;f1tz;IJN-l-1'f ~~0-a'J 747,111 747,437 748,409 748,801 

Jiashi Fund - Exclusive No.1 Single 
Asset Management Plan ~~¥~-
~ :$1 "5 !'jl.-'&f f'='E:!IiH1J 1,036,029 1,036,029 985,942 1,285,942 

Zhongjin Xiangyang No.3 Single Asset 
Management Plan9"~1".11l83"5!f!--
l:\tFffJJ.ittJ 2,416,181 2,416,181 2,416,181 2,416,181 

Sany Automotive Finance Co., Ltd.=-
A$.~~M~0-a'J 2,923,747 2,923,835 2,923,912 2,923,933 

CITIC Securities Sany Exclusive 
Customized No. 1 Single Asset 
Management Plan't' f~HiE*-=-~:$ 
Ji:'.ifiIJ1 "5 !)l.-l:\tF'l!r:!IiHLl 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000 

Sany Financing Guarantee Company 
Limited.=-~bt}.!l. (;j1;::fjf ~~ 0-a'J 1,000,000 1,000,000 300,000 300,000 

Sany Financial Leasing Co. , Ltd.=-~ 
btffl.t1!1'f~~0~] 954,349 954,354 954,424 954,427 

Sany Heavy Machinery Co., Lld.=.-11! 
m1n~0 -a'J 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 

CITIC Securities Asset Management 
Xinxin Xiangrong Lexiang No.1 FOF 
Single Asset Management Plancj:i {g 
iiE*l:\t"i!r1a 1al".l~;f, :$1 %FOF!)l.-
lnF'EJJ!.iHIJ 500,000 800,000 

Hunan Sany Zhongyang Machinery 
Co. , Ltd 331 ,361 331,968 332,748 333,057 

Lerui Quan Bond No. 8 Securities 
Investment Private Fund;f,J/M:i:i!lt8 

'% iiE*:t9:lnfl~¥~ 755,053 146,869 
Tianhong Innovation Hongye No. 6 

Single Asset Management Plan 'F:. 
5LE'Jf,Ji'5l~6"5 !f!--l:\tF'Ellit:lW 900,000 

Others 2,752,811 2,217,433 2,249,158 2,320,899 

Total 22,428,536 23,577,030 23,239,090 23,919,333 
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Sany Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

54. EVENTS AFTER THE RELEVANT PERIODS 

In May 2025, the Company's shareholders approved the payment of a final dividend of RMB 
0.36 per share at the 2024 Annual General Meeting. A cash dividend totalling RMB 3,029 million 
was subsequently distributed to shareholders in June 2025. 

In September 2025, the Company's shareholders approved the payment of 2025 interim 
dividend of RMB0.31 per share. A cash dividend of RMB2,613.7 million was subsequently 
distributed to shareholders in October 2025. 

55. SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

No audited financial statements have been prepared by the Company, the Group or any of the 
companies now comprising the Group in respect of any period subsequent to 30 April 2025. 
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